
 

 

Notice of meeting and agenda 

 

 

Development Management Sub-Committee 

 

10.00 am Wednesday, 18th August, 2021 

 

Virtual Meeting - via Microsoft Teams 

 

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome watch the live webcast 

on the Council’s website. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contacts 

Email:  jamie.macrae@edinburgh.gov.uk / blair.ritchie@edinburgh.gov.uk 

Tel:  0131 553 8242 / 0131 529 4085 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 18 

August 2021 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 

 

 

1. Order of business 

1.1   

 

 

 

1.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.3 

Including any notices of motion, hearing requests from ward 

councillors and any other items of business submitted as urgent 

for consideration at the meeting. 

 

Any member of the Council can request a Hearing if an item 

raises a local issue affecting their ward. Members of the Sub-

Committee can request a presentation on any items in part 4 or 5 

of the agenda. Members must advise Committee Services of their 

request by no later than 1.00pm on Monday 16th August 2021 

(see contact details in the further information section at the end of 

this agenda). 

 

If a member of the Council has submitted a written request for a 

hearing to be held on an application that raises a local issue 

affecting their ward, the Development Management Sub-

Committee will decide after receiving a presentation on the 

application whether or not to hold a hearing based on the 

information submitted. All requests for hearings will be notified to 

members prior to the meeting. 

 

 

2. Declaration of interests 

2.1   Members should declare any financial and non-financial interests 

they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying 

the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest.  

 

 

3. Minutes 

3.1   Minutes of Previous Meeting of Development Management Sub-

Committee of 4 August 2021 – submitted for approval as a 

correct record 

 

9 - 14 



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 18 

August 2021 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 

 

 

 

4. General Applications, Miscellaneous Business and Pre-Application 

Reports 

The key issues for the Pre-Application reports and the 

recommendation by the Chief Planning Officer or other Chief 

Officers detailed in their reports on applications will be approved 

without debate unless the Clerk to the meeting indicates otherwise 

during “Order of Business” at item 1.  

 

4.1   11 Abercorn Terrace (Abercorn Nursing Home), Portobello, East - 

Change of use, extension and alteration of existing nursing care 

home to form 8 residential dwellings (as amended) - application 

no. 21/03148/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be GRANTED. 

15 - 28 

4.2   84N Barnton Park View, Edinburgh. Conversion of existing lock-

up garage (formerly a railway bridge) into a three bedroom 

dwelling - application no. 18/02021/FUL - Report by the Chief 

Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be GRANTED. 

29 - 48 

4.3   13 Edinburgh Road, Edinburgh - Erect new standalone workshop 

/ studio building with separate access - application no. 

20/05222/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

49 - 74 

4.4   194 Fountainbridge (At Land Adjacent To), Edinburgh - Proposed 

use for the North East commercial unit, lower ground floor of 

Block A. Current planning consent allows for class 1, class 2, 

class 3, class 4, and/or ancillary residential use e.g., storage. 

Application is seeking permission for a class 11 (gym) use for this 

unit - application no. 21/02326/FUL - Report by the Chief 

Planning Officer 

75 - 82 



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 18 

August 2021 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 

It is recommended that this application be GRANTED. 

4.5   Totley Wells Lodge, Westfield, Winchburgh - Demolition of an 

existing house and the erection of a replacement house on the 

same site - application no. 20/04495/FUL - Report by the Chief 

Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be GRANTED. 

 

83 - 100 

5. Returning Applications 

These applications have been discussed previously by the Sub- 

Committee.  A decision to grant, refuse or continue consideration 

will be made following a presentation by the Chief Planning Officer 

and discussion on each item. 

 

5.1   194 Fountainbridge (At Land Adjacent To), Edinburgh - Approval 

of matters specified in conditions 1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 12 & 13 of 

15/02892/PPP for Building E including form + massing; design + 

materials; daylight + sunlight; design + operation of private/public 

open spaces; roads, footways/cycleway/access/servicing + 

parking; venting + electric vehicle charging; drainage; waste 

management; operational requirements for commercial uses/ 

sustainability/floor levels/lighting; site investigation/hard + soft 

landscaping details + noise mitigation. (As Amended) - 

application no. 19/02993/AMC - Report by the Chief Planning 

Officer 

It is recommended that this application be APPROVED.  

 

101 - 102 

6. Applications for Hearing 

The Chief Planning Officer has identified the following applications 

as meeting the criteria for Hearings. The protocol note by the Head 

of Strategy and Insight sets out the procedure for the hearing. 

 

6.1   1 Edinburgh Airport (Main Terminal), Jubilee Road, Edinburgh - 

application no. 21/00217/FUL - Protocol Note by the Chief 

103 - 106 



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 18 

August 2021 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 

Executive 

6.2   1 Edinburgh Airport (Main Terminal), Jubilee Road, Edinburgh - 

Formation of new access road and active travel route from east of 

terminal building to Gogar Roundabout - application no. 

21/00217/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED.  

 

107 - 172 

7. Applications for Detailed Presentation 

The Chief Planning Officer has identified the following applications 

for detailed presentation to the Sub-Committee.  A decision to 

grant, refuse or continue consideration will be made following the 

presentation and discussion on each item. 

 

7.1   None. 

  

 

8. Returning Applications Following Site Visit 

These applications have been discussed at a previous meeting of 

the Sub-Committee and were continued to allow members to visit 

the sites. A decision to grant, refuse or continue consideration will 

be made following a presentation by the Chief Planning Officer 

and discussion on each item. 

 

8.1   None. 

 

 

 

 

Andrew Kerr 

Chief Executive 

 



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 18 

August 2021 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 

Committee Members 

Councillor Neil Gardiner (Convener), Councillor Maureen Child (Vice-Convener), 

Councillor Chas Booth, Councillor Lezley Marion Cameron, Councillor George Gordon, 

Councillor Max Mitchell, Councillor Joanna Mowat, Councillor Hal Osler, Councillor 

Cameron Rose, Councillor Alex Staniforth and Councillor Ethan Young 

 

Information about the Development Management Sub-Committee 

The Development Management Sub-Committee consists of 11 Councillors and is 

appointed by the City of Edinburgh Council.  The meeting will be held by Teams and 

will be webcast live for viewing by members of the public. 

 

Further information 

If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact 

Jamie Macrae, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council, Business Centre 2.1, 

Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh EH8 8BG,  Tel 0131 529 4283 / 0131 

529 42374085, email veronica.macmillan@edinburgh.gov.uk /  

martin.scott@edinburgh.gov.uk. 

The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting and all the main Council 

committees can be viewed online by going to https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/.  

 

Webcasting of Council meetings 

Please note this meeting may be filmed for live and subsequent broadcast via the 

Council’s internet site – at the start of the meeting the Convener will confirm if all or part 

of the meeting is being filmed. 

The Council is a Data Controller under current Data Protection legislation.  We 

broadcast Council meetings to fulfil our public task obligation to enable members of the 

public to observe the democratic process.  Data collected during this webcast will be 

retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy including, but not limited to, 

for the purpose of keeping historical records and making those records available via the 

Council’s internet site. 

Any information presented by individuals to the Council at a meeting, in a deputation or 

otherwise, in addition to forming part of a webcast that will be held as a historical 

record, will also be held and used by the Council in connection with the relevant matter 

until that matter is decided or otherwise resolved (including any potential appeals and 

https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/


 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 18 

August 2021 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 

other connected processes).  Thereafter, that information will continue to be held as 

part of the historical record in accordance with the paragraphs above. 

If you have any queries regarding this, and, in particular, if you believe that use and/or 

storage of any particular information would cause, or be likely to cause, substantial 

damage or distress to any individual, please contact Committee Services 

(committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk). 



This page is intentionally left blank



Development Management Sub-Committee of the Planning Committee 4 August 2021 
 

Minutes 
 
 
 

Development Management Sub-Committee of the 
Planning Committee 

 

10.00 am, Wednesday 4 August 2021 
 
Present: 

Councillors Child (in the Chair), Booth, Lezley Marion Cameron, Dixon (substituting for 
Councillor Gardiner), Mitchell, Mowat, Osler, Rose, Staniforth and Ethan Young. 

 

1. Chair 
In the absence of the Convener, Councillor Child (Vice-Convener) assumed the chair. 

2. Minutes 
Decision 

To approve the minute of the Development Management Sub-Committee of 16 June 2021 as a 
correct record.  

To approve the minute of the Development Management Sub-Committee of 23 June 2021 as a 
correct record.  

3. General Applications and Miscellaneous Business 
The Sub-Committee considered reports on planning applications listed in Sections 4, 5 and 7 of 
the agenda for this meeting. 

Requests for Presentations 

Councillor Rose requested a presentation in respect of Item 4.15 - 82 Newbattle Terrace, 
Edinburgh - Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order No. 195 

Declaration of interest 

Councillor Mitchell declared a non-financial interest in item 4.7 – 38 Castle Terrace (Castle 
Terrace Car Park), Edinburgh, as this site related to the Gilded Balloon, for which he was 
previously employed from 2012 to 2019 and did not take part in the decision on this item. 

Decision 

To determine the applications as detailed in the Appendix to this minute.  

(Reference – reports by the Chief Planning Officer, submitted.) 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3.1



Development Management Sub-Committee of the Planning Committee 4 August 2021 
 

4. 82 Newbattle Terrace, Edinburgh 
Details were provided of an application for confirmation of Tree Preservation Order No. 195 at 
82 Newbattle Terrace, Edinburgh. 

The Chief Planning Officer gave details of the proposals and the planning considerations 
involved and recommended that the order be confirmed.  

Motion  

To confirm Tree Preservation Order No. 195 for the reasons given in section 3 of the report by 
the Chief Planning Officer. 

- moved by Councillor Child, seconded by Councillor Booth. 

Amendment   

To not confirm Tree Preservation Order No. 195. 

- moved by Councillor Rose, seconded by Councillor Dixon. 

Voting  

For the motion:  -     8 votes                                                                                       
For the amendment:  -     2 votes 

(For the motion:  Councillors Child, Booth, Lezley Marion Cameron, Mitchell, Mowat, Osler, 
Staniforth and Ethan Young.) 

(For the amendment: (Councillors Dixon and Rose.) 

Decision 

To confirm Tree Preservation Order No. 195 for the reasons given in section 3 of the report by 
the Chief Planning Officer. 

 (Reference – report by the Chief Planning Officer, submitted.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 
Page 10



Development Management Sub-Committee of the Planning Committee 4 August 2021 
 

 
Agenda Item No. / 
Address 

 
Details of Proposal/Reference No 

 
Decision 

Note: Detailed conditions/reasons for the following decisions are contained in the statutory 
planning register. 

4.1 – Report for 
forthcoming 
application by 
Bankfoot APAM. for 
Proposal of 
Application Notice at 
Gyle Centre, Gyle 
Avenue, Edinburgh 

Proposed mixed use redevelopment 
of centre including new/relocated 
commercial and retail floorspace, 
transport interchange infrastructure, 
car parking, access, servicing and 
associated works, Class 9 houses 
/sui generis flats, community 
facilities (Class 10), leisure (Class 
11), public realm, commercial 
(Classes 1, 2 and 3), business 
(Class 4), hotel (Class 7), senior 
living accommodation (Class 8) - 
application no. 21/03130/PAN  

To note the key issues at this 
stage. 

 

4.2 – Report for 
forthcoming 
application by 
Edinburgh Marina 
Holdings Limited. for 
Proposal of 
Application Notice at 
Granton Harbour, 
West Harbour Road, 
Edinburgh 

Mixed use development containing 
residential flats, houses and 
commercial/retail units - application 
no. 21/03177/PAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To note the key issues at this 
stage. 

 

 

4.3 – Report for 
forthcoming 
application by CALA 
Management Ltd. for 
Proposal of 
Application Notice at 
Land North of 
Newmills Road, 
Currie/Balerno 

Mixed use development including 
houses (Class 9), flats (Sui 
Generis), care home (Class 8), retail 
(Class 1), commercial (Classes 2, 3 
and sui generis), business (Class 4), 
education and community facilities 
(Class 10), mobility hub, open space 
and landscaping, access and all 
associated infrastructure - 
application no. 21/03334/PAN 

To note the key issues at this 
stage. 

 

Page 11

https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35581/4.1%20-%2021%2003130%20PAN%20Gyle%20Centre.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35581/4.1%20-%2021%2003130%20PAN%20Gyle%20Centre.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35581/4.1%20-%2021%2003130%20PAN%20Gyle%20Centre.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35581/4.1%20-%2021%2003130%20PAN%20Gyle%20Centre.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35581/4.1%20-%2021%2003130%20PAN%20Gyle%20Centre.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35581/4.1%20-%2021%2003130%20PAN%20Gyle%20Centre.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35581/4.1%20-%2021%2003130%20PAN%20Gyle%20Centre.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35581/4.1%20-%2021%2003130%20PAN%20Gyle%20Centre.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35582/4.2%20-%2021%2003177%20PAN%20West%20Granton%20Road%20Granton%20Harbour.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35583/4.3%20-%2021%2003334%20PAN%20Newmills%20Road%20Currie%20Balerno.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35583/4.3%20-%2021%2003334%20PAN%20Newmills%20Road%20Currie%20Balerno.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35583/4.3%20-%2021%2003334%20PAN%20Newmills%20Road%20Currie%20Balerno.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35583/4.3%20-%2021%2003334%20PAN%20Newmills%20Road%20Currie%20Balerno.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35583/4.3%20-%2021%2003334%20PAN%20Newmills%20Road%20Currie%20Balerno.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35583/4.3%20-%2021%2003334%20PAN%20Newmills%20Road%20Currie%20Balerno.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35583/4.3%20-%2021%2003334%20PAN%20Newmills%20Road%20Currie%20Balerno.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35583/4.3%20-%2021%2003334%20PAN%20Newmills%20Road%20Currie%20Balerno.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35583/4.3%20-%2021%2003334%20PAN%20Newmills%20Road%20Currie%20Balerno.pdf


Development Management Sub-Committee of the Planning Committee 4 August 2021 
 

 
Agenda Item No. / 
Address 

 
Details of Proposal/Reference No 

 
Decision 

4.4 – 2-4 Abbey 
Mount, Edinburgh 

Change of use and alterations to 
form 11 short term let studio 
apartments and cafe - application 
no. 20/05581/FUL 

To GRANT planning permission 
subject to the conditions, reasons 
and informatives as set out in 
section 3 of the report by the 
Chief Planning Officer. 

4.5 – 2-4 Abbey 
Mount, Edinburgh 

Conversion and alterations of 
existing tenement building to form 
two short-term let studio apartments 
and community cafe/restaurant. 
Demolition works/alterations of un-
listed rear hall building to form 9 
short-term let studios apartments - 
application no. 20/05603/LBC  

To GRANT listed building 
consent subject to the 
informatives as set out in section 
3 of the report by the Chief 
Planning Officer. 

4.6 – 41 Barony 
Street, Edinburgh 

Change of use from a residential 
property to short term commercial 
visitor accommodation - application 
no. 21/02615/FUL 

To GRANT planning permission 
subject to the informatives as set 
out in section 3 of the report by 
the Chief Planning Officer. 

4.7 – 38 Castle 
Terrace (Castle 
Terrace Car Park), 
Edinburgh 

Erection of temporary stage and 
raised seating area - application no. 
21/03418/FUL 

To GRANT planning permission 
subject to the conditions and 
reasons as set out in section 3 of 
the report by the Chief Planning 
Officer. 

4.8 – 4 Clifton Road, 
Newbridge 

Replacement dwelling house - 
application no. 21/00674/FUL 

To GRANT planning permission 
subject to the informatives as set 
out in section 3 of the report by 
the Chief Planning Officer. 

4.9 – 62 George 
Square (George 
Square Gardens), 
Edinburgh 

The installation of 2x temporary 
venues and ancillary activities as 
part of Edinburgh Festival Fringe - 
application no. 21/03380/FUL 

To GRANT planning permission 
subject to the conditions and 
reasons as set out in section 3 of 
the report by the Chief Planning 
Officer. 

Page 12

https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35584/4.4%20-%2020%2005581%20FUL%202-4%20Abbey%20Mount.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35584/4.4%20-%2020%2005581%20FUL%202-4%20Abbey%20Mount.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35585/4.5%20-%2020%2005603%20LBC%202-4%20Abbey%20Mount.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35585/4.5%20-%2020%2005603%20LBC%202-4%20Abbey%20Mount.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35586/4.6%20-%2021%2002615%20FUL%2041%20Barony%20Street.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35586/4.6%20-%2021%2002615%20FUL%2041%20Barony%20Street.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35587/4.7%20-%2021%2003418%20FUL%20Castle%20Terrace.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35587/4.7%20-%2021%2003418%20FUL%20Castle%20Terrace.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35587/4.7%20-%2021%2003418%20FUL%20Castle%20Terrace.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35587/4.7%20-%2021%2003418%20FUL%20Castle%20Terrace.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35588/4.8%20-%2021%2000674%20FUL%204%20Clifton%20Road%20Newbridge.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35588/4.8%20-%2021%2000674%20FUL%204%20Clifton%20Road%20Newbridge.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35589/4.9%20-%2021%2003380%20FUL%20George%20Square%20Gardens.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35589/4.9%20-%2021%2003380%20FUL%20George%20Square%20Gardens.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35589/4.9%20-%2021%2003380%20FUL%20George%20Square%20Gardens.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35589/4.9%20-%2021%2003380%20FUL%20George%20Square%20Gardens.pdf


Development Management Sub-Committee of the Planning Committee 4 August 2021 
 

 
Agenda Item No. / 
Address 

 
Details of Proposal/Reference No 

 
Decision 

4.10 – 10 Gilmerton 
Station Road (At 
land 292 metres west 
of), Edinburgh 

Site remix and erection of 2 
additional dwelling houses to 
development consented under 
planning permission 17/05883/AMC 
(as amended) - application no. 
20/05668/FUL 

To GRANT planning permission 
subject to the conditions, reasons 
and informatives as set out in 
section 3 of the report by the 
Chief Planning Officer. 

4.11 – 68B (1F2) 
Grassmarket, 
Edinburgh 

Change of use from residential to 
short term business/holiday 
accommodation - application no. 
21/02351/FUL 

To REFUSE planning permission 
for the reasons given in section 3 
of the report by the Chief 
Planning Officer. 

4.12 – 49 Mitchell 
Street, Edinburgh 

Extension to hotel - application no. 
21/00880/FUL 

To GRANT planning permission 
subject to the conditions, 
reasons, informatives and a legal 
agreement as set out in section 3 
of the report by the Chief 
Planning Officer. 

4.13 – 49 Mitchell 
Street, Edinburgh 

Extension to hotel - application no. 
21/03006/LBC 

To GRANT listed building 
consent subject to the conditions, 
reasons and informatives as set 
out in section 3 of the report by 
the Chief Planning Officer. 

4.14 – 2 Mortonhall 
Park Terrace, 
Edinburgh 

To create a 2-bedroom level access 
house in the garden of 2 Mortonhall 
Park Terrace - application no. 
21/01786/FUL 

To REFUSE planning permission 
for the reasons given in section 3 
of the report by the Chief 
Planning Officer. 

4.15 – 82 Newbattle 
Terrace, Edinburgh 

Confirmation of Tree Preservation 
Order No. 195 

To CONFIRM Tree Preservation 
Order No. 195. 

(On a division.) 

Page 13

https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35590/4.10%20-%2020%2005668%20FUL%20land%20at%2010%20Gilmerton%20Station%20Road.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35590/4.10%20-%2020%2005668%20FUL%20land%20at%2010%20Gilmerton%20Station%20Road.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35590/4.10%20-%2020%2005668%20FUL%20land%20at%2010%20Gilmerton%20Station%20Road.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35590/4.10%20-%2020%2005668%20FUL%20land%20at%2010%20Gilmerton%20Station%20Road.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35591/4.11%20-%2021%2002351%20FUL%2068B%20Grassmarket.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35591/4.11%20-%2021%2002351%20FUL%2068B%20Grassmarket.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35591/4.11%20-%2021%2002351%20FUL%2068B%20Grassmarket.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35592/4.12%20-%2021%2000880%20FUL%2049%20Mitchell%20Street.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35592/4.12%20-%2021%2000880%20FUL%2049%20Mitchell%20Street.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35594/4.13%20-%2021%2003006%20LBC%2049%20Mitchell%20Street.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35594/4.13%20-%2021%2003006%20LBC%2049%20Mitchell%20Street.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35595/4.14%20-%2021%2001786%20FUL%202%20Mortonhall%20Park%20Terrace.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35595/4.14%20-%2021%2001786%20FUL%202%20Mortonhall%20Park%20Terrace.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35595/4.14%20-%2021%2001786%20FUL%202%20Mortonhall%20Park%20Terrace.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35596/4.15%20-%20confirmation%20TPO%20195%20final.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35596/4.15%20-%20confirmation%20TPO%20195%20final.pdf


Development Management Sub-Committee of the Planning Committee 4 August 2021 
 

 
Agenda Item No. / 
Address 

 
Details of Proposal/Reference No 

 
Decision 

4.16 – 126-130 
Raeburn Place, 
Edinburgh 

Section 42 Application seeking 
variation to condition No.9 of 
Planning Permission 12/03567/FUL, 
to allow the use of acoustic glazing 
on the elevation fronting onto 
Comely Bank Road - application no. 
21/01222/FUL 

To GRANT planning permission 
subject to the conditions, 
reasons, informatives and a legal 
agreement as set out in section 3 
of the report by the Chief 
Planning Officer. 

4.17 – 17 Spring 
Gardens, Edinburgh 

Change of Use from dwelling to 
holiday-let (in retrospect) - 
application no. 21/01541/FUL 

To REFUSE planning permission 
for the reasons given in section 3 
of the report by the Chief 
Planning Officer. 

4.18 – 24 Westfield 
Road, Edinburgh 

Application under Section 42 to vary 
condition 3 of consent 
19/01970/FUL for erection of 
student accommodation, ancillary 
uses and associated landscaping 
and infrastructure - application no. 
20/05008/FUL 

To GRANT planning permission 
subject to the conditions, 
reasons, informatives and a legal 
agreement as set out in section 3 
of the report by the Chief 
Planning Officer. 

 

Page 14

https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35598/4.16%20-%2021%2001222%20FUL%20126-130%20Raeburn%20Place.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35598/4.16%20-%2021%2001222%20FUL%20126-130%20Raeburn%20Place.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35598/4.16%20-%2021%2001222%20FUL%20126-130%20Raeburn%20Place.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35599/4.17%20-%2021%2001541%20FUL%2017%20Spring%20Gardens.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35599/4.17%20-%2021%2001541%20FUL%2017%20Spring%20Gardens.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35600/4.18%20-%2020%2005008%20FUL%20Westfield%20Road.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s35600/4.18%20-%2020%2005008%20FUL%20Westfield%20Road.pdf


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 1 of 13      21/03148/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 18 August 2021 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/03148/FUL 
At Abercorn Nursing Home, 11 Abercorn Terrace, Portobello 
East 
Change of use, extension and alteration of existing nursing 
care home to form 8 residential dwellings (as amended). 

 

 

Summary 

 
The proposed change of use to residential accommodation is acceptable and complies 
with the Edinburgh Local Development Plan.  
 
The proposal will provide acceptable living conditions for future occupiers and will not 
result in any loss of privacy to neighbouring properties and is acceptable in terms of 
parking provision. The proposed alterations and extensions are acceptable. The 
proposals will preserve the character and appearance of the conservation area. 
 
There are no material considerations which outweigh this conclusion. 
 
 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LHOU01, LHOU05, LDES12, LEN06, LTRA02, 

LHOU02, LHOU04, NSG, NSGD02, CRPPOR,  

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B17 - Portobello/Craigmillar 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4.1

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021   Page 2 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/03148/FUL 
At Abercorn Nursing Home, 11 Abercorn Terrace, Portobello 
East 
Change of use, extension and alteration of existing nursing 
care home to form 8 residential dwellings (as amended). 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The application site is a detached Victorian villa previously used as a nursing home. It 
is two storey in height. The front area is laid out as a parking area.  
 
There is a later extension to the rear.  
 
This application site is located within the Portobello Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
8 November 1995 - Planning application granted to alter and extend nursing home 
(application reference: 93/00568/FUL). 

 

Main report 

3.1 Description Of The Proposal 
 
The application is for planning permission for the change of use from nursing home to 
eight residential flats.  Four of them would have one bedroom, three of them would 
have two bedrooms and one would have three bedrooms. The unit sizes are as follows: 
 
Plot 1 - 1 bedroom flat 58sq.m 
Plot 2 - 1 bedroom flat 52sq.m 
Plot 3 - 1 bedroom flat 57sq.m 
Plot 4 - 2 bedroom flat 69sq.m 
Plot 5 - 2 bedroom flat 104sq.m 
Plot 6 - 3 bedroom townhouse 144sq.m 
Plot 7 - 1 bedroom flat 77sq.m 
Plot 8 - 2 bedroom flat 78sq.m 
 

Page 16



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 3 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

Alterations consist of the creation of a small single storey extension with flat roof to the 
south east corner of the existing extension and a further small extension to the south 
west corner. There will be a box type roof dormer with a small terrace to the rear. 
Traditional dormers will be formed to the front. A section of the modern rear extension 
will also be demolished to allow light into the new units. The concealed roof valley will 
be covered over to create the attic flat. There will be new rooflights in various positions. 
 
In terms of the open space, there is a provision of four private gardens and a 
communal garden for the other four properties either side of the parking areas. 
 
The car park largely remains to the front which is designated for eight spaces and 
additional provision for 12 bikes has been proposed to the front of the parking. A bin 
store location has also been shown to the front.   
 
Previous scheme 
 
The proposals were amended to meet privacy standards 
 
Supporting documents 
 
The following information has been submitted in support of the application and is 
available to view on the Planning and Building Standards Online Services: 
 

− Design statement 

− Bat survey and assessment initial report 

− Report on stage 02 Bat and protected species  
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 4 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

3.3 Assessment  
 
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the principle of the development is acceptable; 
b) the development preserves or enhances the character and appearance of the 

conservation area 
c) the scale, design and materials are acceptable 
d) residential amenity is acceptable 
e) traffic and car parking are acceptable 
f) public comments have been addressed 

 
a) Principle of Development  
 
Policy Hou 1 Housing Development of the Edinburgh Local Development Plan (LDP) 
supports housing on suitable sites in the urban area, provided that the proposals are 
compatible with other policies in the Plan.  The application site is in the urban area as 
defined in the LDP and the surrounding area is residential in character.  
 
Policy Hou 2 (Housing Mix) seeks a mix of house types and sizes where practicable. 
The proposed mix of one, two and three bedroomed units meets this requirement.  
 
Policy Hou 4 (Housing Density) seeks an appropriate density of development based on 
the characteristics of the surrounding area. This is a high density development but it re-
uses an existing building and its density is similar to flatted developments in the area. It 
complies with policy Hou 4. 
 
The proposal is a suitable site within the urban area. The proposal complies with other 
relevant policies in the LDP. The proposal complies with LDP policy Hou 1.    
 
In addition, policy Hou 5 sets out the criteria for the conversion of non-residential 
buildings to housing. It supports the conversion of existing non-residential uses to 
housing, provided a satisfactory residential environment can be achieved; the use 
would be compatible with nearby uses; and appropriate open space, amenity and car 
and cycle parking are provided. These are assessed below. 
 
b) The proposals will adversely affect the character and appearance of the 
conservation area 
 
Section 64(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 which states: 
 
"In exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, of any 
powers under any of the provisions in subsection (2), special attention shall be paid to 
the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area." 
 
Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development of the LDP permits development that 
preserves or enhances the special character or appearance of the conservation area 
and demonstrates a high standard of design, utilising appropriate materials to the 
historic environment.  
 

Page 18



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 5 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

The Portobello Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the village/small 
town character of the area, the importance of the long sea-front promenade, the high-
quality architecture, and the predominant use of traditional building materials. 
 
In terms of the appearance of the conservation area, there will be an enhancement with 
the reduction in parking to the front and the introduction of some small areas of 
greenspace to the side of this. This will improve the setting of the building in the 
streetscape. The new traditional dormers to the front will have a neutral impact. It is 
acknowledged they will have zinc returns but they will blend into the roof as small 
additions. 
 
In terms of the character of the conservation area, the proposal to return the building to 
residential use is compatible with the residential character of the area. The new 
extensions are minor additions to the rear and the removal of part of the later extension 
improves the rear area. The new box dormer to the rear is acceptable in the context of 
the existing modern extension. Other changes such as the new rooflights and infilling of 
the valley will have a neutral impact on the overall character of the conservation area.  
 
The proposals preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the 
conservation area, in accordance with section 64 of the Act and LDP Policy Env 6. 
 
c) Scale, design and materials  
 
LDP Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions) states that planning permission will be 
granted for alterations to existing building where there will not be an unreasonable loss 
of privacy or natural light to neighbouring properties and where it would not be 
detrimental to neighbourhood amenity and character and the character of the existing 
building.  
 
The proposal largely utilises the existing building and any changes and additions are in 
character with the rest of the building in the context of a modern extension to the rear. 
The scale of the alterations is minor and the materials are considered acceptable.  
There is no detrimental impact on the character of the existing building or the 
neighbourhood amenity and character in compliance with policy Des 12. 
 
d) Residential Amenity  
 
Amenity of future occupants 
 
Policy Hou 5 of the LDP states that planning permission for the change of use of 
existing buildings in non-residential use to housing will be supported provided a 
satisfactory residential environment can be achieved, housing is compatible with 
nearby uses and appropriate open space, amenity and car and cycle parking standards 
are met. 
 
The non-statutory Edinburgh Design Guidance (EDG) states studio apartments should 
achieve a minimum floor area of 52 square metres for one bed, 66 square metres for 
two bed and 81 square metres for one bed flats. The floor area of each flat is 
satisfactory and would exceed minimum size standards as set out in the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. Each flat would receive sufficient daylight. 
 

Page 19



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 6 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

LDP Policy Hou 3 (Private Green Space) states that planning permission will be 
granted for development that makes adequate provision for green space to meets the 
needs of future residents.  
 
The property has shared garden space for four properties of over 70 square metres 
which exceeds the requirement for shared gardens. The other four properties benefit 
from a private garden space. In addition, the site is also located in a very close 
proximately to the larger public space and within walking distance of other good quality 
amenity spaces. As such the proposal complies with LDP Policy Hou 3.  
 
Environmental Protection was consulted as part of the assessment of the application 
and are satisfied the proposal raises no issues with regards to occupier amenity.  
 
Waste details were submitted to the Council's Waste Team, who are satisfied with the 
proposed waste strategy.  
 
Amenity of neighbouring residents 
 
LDP Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions) states that planning permission will be 
granted for alterations to existing building where there will not be an unreasonable loss 
of privacy or natural light to neighbouring properties  
 
The proposal will not result in the loss of daylight or sunlight to neighbouring properties 
since there are no major external changes which will result in adverse impacts. The 
small rear extensions would not significantly change the current position of the 
development in relation to boundaries.  
 
In terms of the privacy, the amended drawings have been submitted to reflect changes 
in the rear windows. The first scheme would overlook the neighbouring garden and the 
amended scheme resolves this. In terms of the proposed rear dormer, the windows are 
14 metres from the common boundary and distanced more than 28 metres from 
neighbouring windows and will have no impact on privacy.  
 
In this instance the proposal does comply with the guidance to privacy to surrounding 
properties.  
 
Overall, the proposal will achieve an acceptable level of amenity, in compliance with 
LDP Policies Hou 5, Hou 3 and Des 12. 
 
e) Traffic and Car parking   
 
LDP Policy Tra 2 (Private Car Parking) and Tra 3 (Cycle Parking) are applicable.   
 
The site is well served by public transport, walking and cycling links.  The site currently 
has eight car parking spaces and the application does not propose any alteration to 
this, which complies with the Council's parking standards.  
 
The proposal also has allocation for twelve cycle parking spaces. Whilst the Roads 
Authority does not raise an objection to the application, it requires 16 spaces and states 
the current location is not sufficiently secure. In addition, cycle stands should be 
Sheffield type. A condition has been applied to endure policy Tra 3 is met. 

Page 20



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 7 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

 
Overall, the proposed parking arrangements are acceptable, in compliance with LDP 
Policy Tra 2 and Policy Tra 3 subject to a condition.  
 
f) Public comment  
 
Material Comments: Objection: 
 

− Privacy issue. This has been assessed in section (d). 

− Proposed front dormers materials would be too obtrusive and detrimental to the 
appearance of the conservation area. This has been assessed in section (b). 

 
Non- Material Comments: Objection: 
 

− Measurements and dimensions are not added on plans. There is no statutory 
requirement to provide measurements on the drawings. They are scaled to allow 
assessment. 

− Inaccurate drawings. The submitted plans provided sufficient information for the 
determination of this application. 

− No detailed drawings to show drainage and ventilation. This would be assessed 
under the building warrant process.  

 
Material Comments: Support: 
 

− Considered and sensitively designed. 
 
Material Comments: Neutral: 
 

− Opportunity to install swift nest bricks. This has been added as an informative. 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
The proposed change of use to residential accommodation is acceptable and complies 
with the Edinburgh Local Development Plan.  
 
The proposal will provide acceptable living conditions for future occupiers and will not 
result in any loss of privacy to neighbouring properties and is acceptable in terms of 
parking provision. The proposed alterations and extensions are acceptable. The 
proposals will preserve the character and appearance of the conservation area. 
 
There are no material considerations which outweigh this conclusion. 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 8 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
 

1. A detailed specification, including trade names where appropriate, of all the 
proposed external materials shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority before work is commenced on site; Note: samples of the 
materials may be required. 

 
2. 16 cycle parking spaces shall be provided in a secure and undercover location 

to be agreed by the Planning Authority. The agreed spaces shall thereafter be 
implemented prior to the occupation of the residential properties hereby 
approved. NB Parking spaces may have to be reduced to allow for sufficient 
cycle parking. 

 
3. Electric charging points shall be installed in accordance with the Edinburgh 

Design Guidance prior to the occupation of the residential properties hereby 
approved. 

 
Reasons:- 
 

1. In order to enable the planning authority to consider this/these matter/s in detail. 
 

2. To ensure cycle parking standards are met 
 

3. To accord with design policies and guidance. 
 
 
 
Informatives 
 
It should be noted that: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the 
expiration of three years from the date of this consent. 

 
2. The incorporation of swift nesting sites/swift bricks into the scheme is 

recommended. Further details on swift bricks can be found at 
www.edinburgh.gov.uk/biodiversity 

 
3. No development shall take place on the site until a 'Notice of Initiation of 

Development' has been submitted to the Council stating the intended date on 
which the development is to commence.  Failure to do so constitutes a breach of 
planning control, under Section 123(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
4. As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the site, as 

authorised in the associated grant of permission, a 'Notice of Completion of 
Development' must be given, in writing to the Council. 

 
 

Page 22



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 9 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
There are no financial implications to the Council. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The previous use of the property was as a care home and therefore the loss of this 
facility should be considered in terms of the impacts on people with protected 
characteristics. 
 
The applicant has confirmed that the care home closed permanently in February 2021 
and that it had effectively become obsolescent with new care facilities opening within 
the catchment area at Seafield and Musselburgh which were designed to fully meet 
modern regulations and market expectations including, critically, phasing out shared 
rooms with all residents guaranteed a single private room with en-suite facilities.  
 
Abercorn Care Home had run for many years with an occupancy of 22 persons but 
when the occupancy reduced to 17 persons to avoid use of shared rooms, the 
operation was found to be no longer economically viable. 
 
As alternative better quality provision has been made in the catchment area, there is no 
adverse impact on people with protected characteristics. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
The scheme has received a total of ten representations, seven objecting, two neutral 
and one in support. 

 

 

Page 23



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 10 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Weronika Myslowiecka, Planning Officer 

E-mail:weronika.myslowiecka@edinburgh.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

Edinburgh Local Development Plan - Urban Area 

 

 

 Date registered 8 June 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-04, 05A-08A, 09-12, 13A-19A, 

 

 

 

Scheme 2 
 

 

Page 24

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 11 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 1 (Housing Development) sets criteria for assessing the principle of 
housing proposals. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 5 (Conversion to Housing) sets out the criteria for change of use of 
existing buildings to housing. 
 
LDP Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions) sets criteria for assessing alterations 
and extensions to existing buildings.  
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 2 (Private Car Parking) requires private car parking provision to comply 
with the parking levels set out in Council guidance, and sets criteria for assessing lower 
provision. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 2 (Housing Mix) requires provision of a mix of house types and sizes in 
new housing developments to meet a range of housing needs. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 4 (Housing Density) sets out the factors to be taken into account in 
assessing density levels in new development.  
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the 
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the 
Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking, 
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh. 
 
The Portobello Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the 
village/small town character of the area, the importance of the long sea-front 
promenade, the high quality architecture, and the predominant use of traditional 
building materials 
 

Page 25



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 12 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/03148/FUL 
At Abercorn Nursing Home, 11 Abercorn Terrace, Portobello 
East 
Change of use, extension and alteration of existing nursing 
care home to form 8 residential dwellings (as amended). 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
The application proposes the change of use a nursing home to 8 residential units. The 
site is within a generally residential area with Abercorn Park situated to the north. 
 
The application proposes 8 car parking spaces which is the same as the existing 
provision on site. Abercorn Terrace sits on a main arterial route into Portobello and is 
well serviced with public transport and excellent walking and cycling routes. The 
application has not delivered any options which would assist the Council in reducing air 
pollution or assist in dealing with the climate emergency. In this regard, the applicant 
has included 100% car parking provision, no electric vehicle charging infrastructure at 
the parking spaces and has included gas as a means of energy (which only serves to 
increase the background NOx levels in the locality). Environmental Protection would 
have preferred to see a car free development in this position or if parking is proposed 
then it should be reduced and include electric charging infrastructure. In addition, the 
use of gas does not accord with future Council aspirations for sustainable measures 
included within new homes. Environmental Protection would therefore urge the 
developer to reconsider the above issues to make the development more sustainable. 
 
However, based on existing planning policy, Environmental Protection does not object 
to the application. 
 
Waste Management 
 
As this is to be a residential development waste and cleansing services would be 
expected to be the service provider for the collection of any household domestic and 
recycling waste (Only).   
 
Waste strategy agreed at this stage Y/N Y 
 
I have been in contact with the architect for this development and I can confirm that 
they have provided the information for the waste collections and these are shown to be 
in line with our instruction for architects guidance and the developments waste and 
recycling requirements have been fully considered (guidance available here 
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/wasteplanning ). 
 

Page 26



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 13 of 13 21/03148/FUL 

I would ask that the architect passes my contact information to the developer/builder 
and to stress that they will need to contact this department a minimum of 12 weeks 
prior to any collection agreement to allow us time to arrange a site visit and to add 
these to our collection systems.  
A site visit will be conducted to ensure that this has been constructed in line with our 
agreement.  Any waste produced on site by the residents/occupants will be the 
responsibility of the developer/builder until such times as the final part of our agreement 
and waste collections are in place. 
 
Road Authority 
 
No objections to the proposed applications subject to the following conditions and 
informatives being included as appropriate: 
 
1. The applicant should be required to provide a minimum of 16 cycle parking spaces in 
a secure and undercover location. See note below; 
2. The applicant should consider developing a Travel Plan including provision of pedal 
cycles (inc. electric cycles), public transport travel passes, a Welcome Pack, a high-
quality map of the neighbourhood (showing cycling, walking and public transport routes 
to key local facilities), timetables for local public transport. 
 
Note: 
The proposed cycle parking location is not considered sufficiently secure. Cycle parking 
stands should of the Sheffield type and not require users to lift cycles. 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 1 of 20      18/02021/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 18 August 2021 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 18/02021/FUL 
at 84N Barnton Park View, Edinburgh. 
Conversion of existing lock-up garage (formerly a railway 
bridge) into a three bedroom dwelling. 

 

 

Summary 

 
The proposed development is acceptable in principle. The proposal's design and 
appearance are acceptable in its context and will sit comfortably in this location. 
Neighbouring privacy and amenity are retained to a good standard and future occupiers 
will enjoy an appropriate level of amenity and space within the property.  
 
The proposal accords with the Edinburgh Local Development Plan and Edinburgh 
Design guidance. Subject to conditions approval is recommended. 
 
 

Outcome of previous Committee  

 
This application was previously considered by Committee on 02.06.2021 
 
 

 

 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B01 - Almond 

Page 29

Agenda Item 4.2



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 2 of 20      18/02021/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LDES01, LDES03, LDES04, LDES05, LEN09, 

LEN10, LTRA02, LTRA03, NSG, NSGD02, LEN12, 

LEN15, LEN16, LHOU01, LHOU03, LHOU05, 

LTRA02, LTRA03, NSG, NSGD02,  

Page 30

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021   Page 3 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 18/02021/FUL 
at 84N Barnton Park View, Edinburgh. 
Conversion of existing lock-up garage (formerly a railway 
bridge) into a three bedroom dwelling. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is a former railway bridge, with its arch enclosed and in use as a lock up, 
situated at the end of an access road that serves a number of domestic garages, 
located behind a three storey, brick built, residential development on Barnton Park 
View. Barnton Court and its grounds lie immediately to the west. The site is flanked by 
mature trees to the south and to the north, the latter leading onto the Royal Burgess 
Golf Course. 
 
The site is restricted to the bridge and two angular parcels of land to the east and west 
of the structure. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
There is no relevant planning history for this site. 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
The application seeks planning permission for the conversion and extension of an 
existing lock-up garage (a remnant railway bridge) to a three bedroom house, with 
open plan living space and car parking. The extended building would be two storeys in 
height, with an increase in building footprint at the ground floor level.  
 
Proposed materials include external walls of zinc cladding at the east and west 
elevations, with untreated larch cladding at the side elevations facing north and south. 
Entrance and garden doors would include weathered steel detailing. Roof materials 
include zinc cladding, roofing membrane and the property has grey framed glazing. 
Retaining walls of the former bridge will be retained as part of the proposal. 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 4 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

An area of private decking at the first floor is located at the east elevation. Private 
garden space would be provided in the curtilage of the property to the north, south and 
west around the building and boundary treatments include a mixture of hedging and 
1.1-metre-high fencing. Garden space at the north and south of the property, between 
the former bridge abutments, would be elevated and sloping, with a high point of four 
metres at the external decking level and a gradual incline to ground level. 
 
Two trees within the site boundary at its western point are proposed for removal to 
facilitate the ground floor extension and creation of garden space. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
b) the development design is acceptable and will not be detrimental to 

neighbourhood character;    
c) the proposal results in any neighbouring amenity issues; 
d) the proposal provides an adequate amenity for the future occupiers;  
e) the proposal raises any issues in respect of transportation and parking;  
f) the proposal will impact on nearby trees;  
g) the site is of archaeological significance; 
h) any other matters must be considered and 
i) public comments raised have been addressed. 

 
(a) Principle 
 
Policy Hou 1 within the Edinburgh Local Development Plan (LDP) lends priority to the 
delivery of housing on suitable land in the urban area. Clause d) of the policy states 
that "Housing development will be permitted on other suitable sites within the 'Urban 
Area', provided proposals are compatible with other policies in the Plan."  
 
The majority of the site, including the main bridge structure that would be adapted, is 
designated as urban area within the LDP. The principle of housing development on this 
site is acceptable subject to compliance with other relevant policies. 
 

Page 32



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 5 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

A small section to the north of the site is designated as 'Green Belt' and is part of a 
'Local Nature Conservation Site'. LDP Policies Env 10, Env 15 and Env 16 are 
applicable to this proposal. 
 
Green Belt 
 
LDP Policy Env 10 - Development in the Green Belt and Countryside seeks to control 
the type and scale of development within the green belt to enable it to fulfil its important 
role in terms of landscape setting and countryside recreation. 
 
LDP Policy Env 10 contains a number of criteria for assessing applications. In this 
regard, critierion c) is most relevant. This criterion states that for development relating 
to an existing building or intensification of the use, the proposals will be expected to be 
appropriate in terms of scale, design and traffic impact. These issues are explored 
further below. 
 
In assessment of the proposals against Env 10, the area of the site which is designated 
as green belt will have no new development on it and is proposed to be garden space. 
Although this will form part of a curtilage of a dwellinghouse, the proposal will have no 
adverse impact on the green belt or the landscape setting of the city. The proposal is 
for the alteration of an existing structure and this is appropriate in terms of the high 
quality and uniquely designed dwelling.  The proposal complies with LDP Policy Env 10 
. 
 
Local Nature Conservation Site and Protected Species 
 
LDP Policy Env 15 - Sites of Local Importance does not permit development on a Local 
Nature Conservation Site if it is likely to have an adverse impact on the flora, fauna, 
landscape, and geological features.  
 
LDP Policy Env 16 - Species Protection states that permission will not be granted for 
development that would have an adverse impact on protected species unless a full 
survey has been carried out of the current status of the species and its use of the site. 
 
There is no new development on the section of the site within the Local Nature 
Conservation site. As such, there will be no adverse impact on the flora, fauna, 
landscape, and geological features afforded to the Local Nature Conservation Site. 
 
The applicant submitted an updated ecological survey; evidence of badgers passing 
through the site was found. However, there are no badger setts within a 50 metre 
radius of the site. An informative is recommended regarding the protection of any 
badgers which may pass through the site during the development's construction stage. 
 
The site had no evidence of roosting bats, and the development would not have an 
adverse effect on bats' foraging areas.  
 
It was identified that nesting birds could be impacted upon by the construction phase of 
development, dependant on timing. It should be noted that the disturbance of nesting 
birds would be controlled under separate legislation, and it would be inappropriate to 
seek to control this aspect by way of a planning condition. However, an informative 
highlighting the need to protect any nesting birds is recommended. 

Page 33



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 6 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

 
The development will not have an adverse impact on protected species; therefore, the 
proposal complies with LDP Policy Env 16.  
 
The proposal complies with LDP policies Hou 1, Env 10, Env 15 and Env 16.  
 
(b) Development Design 
 
LDP Policy Des 1 - Design Quality and Context states that planning permission will not 
be granted for inappropriately design development proposals or for proposals that 
would be damaging to the character or appearance of the area around it.  
 
LDP Policy Des 3 (Development Design - Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and 
Potential Features) states that planning permission will be granted for development 
where it is demonstrated that existing characteristics and features worthy of retention 
on the site and in the surrounding area, have been identified, incorporated and 
enhanced through its design. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 - Development Design - Impact on Setting states that planning 
permission will be granted for development where it is demonstrated that it will have a 
positive impact on its surroundings, having regards to height and form; scale and 
proportions, including spaces between buildings; position of buildings and other 
features on the site; and materials and detailing.  
 
LDP Policy Des 9 (Urban Edge Development) seeks to conserve the city boundary 
where sites are at the green belt boundary. 
 
The surrounding neighbourhood has a settled townscape character, mainly comprising 
a range of flatted dwellings between two and five storeys in height with varying 
architectural design. There are also detached and semi-detached dwellings with 
gardens to the front and back, again varying in design. Overall, the neighbourhood 
character is predominantly residential, set within a mature soft landscape.  
 
The proposed conversion of this building would bring a historic structure into residential 
use. The building's position is established in the urban pattern. The site's layout, 
including the proposed garden boundaries, would be acceptable and proportionate to 
the scale of development. The property would be two storeys, with the proposal 
introducing a new upper floor to the bridge structure and an enlarged ground floor 
footprint at the east and west elevations. Surrounding properties closest to the 
application site are between three storeys to the east and six storeys at the west. The 
proposed property would sit at the end of a cul-de-sac to the rear of the three storey 
building with the six storey property behind. The proposed building would integrate well 
into the streetscape. The proposed two-storey development is acceptable in terms of its 
height within the context of its surroundings.  
 
The proposal retains existing features, including the bridge retaining walls and stone 
walls. The addition of zinc cladding, larch cladding and glazing would introduce a 
considerable degree of change to the former bridge. However, the balance and blend 
of original and modern materials would provide an architectural juxtaposition that would 
form an appropriate and striking design. It would be in accordance with the aims of LDP 
Policy Des 4 and LDP Policy Des 3.  

Page 34



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 7 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

 
The proposal would form a garden space within the area of green belt that is located in 
the application boundary.  There would be no material diminution of the landscape 
setting of the city and the proposal conserves the character of the green belt boundary.  
 
The proposed design is acceptable, and the development complies with LDP Policies 
Des 1, Des 3, Des 4 and Des 9.  
 
(c) Neighbouring Amenity 
 
LDP Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions) seeks to protect the amenity and 
privacy of neighbours where alterations and extensions to existing buildings are 
proposed.  
 
Criterion b) of LDP Policy Hou 5 (Conversion to Housing) further seeks to ensure 
changes of use to housing will be compatible with nearby uses.  
 
The non-statutory Edinburgh Design Guidance (EDG) states that the pattern of 
development in an area will help to define appropriate distances between buildings and 
consequential privacy distances. In this case, the applicant proposes to re-use and 
enhance an existing building and there will be no material change to the built pattern in 
the area. However, the effect of introducing a change of use to residential must be 
considered in the context of neighbouring amenity.   
 
The existing bridge structure is off set to the north west of neighbouring apartments to 
the south. The distance of the decking at the east elevation to apartments at number 86 
Barnton Park View would be approximately 13 metres and at an oblique angle. The 
decking is also partially screened by the existing bridge wall. There would be no 
unacceptable impact on privacy and the introduction of a residential use to this location 
does not adversely affect neighbouring residential amenity. Given the distance to 
neighbouring properties, there would be no adverse impact on daylight or sunlight to 
these.  
 
The proposed use would have no greater impact on traffic levels and noise and 
disturbance, and indeed could be less intrusive, given its residential setting. 
 
The proposed change of use and alteration of this building would not impact on any 
protected views or on the outlook or amenity of neighbouring residents. The proposal 
accords LDP Policies Des 12 and Hou 5, in addition to the Edinburgh Design 
Guidance.  
 
(d) Amenity for the Future Occupiers 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design-Amenity) requires future occupiers to have 
acceptable levels of amenity in relation to noise, daylight, sunlight, privacy, or 
immediate outlook.  
 
Criterion a) of LDP Policy Hou 5 - Conversion to Housing requires new development to 
create an attractive residential environment for future residents in housing 
development.  
 

Page 35



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 8 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

LDP Policy Hou 3 (Private Green Space in Housing Development) requires the 
adequate provision of green space to meet the needs of future residents.  
 
The proposal would provide a small, angular garden area to the west of the building, 
sloping garden space to the north and south of the building and an external deck at the 
east elevation. The private external space would provide an acceptable standard and 
quantity of open space for future residents in compliance with criterion c) of LDP Policy 
Hou 5 and Policy Hou 3.    
 
The Edinburgh Design Guidance requires a minimum internal floor area of 81 sqm for a 
three-bedroom unit.  The proposed internal floor space would measure 143 sqm. and 
exceeds the recommended area for a three-bedroom unit and this is acceptable.  
 
Ground floor rooms are lit with a combination of windows and roof lights. One of the 
three bedrooms relies on roof lights only to receive natural light; however, this is the 
only habitable room that has such an arrangement and this is acceptable in the context 
of the other ground floor rooms which all have windows or roof lights and will benefit 
from reasonable levels of daylight.  
 
Although some windows at the gable ends are in close proximity to the retaining walls 
of the existing bridge; the nature of these windows is acceptable in the context of 
adapting this structure and the design demonstrates that the ground floor rooms would 
have an appropriate level of amenity for future occupiers.  The upper floor would 
receive a good level of natural daylight via windows at the south and west elevation 
elevations and a large area of glazing at the north elevation.  
 
In terms of floorspace, external amenity space, privacy and daylight provision, the 
proposal complies with LDP Policies Des 5, Hou 5, Hou 3 and the Edinburgh Design 
Guidance. 
 
(e) Transport and Parking 
 
The Council's parking standards permits a maximum of 1 car parking space within 
Zone 2 for a new dwelling house.  The proposal has one car parking space located 
within a garage. The proposal complies with LDP Policy Tra 2 - Private Car Parking. 
 
The provision of two cycle parking spaces is required for a three-bed room unit within 
Zone 2. Cycle parking can be located internally within the garage of the proposed 
development and complies with LDP Policy Tra 3 - Private Cycle Parking.  
 
The development of a single residential unit would have no measurable impact on 
traffic numbers using the local road network. Refuse collection would be available from 
the street and Transport raises no concerns.  
 
The proposal would have no adverse impact on road safety or on congestion and 
complies with LDP Policies Tra 2 and Tra 3. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 9 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

(f) Impact on Trees 
 
LDP Policy Env 12 - Trees specifies that trees should not be removed unless 
necessary for good arboricultural reasons. The Edinburgh Design Guidance states that 
a tree survey is required in the form specified in BS 5837:2012 for all trees with a stem 
diameter of 75mm or more at 1.5 metres above ground on the site or within 12 metres 
of its boundary. Trees should then be categorised in accordance with their quality and 
suitability for retention.  
 
Two trees are located within the site's red line boundary and are identified for removal 
to facilitate the proposed development. These trees are in close proximity to the 
existing garage, covering part of the west elevation, and their removal is acceptable in 
this circumstance. The trees are not covered by a tree protection order, nor is the site 
within a conservation area. The removal of these two trees does not diminish the 
character of the area, having regard to the nearby green belt boundary. The 
introduction of boundary hedge planting around the garden spaces would provide 
appropriate mitigation in terms of soft landscaping.  
 
The applicant's design statement notes that the site is bounded to the north by rows of 
mature trees. The area to the east is an existing paved area and unlikely to impact 
upon existing trees or roots. The area to the west is an open grassed space; extending 
the building in this direction may have an impact on trees within 12 metres of the 
application site boundary. It should be noted that these trees are not afforded any 
statutory protection. Nonetheless, a condition securing the implementation of tree 
protection measures is recommended to ensure trees are protected.  
 
The proposal is acceptable in the context of LDP Policy Env 12.  
 
(g) Archaeology 
 
This site has been identified as part of an area of archaeology significance. It is 
accepted that the proposal would have significant adverse impacts upon the fabric of 
the structure. However, in archaeological terms, the impacts are acceptable providing a 
condition is attached requiring the applicant to secure the implementation of a 
programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation.  
 
This complies with LDP Policy Env 9 - Development of Sites of Archaeological 
Significance. 
 
(h) Any other matters raised 
 
Environmental Health  
 
Environmental Protection note in consultation comments that due to the site's historical 
use as a railway bridge, there is a possibility of land contamination. Therefore, a site 
investigation will be required and it recommended that a condition to this effect is 
attached to any planning permission.  
 
 
 

Page 37



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 10 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

Neighbour Notification Process 
 
There is a concern regarding the neighbour notification process.  It has been confirmed 
that the notification process has been carried out in accordance with statutory 
requirements.  
 
(i) Public Comments 
 
Material Representations - Objection 
 

− Design of the building is not in-keeping with the character of the area - 
addressed in Section 3.3 b);  

− Proposed materials not in-keeping with the character of the area - addressed in 
section 3.3 b);  

− Impact on the visual appearance of historic bridge - addressed in section 3.3 b); 

− Amenity for occupiers of the development is poor - addressed in section 3.3 d);  

− Impact on neighbouring amenity in terms of daylight and overshadowing - 
addressed in section 3.3 c); 

− Impact on neighbouring amenity in terms of privacy and outlook - addressed in 
section 3.3 c);  

− Impact on parking and traffic - addressed in section 3.3 e);  

− Impact on trees - addressed in section 3.3 f);  

− Impact on conservation and local wildlife - addressed in section 3.3 h);  

− Concerns over refuse - addressed in section 3.3 e);  

− Insufficient neighbour notification process - addressed in section 3.3(h).  
 
 
Non- Material Representations - Objection 
 

− Noise, dust and pollution caused by construction vehicles; 

− Parking and traffic disruption caused by construction vehicles; 

− Access to utilities affected during construction; 

− Potential damage to paved area and cobbled road due to heavy construction 
vehicles;  

− Potential structural damage to neighbouring flats caused by construction; 

− Title deeds do not allow parking and storage on site; impact of this during 
construction; 

− Health and safety implications for pedestrians during construction; 

− Potential illegal activity due to building materials being left on site; 

− Residents who have tended the grounds for decades claim land ownership 
rights under ' Prescription and Limitation Scotland" Act 1973; 

− Concern raised over siting and potential removal of existing garden bench 
owned by residents within site boundary; 

− Access rights; 

− Impact on access for emergency vehicles and other services such as 
maintenance vehicles and window cleaning vehicles; 
 
 
 

Page 38



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 11 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

− Land ownership of two garages erected stated incorrectly in Design and Access 
Statement; 

− Concern raised over potential implications for neighbours if development would 
cease before completion; 

− Residents comment about cost of council tax for living on a potential building 
site.  

 
Community Council - Objection 
 
Material Comments 
 

− No species survey - addressed in section 3.3 h); 

− Design of the building - addressed in Section 3.3 b);  

− Impact on parking and traffic - addressed in section 3.3 e);  
 
Non- Material Comments 
 

− Content of the applicant's design statement. 
 
Report Summary  
 
The proposed development is acceptable in principle and would deliver a new housing 
unit to this part of the city by adapting a historic bridge structure. The proposal's design 
and appearance are acceptable in its context and would sit comfortably in this location. 
Neighbouring privacy and amenity are protected to a satisfactory standard and future 
occupier would enjoy an appropriate level of amenity and space within the property.  
 
The proposal accords with the Edinburgh Local Development Plan and Edinburgh 
Design guidance. Subject to conditions approval is recommended. 
 
 
Addendum to Assessment 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Conditions:- 
 
1. i)    Prior to the commencement of construction works on site: 
 

a)         A site survey (including intrusive investigation where necessary) must be 
carried out to establish, either that the level of risk posed to human health and 
the wider environment by contaminants in, on or under the land is acceptable, or 
that remedial and/or protective measures could be undertaken to bring the risks 
to an acceptable level in relation to the development; and 

 
b)         Where necessary, a detailed schedule of any required remedial and/or 
protective measures, including their programming, must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 

Page 39



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 12 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

 
ii)   Any required remedial and/or protective measures shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved schedule and documentary evidence to certify 
those works shall be provided for the approval of the Planning Authority. 

 
2. No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority, having first been agreed by the City 
Archaeologist. 

 
3. The trees on the site shall be protected during the construction period by the 

erection of fencing, in accordance with BS 5837:2012 " Trees in relation to 
design, demolition and construction". 

 
Reasons: - 
 
1. In order to protect the health of the building's occupants. 
 
2. In order to safeguard the interests of archaeological heritage. 
 
3. In order to protect trees surrounding the application site. 
 
 
Informatives 
 
It should be noted that: 
 
1.  The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the 

expiration of three years from the date of this consent. 
 
2. No development shall take place on the site until a 'Notice of Initiation of 

Development' has been submitted to the Council stating the intended date on 
which the development is to commence.  Failure to do so constitutes a breach of 
planning control, under Section 123(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
3.  As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the site, as 

authorised in the associated grant of permission, a 'Notice of Completion of 
Development' must be given, in writing to the Council. 

 
 4.  Badger Protection 

− Open excavations should be kept to a minimum across the whole site and 
covered overnight or fitted with a means of escape to prevent otters or 
other animals becoming trapped. This should be in the form of mammal 
ramps, i.e., a plank of wood sturdy enough to be used by badgers should 
they fall into any open excavations. 

− All workers on site should be briefed about the presence of badgers, and 
signs of badger activity.  

− Clearing procedures should specify that only trees and plants designated 
for removal shall be removed.  

Page 40



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 13 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

− Materials generated by construction activities should be placed above 
ground or secured so badgers will not come into contact with them. 

 
5.  It is recommended that the car garage is equipped with an electric vehicle 

charging station of minimum standard 7kW (16 amp) or better. 
 
Grants are also available for the installation of EV charge points more information can 
be found at; 
 
http://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/scotland/Organisations/Transport/Electric-
vehicles/Electric-Vehicle-Charge-Point-Funding 
 
 6.  Breeding Birds 

Clearance of vegetation from the proposed construction area has the potential to 
disturb nesting birds; therefore, clearance should be carried out outside the bird 
nesting season March - August (inclusive). Should it be necessary to clear 
ground during the bird nesting season the land should be surveyed by a suitably 
qualified ecologist and declared clear of nesting birds before vegetation 
clearance starts. 

 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
There are no financial implications to the Council. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 14 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Neighbours were notified of the application on 17 May 2018 and 44 letters of 
representations were received, all objecting. These include comments from Cramond & 
Barnton Community Council. 
 
A full assessment of the representations can be found in the main report of the 
Assessment Section. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 42

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 15 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing 
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated. 
 
LDP Policy Des 3 (Development Design - Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and 
Potential Features) supports development where it is demonstrated that existing and 
potential features have been incorporated into the design. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

A majority of the site lies within the Urban Area as 

defined in the 2016 Edinburgh Local Development Plan.  

 

A part of the site lies within Green Belt and a Local 

Nature Conservation Site as designated in the 2016 

Edinburgh Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 8 May 2018 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01,02,03A-06A,07,08A, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 43



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 16 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Env 9 (Development of Sites of Archaeological Significance) sets out the 
circumstances in which development affecting sites of known or suspected 
archaeological significance will be permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 10 (Development in the Green Belt and Countryside) identifies the 
types of development that will be permitted in the Green Belt and Countryside. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 2 (Private Car Parking) requires private car parking provision to comply 
with the parking levels set out in Council guidance, and sets criteria for assessing lower 
provision. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 3 (Private Cycle Parking) requires cycle parking provision in 
accordance with standards set out in Council guidance. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the 
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the 
Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking, 
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh. 
 
LDP Policy Env 12 (Trees) sets out tree protection requirements for new development. 
 
LDP Policy Env 15 (Sites of Local Importance) identifies the circumstances in which 
development likely to affect Sites of Local Importance will be permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 16 (Species Protection) sets out species protection requirements for 
new development. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 1 (Housing Development) sets criteria for assessing the principle of 
housing proposals. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 3 (Private Green Space in Housing Development) sets out the 
requirements for the provision of private green space in housing development. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 5 (Conversion to Housing) sets out the criteria for change of use of 
existing buildings to housing. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 2 (Private Car Parking) requires private car parking provision to comply 
with the parking levels set out in Council guidance and sets criteria for assessing lower 
provision. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 3 (Private Cycle Parking) requires cycle parking provision in 
accordance with standards set out in Council guidance. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 

Page 44



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 17 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

 
Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the 
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the 
Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking, 
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh. 
 

Page 45



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 18 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 18/02021/FUL 
At 84N Barnton Park View, Edinburgh,  
Conversion of existing lock-up garage (formerly a railway 
bridge) into a three bedroom dwelling. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Archaeology 
 
This application affects the late Victorian (1896) railway bridge constructed as part of 
branch line of the former Caledonian Railway terminating immediately to the west at 
Cramond Bridge Station. The bridge was constructed over part of Bonneyfield Farm, 
first depicted on Knox's 1812 plan of the area. The 1849 1st edition plan shows the 
farm as a dispersed series of buildings with one possibly located on this site.  
 
This former railway bridge is regarded as being of local archaeological and historic 
significance. This application must be considered therefore under terms the Historic 
Environment Scotland Policy Statement (HESPS) 2016 and Archaeology Strategy, 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), PAN 02/2011 and Edinburgh Local Development Plan 
(2016) policies ENV8 & ENV9.  
 
The proposals to convert this historic Victorian railway bridge will have significant 
adverse impacts upon the fabric of this structure. Although significant and adverse, it 
has been concluded in archaeological and heritage terms such impacts are considered 
acceptable. However it is essential that should the Planning Authority grant consent, 
that a programme a historic building recording is undertaken combing detailed survey 
of surviving structure (phased plans and elevations, photographic and written survey) in 
order to provide an accurate record of the bridge combined with an archaeological 
watching brief during conversion work. 
 
It is recommended that the following condition is attached if consent is granted to 
ensure that this programme of archaeological works is undertaken; 
 
'No demolitions or development shall take place on the site until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work (historic building 
recording, excavation, analysis and reporting) in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Planning 
Authority.'  
 
The work must be carried out by a professional archaeological organisation, either 
working to a brief prepared by CECAS or through a written scheme of investigation 
submitted to and agreed by CECAS for the site. Responsibility for the execution and 
resourcing of the programme of archaeological works and for the archiving and 
appropriate level of publication of the results lies with the applicant. 
 

Page 46



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 19 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

Environmental Protection 
 
The application site occupies the space between a 6-storey mid-rise block of flats to the 
west (Barnton Court) and a series of 3-storey blocks with ancillary garages to the east.  
The Royal Burgess golf course is located to the North, with the adjacent boundary 
edged with rows of mature trees.  
 
Due to the site's historical use as a railway bridge, there is a possibility of land 
contamination.  Therefore, a site investigation will be required.   
 
The site is located in an established residential area and there are no other 
Environmental Health issues of concern.  Although an informative has been 
recommended for an electric vehicle charging point. 
 
Environmental Protection has no objection to this application subject to the following 
condition. 
 
Conditions 
 
1) i)    Prior to the commencement of construction works on site: 
 
a)         A site survey (including intrusive investigation where necessary) must be 
carried out to establish, either that the level of risk posed to human health and the 
wider environment by contaminants in, on or under the land is acceptable, or that 
remedial and/or protective measures could be undertaken to bring the risks to an 
acceptable level in relation to the development; and 
 
b)         Where necessary, a detailed schedule of any required remedial and/or 
protective measures, including their programming, must be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Planning Authority. 
 
 ii)   Any required remedial and/or protective measures shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved schedule and documentary evidence to certify those 
works shall be provided for the approval of the Planning Authority. 
 
 
Informative 
 
1. It is recommended that the car garage is equipped with an electric vehicle 
charging station of minimum standard 7kW (16 amp) or better. 
 
Grants are also available for the installation of EV charge points more information can 
be found at; 
 
http://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/scotland/Organisations/Transport/Electric-
vehicles/Electric-Vehicle-Charge-Point-Funding 
 
Roads Authority 
 
A maximum of 1 car parking space per unit.   
A minimum of 3 cycle parking spaces (for 4 rooms or more). 

Page 47



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 20 of 20 18/02021/FUL 

 
One car parking space is being provided. It is noted that the cycle parking can be 
accommodated within the garage. 
 
Therefore, the development meets the current parking standards. 
 
Note; 
 
The section of the carriageway adjacent is not adopted by the Council for maintenance 
purposes, being served by an adopted footway only. 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 48



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 1 of 26      20/05222/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 18 August 2021 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 20/05222/FUL 
At 13 Edinburgh Road, Edinburgh, EH30 9HR 
Erect new standalone workshop / studio building with 
separate access. 

 

 

Summary 

 
The proposed development is not acceptable in principle in this location. Whilst the 
development will not harm the special interest of nearby listed buildings, it is of 
inappropriate design and siting and will not preserve or enhance the character of the 
conservation area.  The proposal does not comply with the adopted Local Development 
Plan. There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion. 
 
 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LDES01, LDES01, LDES03, LDES04, LDES05, 

LDES07, LDES10, LDES11, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, 

LEN08, LEN09, LEN11, LEN13, LEN14, LEN15, 

LEN16, LEN21, LEN22, LEMP08,  

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B01 - Almond 

Page 49

Agenda Item 4.3

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021   Page 2 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 20/05222/FUL 
At 13 Edinburgh Road, Edinburgh, EH30 9HR 
Erect new standalone workshop / studio building with 
separate access. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site lies within the grounds of No. 13 Edinburgh Road, South Queensferry. It is 
sited at the east end of South Queensferry High Street, at the edge of the Seals Craig 
rock next to the shoreline. It is within the defined South Queensferry Conservation 
Area. It also lies just on the edge of the Southern Forth Coast a Special Landscape 
Area (SLA) as well as the Firth of Forth Special Protected Area (SPA) and Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).  
 
The site is directly on the bedrock that leads down to the water's edge. It is currently 
open land and only has an excavated area within the rock which partially contains the 
foundations of a building which previously existed approximately 100 years ago. 
 
To the south/south east of the site, a new dwelling house (No. 13) was approved under 
(07/04626/FUL). This has now been constructed. There are a number of listed 
buildings relatively nearby on the High Street. 
 
The access lane to the site appears to have historically given access as a slipway. It is 
believed that there is a traditional right of way through the site to the shoreline. 
 
To the north, the site has an open panorama of the Forth Bridges. 
This application site is located within the Queensferry Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
There is no relevant planning history for this site. 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 3 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

Main report 

3.1 Description Of The Proposal 
 
The application is for planning permission for the formation of a 3 storey building. The 
submitted plans show that the ground floor of the building shall be utilised as a 
workshop which has its own ground floor access. There are separate stairs which lead 
up to a studio above, which contains a kitchen and bathroom and a mezzanine level 
above that. The applicant has stated that the studio and workshop will be utilised as 
ancillary accommodation and workspace for the applicant whose principal 
accommodation is the main dwelling (No. 13) located within the site.   
 
Supporting Documents 
 
The following documents have been submitted in support of the application and are 
available to view on the Planning and Building Standards Online Services:  
 

− Planning/Design Statement  

− Surface Water Drainage Strategy 

− Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) 
 
  
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 4 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

3.3 Assessment  
 
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the principle of development at this location is acceptable; 
 

b) the proposal will Impact on the setting of listed buildings;  
 

c) the proposal will harm the Outstanding Universal Value of the defined World 
Heritage Site. 

 
d) the proposal will preserve or enhance the character of the conservation area; 

 
e) the proposal is of an appropriate scale, form and design; 

 
f) the proposal will impact on Special Landscape Areas and Protected Views;  

 
g) the proposal will impact upon the natural environment and Sites of International 

Importance; 
 

h) the proposal will result in a satisfactory residential environment; 
 

i) the proposed use would result in any material loss of amenity to neighbouring 
properties; 

 
j) other material matters have been addressed; and 

 
k) public comments have been addressed. 

 
 
(a) The Principle of Development in this Location 
 
The applicant has stated that the first floor of the proposed building will be utilised as a 
studio which will provide ancillary accommodation to their principal dwelling. Above that 
is a mezzanine level.   
 
However, the plans submitted with the application show that the studio proposed will 
have its own private access as well as a kitchen and toilet facilities. As such the 
proposal could be utilised as a separate residential unit and should be assessed as 
such.   
 
LDP policy Hou 1 (Housing Development) states that priority will be given to the 
delivery of housing land supply and the relevant infrastructure on suitable sites in the 
urban area, provided proposals are compatible with other policies in the plan.  
 
The proposal is within the defined urban area. The report will consider whether the 
proposal is compatible with other policies in the plan.  
 
The ground floor of the proposed building is indicated as being a workshop and there 
are facilities at the upper level which could constitute a dwelling unit or be used for 
other functions such as short term visitor accommodation. The applicant has confirmed 

Page 52



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 5 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

that the workshop will be used for personal hobby craft & DIY using hand tools only and 
the upper floor will be ancillary to the main dwelling house. If the application was to be 
granted, it is recommended that a legal agreement be required to ensure that the uses 
are ancillary to the main dwelling house and short term visitor accommodation be 
specifically excluded. 
 
(b) Listed Buildings 
 
Section 59 (1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states: "In considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority or the Secretary of 
State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the 
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it 
possesses." 
 
LDP policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) states that development within the 
curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be permitted only if not 
detrimental to the architectural character, appearance or historic interest of the building 
or to its setting.  
 
Historic Environment Scotland's Guidance Note on Managing Change in the Historic 
Environment: Setting states that setting can be important to the way in which historic 
structures or places are understood, appreciated and experienced. It can often be 
integral to a historic asset's cultural significance.  
 
It is noted that there are several listed buildings located directly along Edinburgh Road. 
However, given that the application site is located quite far out into Seals Craig Rock, 
the proposal will have no material impact upon the settings of these buildings.  
 
The category A listed Forth Bridge and Road Bridge are located a significant distance 
away from the site. However, it is acknowledged that the site is an area in which the 
bridges are viewed, appreciated and experienced. From certain view points within 
South Queensferry the proposal will have an impact upon key views.  However, the 
proposed building is relatively small, in context, and there will still be numerous places 
where the bridge can be understood, appreciated and experienced.  
 
Historic Environment Scotland was consulted as part of the assessment of the 
application. It offered no comments or objections to the proposal in terms of its potential 
impact upon the setting of the Forth Bridge.  
 
The application complies with LDP policies Env 3 and the relevant Historic Environment 
Scotland Managing Change in the Historic Environment guidance notes.  
 
(c) World Heritage Site 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 - World Heritage Sites states that development which would harm the 
qualities which justified the inscription of the Forth Bridge will not be permitted. 
 
The Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the Forth Bridge is defined as  
 

Page 53



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 6 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

Criterion (i): The Forth Bridge is a masterpiece of creative genius because of its 
distinctive industrial aesthetic, which is the result of a forthright, unadorned display of 
its massive, functional structural elements. 
 
Criterion (iv): The Forth Bridge is an extraordinary and impressive milestone in the 
evolution of bridge design and construction during the period when railways came to 
dominate long-distance land travel, innovative in its concept, its use of mild steel, and 
its enormous scale.  
 
The Forth Bridge is located a significant distance away from the site and the proposed 
building is relatively small in context.  
 
Historic Environment Scotland was consulted as part of the assessment of the 
application. It offered no comments or objections to the proposal in terms of its potential 
impact upon the OUV of the Forth Bridge.  
 
The proposal will not have a detrimental impact on the OUV of the World Heritage Site. 
It complies with LDP policy Env 1. 
 
 
(d) Conservation Area 
 
Section 64(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states: "In exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation 
area, of any powers under any of the provisions in subsection (2), special attention 
shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance 
of that area." 
 
Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) in the LDP requires development 
proposals to preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the conservation 
area and permits development which is consistent with the relevant conservation 
character appraisal.  The application site lies within the South Queensferry 
Conservation area.  
 
The South Queensferry Conservation Area Character Appraisal (SQCACA) highlights 
the conservation areas key significance.  
 
Statement of significance 
 
The architectural form and character of Queensferry is rich and varied with many fine 
historic buildings dating from its origins as a medieval burgh and following through 
several periods including Georgian and Victorian, to the present day. The materials are 
traditional: 
stone and harl, slate and pantiles, timber windows and doors. The roofscape is 
important with its variations in form and features, such as crow-step gables, a variety of 
dormer styles and chimneys with cans. The shoreline setting embraces the waterfront 
buildings and the 
historic settlement is framed within the Victorian rail bridge and the 1960s road bridge 
 
A significant level of uniformity is achieved from the use of local building materials, 
despite the considerable range of building styles. The predominant materials form a 

Page 54



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 7 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

restricted palette of rubble and dressed sandstone, render and slate roofing. The 
variety of treatment provides interest with decorative tooling and carved stonework, 
often reflecting maritime connections, pediments, doorframes and marriage lintels, 
dressed or rendered margin bands, chamfered corners, gable windows and crowsteps, 
cast iron signs and railings. 
 
Small-scale development opportunities for infill or replacement may arise within the 
historic core, and will be considered under the policies and guidance listed at 5.1. 
Development on a significant scale is unlikely to take place within the conservation 
area although a number of sites on its peripheries may be affected, such as Port Edgar, 
the Corus site adjacent to the Forth Bridges Contact and Information Centre and at the 
wider edges of the settlement, particularly when the Queensferry Crossing comes into 
use. In most instances development is unlikely to have a significant visual impact on 
the setting of the conservation area or the Bridges owing to the topography, domestic 
scale and intervening development. However, proposals will be monitored to ensure 
the sensitivities of these features are taken into account.  
 
The information submitted with the application shows that there was historically a 
building on this site. Although it appears that it was a relatively small and low lying 
building of traditional design. The remaining excavation where the building previously 
was is now covered by grass and weeds and it is not obvious that there was ever a 
building on the site.   
 
Overall the current appearance of the site is one that is geological in form, open and 
largely undisturbed by development. It is a significant and important area of land that 
contributes highly to the character and appearance of the defined conservation area. It 
provides open space and opportunities to take in the character and setting of the Firth 
of Forth, the Rail Bridge and importantly, the conservation area itself.  
 
The SQCACA goes into detail about the importance of views and connectivity with the 
shoreline.  It notes The early part of the town is located on the shoreline and within a 
bay formed by two promontories, the Binks to the west and Craigs to the east.  
 
Within the conservation area, mid-and short-range views are important along the gently 
curving High Street and out towards the Forth, the Fife coast and the bridges through 
gaps in the northern building line and from the Hawes Promenade. Glimpse views 
along pends and narrow lanes, of the harbours and Forth to the north and gardens to 
the south, add to the picturesque qualities of the townscape.  
 
Seals Craig creates a kink in the line of the road and forms an inner gateway and 
shelter to the High Street. The beaches, harbours and piers provide distinctive spaces 
within the town and spectacular, panoramic viewpoints. Visitors are a major factor in 
the town's activity, drawn by views of the bridges and access to the water."  
 
In the section of the SQCACA "Under Pressures and Sensitivities" it is noted The 
vennels leading north and south from the High Street are also at risk from privatisation 
of access, blocking of glimpse views and pedestrian routes, and erosion of traditional 
surfacing materials." 
 

Page 55



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 8 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

Traditionally the foreshore tends to be publicly accessible land and so this site has 
been accessible by the public and enjoyed by them for many years. The site lies just off 
one of Edinburgh's defined Core Paths (CEC 6-Firth of Forth) 
 
Planning permission was granted under 07/04626/FUL for the erection of a dwelling 
house on another part of the site, further away from the coast.  
 
Since the application above has been constructed, it is evident that the owner has 
personalised the space around the new dwelling, with garden plants, potters and 
various garden furniture including a small shed. On one site visit, a car was parked 
across the lane which almost restricted access to the site entirely. It is no longer that 
obvious that this is an area in which the public can access and enjoy the views from 
this element of the shoreline.  Many of the objections submitted also reflect these 
concerns.   
 
The building proposed within the site will further restrict access/connectivity along the 
shore. It is noted that The Land Reform (Scotland) Act 2003 excludes the curtilage & 
gardens of private dwellings to protect their privacy and prevent disturbance. Overall, it 
is questionable whether the current public access can be maintained in future 
especially if the new building is erected. The building footprint itself takes up quite a 
large area and will prevent all access to the north and east of it, due to the shape of the 
rocks and drop below. Access may be further reduced if the owner wishes to include 
further protective measures for their privacy and protection of this area.  
 
Alternative public access around the rock promontory is unlikely along the foreshore at 
high tide so the present connectivity along the coastline at this point will be broken.  
 
The proposed erection of a three storey building on this site would materially impact 
upon the availability of a variety of currently available views from the high street, views 
from the site to the Firth of Forth, of the bridges and of the conservation area itself. The 
development will likely also impact upon the pedestrian route out to the seals craig 
rock.  
 
The proposed building is of modern design and does not attempt to be a pastiche. 
However, it does not utilise any of the traditional materials that are highlighted within 
the SQCACA or of any building nearby.  
 
The lower walls of the proposal will be formed from rammed earth, which is formed 
from natural raw materials such as earth, chalk, lime, or grave, but can often be 
mistaken for concrete. Black timber cladding on other elements of the walls is also 
proposed and a barrel vaulted roof will be erected finished in bronze seam cladding.  
 
Whilst modern design is to be appreciated, it has to be used in the correct context. The 
site is a highly visible coastal location within the defined conservation area. The vast 
majority of buildings nearby and within the South Queensferry conservation area have 
traditional pitched roofs with slates or pantiles, whilst their walls are finished in stone or 
render.  
 
The design statement makes reference that the building takes inspiration from Scottish 
Coastal buildings. That may be the case but there are no coastal buildings that look like 

Page 56



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 9 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

that proposed within the SQCACA. Even the nearby life boat building is finished in 
stone with a pitched slate clad roof.   
 
Overall, neither the design or siting of the building is consistent with the SQCACA.  It 
would not preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6.    
 
(e) Scale Form and Design 
 
LDP policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) states that planning permission will be 
granted for development where it is demonstrated that the proposal will create or 
contribute towards a sense of place.  
 
LDP policy Des 3 (Development Design- Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and 
Potential Features) states that planning permission will be granted where it is 
demonstrated that existing characteristics and features worthy of retention on the site 
and in the surrounding area, have been identified, incorporated and enhanced through 
its design.  
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design- Impact on Setting) states that planning 
permission will be granted for development where it is demonstrated that it will have a 
positive impact upon its surroundings.  
 
LDP policy Des 10 (Waterside Development) states that planning permission will only 
be granted on sites on the coastal edge or adjoining a watercourse, where proposals 
 

a) provide an attractive frontage to the water in question 
b) where appropriate, maintains, provides or improves public access to and along 

the waters edge 
c) maintains and enhances the water environment, its nature conservation or 

landscape interests including margins and river valley 
d) if appropriate, promotes recreational use of the water.  

 
The site and the area directly around it has a definite sense of place and a uniformity in 
terms of buildings materials, detailing, scale, form and design.  
 
However, the proposal has not identified, incorporated and enhanced the existing 
features worthy of retention on the site or those that exist in the surrounding area. The 
form of the building is alien to its surroundings and the proposed external materials are 
not appropriate. The building will introduce an incongruous, unattractive addition to the 
built environment of the surrounding area and to the waterfront in question.   
 
The applicant has stated that although the land around the proposed site is in their 
ownership, they will continue to permit a right of access through the land. However, 
erecting a large structure right next to the water's edge on this land is realistically likely 
to discourage the public's access to and along this element of the waters edge.   
 
The proposal does not comply with LDP policies Des 1, Des 3, Des 4 or Des 10. 
 
 

Page 57



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 10 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

(f) Special Landscape Area 
 
The Southern Forth Coast Special Landscape Area is directly next to the site.  
 
LDP policy Env 11 (Special Landscape Areas) states that planning permission will not 
be granted for development which would have a significant adverse impact on the 
special character or qualities of the Special Landscape Areas shown in the proposals 
map.  
 
The 'Statement of Importance' for the Southern Forth Coast Special Landscape Area 
notes the "Scenic quality of the landscape along the coastline. A diverse coastal 
landscape incorporating natural shoreline, sands and islands, urban waterfront, 
parkland and policy landscapes. The landscape is important for recreation, providing 
connectivity along the shore, and forms a key component in views towards Edinburgh 
from the Forth Estuary, road and rail bridges.  The diverse topography along the 
coastal edge directs views across the Firth of Forth to the Fife coast, providing high 
scenic value in combination with the ever changing movement of the tides and 
atmospheric conditions." 
 
The Forth Bridge World Heritage Site: Key Viewpoints document (2016) notes that one 
of the key views of the Forth Bridge is from the Forth Bridges Contact and Education 
Centre in Queensferry. This is to the south west of the site. It also states that Views 
from within conservation areas are not included here because the key locations are 
already noted in conservation area appraisals, any development permitted must 
preserve or enhance character, and will be on a small scale that does not obstruct full 
or partial views that can be had nearby. 
 
The application site is part of area in which spectacular views over the Firth of Forth 
and of the Forth Bridge can be clearly seen. It is a popular spot for both locals and 
tourists to enjoy these views. The construction of a three storey building within this site 
will clearly have an impact upon the ability of these views to be enjoyed from this 
location and from directly nearby.  
 
Overall, however, on balance, due to the overall size and extent of the SLA the 
relatively small building proposed will not have a significant impact upon it.   
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Env 11. 
 
(g) Natural Environment 
 
LDP policy Env 13 (Sites of International Importance) states that development likely to 
have a significant effect on a "Natura 2000 site" will be permitted only if either: 
 

a) the development will not adversely affect the integrity of the area; or 
b) it has been demonstrated that: 
c) there is no alternative solutions and 
d) there are imperative reasons of overriding public interest for permitting the 

development, including reasons of a social or economic nature.  
e) compensatory measures are provided to ensure that the overall coherence of 

the Natura network is protected.   
 

Page 58



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 11 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

The proposal could affect the Firth of Forth Special Protection Area (SPA) designated 
for its wintering bird interest. The status of the site meets that the requirements of the 
Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994 as amended (the "Habitats 
Regulations").  
 
The Forth is also a defined Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).  
 
Consequently, the City of Edinburgh Council is required to consider the effect of the 
proposal on the site before it can be consented (commonly known as Habitats 
Regulations Appraisal). 
 
Having consulted with NatureScot and undertaken a Habitat Regulations Appraisal and 
Appropriate Assessment, it has been possible to reach a conclusion of 'no adverse 
effects upon site integrity'.  
 
The proposal complies with LDP Policy Env13. If the application was to be granted 
there are several conditions that are advised to be applied to the consent in relation to 
protecting the surrounding natural habitat.  
 
Policy Env 14 (Sites of National Importance) states that development which would 
affect a site of Special Scientific Interest will only be permitted where an appraisal has 
demonstrated that  
 

a) the objectives of the designation and the overall integrity of the area will not be 
compromised or 

 
b) any significant adverse effects on the qualities for which the area has been 

designated are clearly outweighed by social or economic benefits of national 
importance.  

 
The Council's biodiversity officer has been consulted and confirms the proposal will not 
affect the SSSI. The development complies with LDP policy Env 14.  
 
The Firth of Forth is also a Local Nature Conservation Site.  
 
LDP policy Env 15 (Sites of Local Importance) states that development likely to have 
an adverse impact on the flora, fauna, landscape or geological features of a Local 
Nature Conservation Site will not be permitted unless it can be demonstrated that: 
 

a) the reasons for allowing the development are sufficient to outweigh the nature 
conservation interest of the site 

b) the adverse consequences of allowing the development for the value of the site 
have been minimised in an acceptable manner.  

 
The Council's biodiversity officer has been consulted and confirms the proposal will not 
affect the defined Local Nature Conservation Site.The development complies with LDP 
policy Env 15.  
  
 
 
 

Page 59



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 12 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

(h)  Residential Environment 
 
A studio will be constructed above the proposed workshop. Whilst the applicant has 
stated that this will be ancillary to the main house, its residential environment must still 
be assessed.  
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design-Amenity) states that planning permission will 
be granted for development where it is demonstrated that future occupiers have 
acceptable levels of amenity in relation to noise, daylight, sunlight, privacy or 
immediate outlook. 
 
LDP policy Hou 3 (Private Greenspace in Housing Developments) states that planning 
permission will be granted for development which makes adequate provision for green 
space to meet the needs of future residents.  
 
LDP policy Hou 4 (Housing density) states that the council will seek an appropriate 
density of development on each site including having regard to the need to create an 
attractive residential environment and safeguard living conditions within the 
development.   
 
The Edinburgh Design Guidance also seeks to address the criteria of an acceptable 
level of amenity for future occupiers of the development. This includes minimum floor 
space standards.  
 
The proposal will have very large glazed areas.  It would provide adequate levels of 
sunlight/daylight for any future occupiers as well as excellent views. The proposed 
studio only has a ground floor area of 29 square metres, whilst the mezzanine level has 
a floor area of 19 square metres, meaning that the unit have a total floor space of 48 
square metres. This does not meet the minimum floor space standards for a one 
bedroom apartment, which is 52 square metres, as established within the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance.  
 
Environmental protection have stated that they have concerns about the potential for 
noise and disturbance if the studio was to be utilised as a individual dwelling and was in 
separate ownership from the workshop below.  
 
The dwelling would only have a small element of garden. However, that is not 
uncommon within this area.  
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Hou 3. However, it does not comply with LDP 
policy Des 5, Hou 4 or the Edinburgh Design Guidance in terms of minimum floor space 
standards.  
 
 
(i)  Loss of Amenity to Neighbours 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design-Amenity) states that planning permission will 
be granted for development where the amenity of neighbouring developments is not 
adversely affected.  
 

Page 60



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 13 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

The building is sited far enough away from other dwellings as to not cause any material 
overshadowing/loss of sunlight/daylight.  
 
The building will be constructed quite close to the existing dwelling on the site. 
However, the windows and raised balcony area shall largely overlook the gable 
elevation of the property, which is currently in the same ownership.    
 
Environmental Protection raised concerns in relation to the workshops potential impact 
upon existing neighbouring properties. Construction noise is not controlled by the 
planning authority. 
 
j) Other Material Matters 
 
Road/pedestrian safety and access  
 
LDP policy Tra 2 (Private Car Parking) states that planning permission will be granted 
for development where proposed car parking provision complies with and does not 
exceed the parking levels set out in Council Guidance.  
 
LDP policy Tra 3 (Private Cycle Parking) states that planning permission will be granted 
for development where the proposed cycle parking and storage facilities comply with 
the standards set out in Council guidance.   
 
The Roads Authority was consulted as part of the assessment of the application. It 
confirmed that it had no objections to the proposal. No additional off street car parking 
is proposed.  
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Tra 2 and 3.  
 
Flooding 
 
LDP policy Env 21 (Flooding) states that planning permission will not be granted for 
development that would increase a flood risk or be at risk of flooding itself.  
 
The application site is right next to the Firth of Forth. A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) 
was submitted with the application. Flood Planning was consulted as part of the 
assessment of the application as was the Scottish Environmental Protection Agency 
(SEPA).  
 
SEPA has no objections to the application. The Council's Flood Planning section has 
also confirmed that it has no objections to the proposal after assessing the submitted 
FRA and further associated documents. However, these assessments were made on 
the understanding that the use of the building is going to be as a workshop and 
ancillary studio which are categorised as a 'least vulnerable' land use, referencing 
SEPA's Land Use Vulnerability Guidance.  
 
If the application is granted, it is recommended that an informative is placed on the 
consent advising the applicant that if the building was to be utilised for a use other than 
a workshop or ancillary studio then planning permission will be required and an 
updated FRA will also be required to be submitted with that application.  
 

Page 61



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 14 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

The proposed development will not increase a flood risk or be at risk of flooding itself. 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Env 21.  
 
Archaeology  
 
The City Archaeologist was consulted as part of the assessment of the application. He 
confirmed that he had no objections to the proposal, subject to a condition relating to 
ground investigations and recording being applied to the consent if the application was 
granted.  
 
Waste Services 
 
Waste Services was consulted and confirmed that if the application was to be granted 
the applicant should contact waste services as soon as possible to devise a waste 
strategy.    
 
(k)  Public comments  
 
Material Representations - objection  
 

− Concerns relating to design, materials and appearance of building, would 
damage the conservation area. This is addressed in section 3.3d and e; 

 

− Concerns over flooding/surface water as a result of the development. This is 
addressed in section 3.3j;  

 

− Impact on setting on nearby listed buildings. This is addressed in section 3.3b;  
 

− Loss of community and open space, impact upon Special Landscape Area and 
opportunities for views.  This is addressed in section 3.3f;  

 

− Impact upon World Heritage site. This is addressed in section 3.3c;  
 

− Impact on protected species and natural environment.  This is addressed in 
section 3.3g;  

 

− Road/pedestrian safety, parking and access concerns. This is addressed in 
section 3.3j; 

 

− Impact of the proposal upon tourism and businesses. This is addressed in 
section 3.3f; 

 

− Impact upon important archaeology. This is addressed in section 3.3j 
 

− Impact of proposed future installation of services on the rock. No works to 
provide for future services have been shown in this application. As the 
application is recommended for refusal further information in this regard has not 
been requested. Due to the sensitive surroundings of the site any future works to 
provide services may require the benefit of further planning permission. 

 

Page 62



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 15 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

− Lack of information on proposed use of workshop. Further details of the use 
have been provided.  

 
 
Non Material Representations  
 

− The proposed building might be utilised as an Air BNB. This is not what is being 
applied for. This would require further planning permission for a change of use.  

 

− Build at this site will not be safe. Further details of the proposed build will be 
required for the building warrant for the proposal;  

 

− Land was bought unfairly, without community consultation. This is not a material 
planning consideration; 

 
  
Material Support   
 

− Design, materials and appearance of building is appropriate, would not damage 
the conservation area. This is addressed in section 3.3d&e; 

 

− Good use of the land, it is a brownfield site. This is addressed in section 3.3a.  
 

− Will not impact upon traffic/road safety. This is addressed in section 3.3j 
 

− No impact upon views or the Special Landscape Area. This is addressed in 
section 3.3f 

 

− No impact upon World Heritage Site. This is addressed in section 3.3c.  
 

− No impact upon protected species or the Natural Environment. This is addressed 
in section 3.3g 

 

− No impact upon rights of access along the coast. This is addressed in section 
3.3f 

 

− No impact upon nearby listed buildings. This is addressed in section 3.3b.  
 
 
Conclusion  
 
The proposed development is not acceptable in principle in this location. Whilst the 
development will not harm the special interest of nearby listed buildings, it is of 
inappropriate design and siting and will not preserve or enhance the character of the 
conservation area.  The proposal does not comply with the adopted Local Development 
Plan. There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion. 
 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Page 63



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 16 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Conditions:- 
 
Reasons:- 
 

1. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Hou 1 in respect 
of Housing Development, as the proposal does not comply with other policies 
within the adopted LDP. 

 
2. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 6 in respect 

of Conservation Areas - Development, as it will not preserve or enhance the 
character or appearance of the defined conservation area, nor is it consistent 
with the South Queensferry Conservation Area Character Appraisal (SQCACA) 

 
3. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 1 in respect 

of Design Quality and Context, as it will not create or contribute towards a sense 
of place.  

 
4. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 3 in respect 

of Development Design - Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and Potential 
Features,as it has not been demonstrated that existing characteristics and 
features worthy of retention on the site and in the surrounding area, have been 
identified, incorporated and enhanced through its design. 

 
5. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 4 in respect 

of Development Design - Impact on Setting, as it has not been demonstrated 
that it will have a positive impact upon its surroundings. 

 
6. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 10 in respect 

of Waterside Development, as it will not provide an attractive frontage to the 
water in question and will not maintain, provide or improve public access to and 
along the waters edge. 

 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
There are no financial implications to the Council. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Page 64



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 17 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
88 representations were received in relation to the application. 58 objection comments, 
including an objection from the Queenferry Heritage Trust and the Queensferry and 
District Community Council. The application also recieved 30 letters of support. The 
points raised are addressed in section 3.3 of this report. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

 

 

 

 

Page 65

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 18 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Robert McIntosh, Planning Officer 

E-mail:robert.mcintosh@edinburgh.gov.uk  

 

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing 
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated. 
 
LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing 
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated. 
 
LDP Policy Des 3 (Development Design - Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and 
Potential Features) supports development where it is demonstrated that existing and 
potential features have been incorporated into the design. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Des 7 (Layout design) sets criteria for assessing layout design.  

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

 

 

 Date registered 15 December 2020 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-08, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 66



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 19 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

 
LDP Policy Des 10 (Waterside Development) sets criteria for assessing development 
on sites on the coastal edge or adjoining a watercourse, including the Union Canal. 
 
LDP Policy Des 11 (Tall Buildings - Skyline and Key Views) sets out criteria for 
assessing proposals for tall buildings. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 
LDP Policy Env 8 (Protection of Important Remains) establishes a presumption against 
development that would adversely affect the site or setting of a Scheduled Ancient 
Monument or archaeological remains of national importance. 
 
LDP Policy Env 9 (Development of Sites of Archaeological Significance) sets out the 
circumstances in which development affecting sites of known or suspected 
archaeological significance will be permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 11 (Special Landscape Areas) establishes a presumption against 
development that would adversely affect Special Landscape Areas. 
 
LDP Policy Env 13 (Sites of International Importance) identifies the circumstances in 
which development likely to affect Sites of International Importance will be permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 14 (Sites of National Importance) identifies the circumstances in which 
development likely to affect Sites of National Importance will be permitted.  
 
LDP Policy Env 15 (Sites of Local Importance) identifies the circumstances in which 
development likely to affect Sites of Local Importance will be permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 16 (Species Protection) sets out species protection requirements for 
new development. 
 
LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) sets criteria for assessing the impact of 
development on flood protection.  
 
LDP Policy Env 22 (Pollution and Air, Water and Soil Quality) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development on air, water and soil quality. 
 
LDP Policy Emp 8 (Business and Industry Areas) protects identified areas for business, 
industrial and storage development. 
 

Page 67



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 20 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 20/05222/FUL 
At 13 Edinburgh Road, Edinburgh, EH30 9HR 
Erect new standalone workshop / studio building with 
separate access. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Nature Scot 
 
Summary  
There are natural heritage interests of international importance adjacent to the site, but 
in our view, these will not be adversely affected by the proposal. Advice in relation to 
this is provided  below and in Annex 1.   
 
SNH Advice -Firth of Forth SPA   
 
The proposal lies adjacent to the Firth of Forth Special Protection Area (SPA), 
designated for its wintering bird interest. A Habitats Regulation Appraisal (HRA) is 
therefore required.  The SPA has not been addressed within the application and 
therefore no information has been submitted to inform an HRA.  However, we consider 
that HRA screening and if necessary appropriate assessment should be able to be 
undertaken with the information available.   
 
In terms of HRA screening, our view is this proposal is likely to have a significant effect 
on the Firth of Forth SPA. Consequently, Edinburgh Council as competent authority, is 
required to carry out an appropriate assessment in view of the site's conservation 
objectives for is qualifying interests.   
 
To help you do this we advise that, in our view, based on the information provided, the 
proposal will not adversely affect the integrity of the site.    
 
Annex 1 contains full details and reasoning for all requirements.  Firth of Forth SSSI 
  
The proposal is also adjacent to the Firth of Forth Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI), notified partly for its geological interests which include the Queensferry Shore 
rock exposures at this location. The Craigs rocks below and around this promontory 
form an important part of this geological interest. No construction or incursion is 
proposed within the SSSI/onto the rocks and therefore the proposal is not likely to have 
any impacts on the SSSI.   
  
  
Annex 1  Firth of Forth SPA and Habitats Regulations Appraisal.  
  
This proposal could affect the Firth of Forth Special Protection Area (SPA) designated 
for its wintering bird interest. Further information about this internationally important 

Page 68



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 21 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

site, the special features it is designated to protect, and its conservation objectives, can 
be found on NatureScot's SiteLink website: https://sitelink.nature.scot/home  
 
The status of these sites means that the requirements of the Conservation (Natural 
Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994 as amended (the "Habitats Regulations"). 
Consequently, Edinburgh Council is required to consider the effect of the proposal on 
the site before it can be consented (commonly known as Habitats Regulations 
Appraisal). Our website has summaries of the legislative requirements and the HRA 
process:  https://www.nature.scot/professional-advice/protected-areas-and-
species/protected- 
species/legal-framework/habitats-directive-and-habitats-regulations  
https://www.nature.scot/professional-advice/planning-and-development/environmental- 
assessment/habitats-regulations-appraisal-hra  
 
Our advice in relation to the HRA is provided below:  
HRA Stage 1 - is the proposal connected with conservation management of the 
European site?  
No - this proposal is not connected to conservation management of any European site. 
Hence  
further consideration is required.    
HRA Stage 2 - is the proposal 'likely to have significant effects' upon the European 
site?  
In plain English this asks whether there is any connectivity between the proposal and 
the European site.   
Given the proximity to the SPA, possible effects of disturbance on the bird population 
and  
potential direct effects on the site, then we would conclude that there's likely significant 
effects:   
1) There is potential for disturbance or displacement of birds using the shoreline or 
coastal water, with the construction of a new building, introducing light, noise and 
movement.    
2) There is potential for pollution/sedimentation to the water from construction activities.  
  
HRA Stage 3 - will the proposal have adverse effects on the integrity of the SPA?  
An appropriate assessment will be required and should be carried out by Edinburgh 
Council in view of the site's conservation objectives for is qualifying interests. In our 
view this assessment  can be carried out using available information and should 
include an appraisal of the following:  
1) Information on and assessment of level of disturbance or displacement to SPA birds 
which are likely to be loafing or roosting in the sea or shoreline habitat.  No wintering 
bird surveys have been undertaken to support this application, which are often required 
to support applications. However, bird use in this location is likely to be low and will be 
subject to on-going background disturbance from the town/road and street lighting. The 
construction of a new building at this location, which although is on a small promontory, 
is also in  
close proximity to other buildings and within the settlement boundary. Therefore the 
effects of new disturbance here isn't likely to be much on top of the existing settlement 
disturbance. This is partly based on the assumption that the external lighting required 
will be sensitive or similar to the lighting in the area, given the location by the coast and 
within a Conservation Area; no bright lighting should be directed onto the Forth. This 

Page 69



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 22 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

may need to be a condition of consent, if lighting requirements aren't covered 
elsewhere in the consent process.  
 
The construction process will be time limited, although there is no mention of specific 
timescales for work. In relation to this, timing of works could be an option to prevent 
construction disturbance, but given the various reasons above, this is unlikely to be 
required.  
2) Assessment of risk and potential impacts to the Forth and measures to reduce this 
risk. This relates to construction activities which could result in pollution, dirt and dust 
entering the water environment. The building to be constructed is almost immediately 
adjacent to the water's edge so there is a risk of accidental spills. However, controls are 
likely to be required by other regulatory methods and as such we can anticipate the 
measures that will be required and in place to minimise these events from occurring. 
It's also noted that wastewater is anticipated to be connected to the existing pipe at the 
main building which would avoid further clarification on this  
issue.   
 
HRA - Conclusion   
Taking all of the above considerations into account, in our view it should be possible to 
reach a conclusion of 'no adverse effects upon site integrity'.   
 
To note: If the planning authority intends to grant planning permission against this HRA 
advice,  
you must notify Scottish Ministers.  
  
Additional advice  
To further mitigate the effects of construction works on any wintering birds that are 
using the adjacent coast, we recommend the following measures as informatives:  
1) Screening of the site, which will help mask movement and lighting inside the 
building, reducing visual disturbance site, help buffer noise levels and help restrict dust 
travel.  
2) Consideration given to restricting periods of high noise levels to one hour past dawn, 
ceasing one hour before dusk, to allow birds to disperse.  
  
Archaeology 
 
Further to your consultation request I would like to make the following comments and 
recommendations concerning this application to erect a new standalone workshop / 
studio building with separate access. 
 
South Queensferry was already established as a main ferry-port by the 11th century, 
located at the last narrow-crossing point across the Firth of Forth between Fife with the 
Lothians. By 1150 the settlement was being called ''the queen's ferry'' in reference to 
the improvements order by Queen Margaret of Scotland (AD 1063-93) to the ferry 
service. The site is located on the eastern side of the medieval town on the 'The Craigs' 
a spit of high bedrock forming the end of the town. The 1st edition OS map (see fig 1) 
shows the site occupied by a building thought to date back to possibly the 17th /18th 
centuries. What appears to be rock cut steps can be seen in the Craigs Rock extending 
from the corner of the adjacent hotel suggesting an earlier landing point on Craigs 
Rock.  
 

Page 70



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 23 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

This application must be considered under terms Scottish Government's Our Place in 
Time (OPIT), Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), PAN 02/2011, HES's Historic 
Environment Policy for Scotland (HEPS) 2019 and CEC's Edinburgh Local 
Development Plan (2016) Policies ENV8 & ENV9. The aim should be to preserve 
archaeological remains in situ as a first option, but alternatively where this is not 
possible, archaeological excavation or an appropriate level of recording may be an 
acceptable alternative 
 
The site contains the ruins/remains of an earlier building shown on the 1st Edition OS 
map which possibly date back to the 17th/18th century. Given the site's location earlier 
archaeological evidence associated with the development of South Queensferry from 
the medieval period onwards may also occur. The impact therefore of associated with 
construction and associated groundbreaking works (e.g. services) for this development 
must be regarded as having a moderate archaeological impact. It is recommended 
therefore that prior to development that a programme of archaeological works is 
undertaken to fully excavate, record and analysis all significant remains. Given the sites 
public location it is recommended that this be undertaken in conjunction with a 
programme of public engagement information boards, public viewing etc) 
 
Therefore, it recommended that if permission is granted that the following condition is 
attached to ensure the undertaking of the required programme of archaeological works 
on this site. 
 
'No demolition/development shall take place on the site until the applicant has secured 
and implemented a programme of archaeological work (excavation, reporting & 
analysis, publication, public engagement) in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Planning 
Authority.'  
 
The work must be carried out by a professional archaeological organisation, either 
working to a brief prepared by CECAS or through a written scheme of investigation 
submitted to and agreed by CECAS for the site. Responsibility for the execution and 
resourcing of the programme of archaeological works and for the archiving and 
appropriate level of publication of the results lies with the applicant. 
 
 
Historic Environment Scotland 
 
Thank you for your consultation which we received on 18 February 2021.  We have 
assessed it for our historic environment interests and consider that the proposals have 
the potential to affect the following:  
  
Ref Name Designation Type  
100018447, 
  
LB40370  
Forth Bridge World  
Heritage Site Boundary, 
  
FORTH BRIDGE  
World Heritage Sites, 

Page 71



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 24 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

  
Listed Building  
  
You should also seek advice from your archaeology and conservation service for 
matters including unscheduled archaeology and category B and C-listed buildings.  
  
Our Advice  
  
We have considered the information received and do not have any comments to make 
on the proposals.  Our decision not to provide comments should not be taken as our 
support for the proposals.  This application should be determined in accordance with 
national and  
local policy on development affecting the historic environment, together with related 
policy guidance. 
  
  
Roads Authority 
 
No objections to the application. 
 
Scottish Water 
 
Audit of Proposal  
Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant 
should be aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can 
currently be serviced and would advise the following:  
  
Water Capacity Assessment  
  
Scottish Water has carried out a Capacity review and we can confirm the following:  
  
There is currently sufficient capacity in the Balmore Water Treatment Works to service 
your development. However, please note that further investigations may be equired to 
be carried out once a formal application has been submitted to us.  
  
Waste Water Capacity Assessment  
  
This proposed development will be serviced by S Queensferry Waste Water Treatment 
Works. Unfortunately, Scottish Water is unable to confirm capacity currently so to allow 
us to fully appraise the proposals we suggest that the applicant completes a Pre-
Development Enquiry (PDE) Form and submits it directly to Scottish Water via our 
Customer Portal or contact Development Operations.  
  
Asset Impact Assessment  
  
 According to our records, the development proposals may impact on existing Scottish 
Water assets.  The applicant must identify any potential conflicts with Scottish Water 
assets and contact our Asset Impact Team via our Customer Portal to apply for a 
diversion.   
  

Page 72



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 25 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

The applicant should be aware that any conflict with assets identified may be subject to 
restrictions on proximity of construction. Please note the disclaimer at the end of this 
response.   
 
  
Flood Planning 
 
Thank you for sending through the completed certificate.  
 
The applicant has confirmed that the development is categorised as a 'least vulnerable' 
land use, referencing SEPA's Land Use Vulnerability Guidance, and has confirmed that 
safe access and egress is provided. As recommended in the flood risk assessment, the 
applicant should implement an emergency evacuation plan and flood resilient 
materials.  
 
This application can therefore proceed to determination, with no further comments from 
Flood Prevention.  
 
SEPA 
 
This application appears to be for a studio/workshop and therefore of low vulnerability 
re flood risk - we have no comment to make on this  
 
Environmental Protection  
 
Environmental Protection has concerns regarding the impact of noise, odour, and dust 
from the proposed workshop on the proposed and existing residential amenity, and 
therefore cannot support this application.  
 
The application site is to the north of the residential property at 13 Edinburgh Road and 
is proposed as small scale ancillary residential, with a workshop.  
 
This service does not have concerns relating to the residential aspect of the proposal 
but is concerned about the potential impact on nearby amenity that the workshop may 
have, in terms of noise, odour and dust. Planning have advised that the residential part 
of the development would need to be assessed as a separate dwelling from the 
proposed workshop and mezzanine. This means there is the potential for the 
residential part of the development and the workshop to be under separate control / 
ownership and therefore for the workshop to have a negative impact on amenity of the 
proposed, as well as existing residential properties.   
 
Environmental Protection therefore cannot support this application.  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 73



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 26 of 26 20/05222/FUL 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 74



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 1 of 8      21/02326/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 18 August 2021 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/02326/FUL 
at land adjacent to, 194 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh. 
Proposed use for the North East commercial unit, lower 
ground floor of Block A.  Current planning consent allows 
for class 1, class 2, class 3, class 4, and/or ancillary 
residential use e.g., storage. Application is seeking 
permission for a class 11 (gym) use for this unit. 

 

 

Summary 

 
The use is compatible with the policies in the Edinburgh Local Development Plan. The 
use of the commercial unit as a Class 11 - Gymnasium will provide an appropriate use 
and form part of a package of amenities for future occupiers of this built-to-rent scheme. 
Appropriate mitigation and on-site management will ensure that a satisfactory residential 
environment for future occupiers is maintained. There are no material considerations that 
outweigh this conclusion. 
 
 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

,  

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B09 - Fountainbridge/Craiglockhart 

Page 75

Agenda Item 4.4

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021   Page 2 of 8 21/02326/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/02326/FUL 
at land adjacent to, 194 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh 
Proposed use for the North East commercial unit, lower 
ground floor of Block A.  Current planning consent allows 
for class 1, class 2, class 3, class 4, and/or ancillary 
residential use e.g., storage. Application is seeking 
permission for a class 11 (gym) use for this unit. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The proposal relates to a ground floor commercial unit within a nine-storey residential 
build-to-rent block currently under construction and nearing completion. The site is 
within the Fountainbridge area and south of the Western Approach Road. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
13 December 2016 - Planning Permission in principle granted for mixed use 
development including residential, Class 1 (Retail), Class 2 (Financial, Professional and 
other services), Class 3 (Food and Drink), Class 4 (Business), and/or Hotel/Class 7; 
Detailed matters included for the siting + maximum height of building blocks, points of 
vehicular access and egress, location of pedestrian routes, all detailed matters for the 
North block (Building A1), new public square and pavilion building - as amended. 
(Reference 15/02892/PPP) 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Use as Class 11 Gymnasium at ground floor level of flatted block. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
 
 

Page 76



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 3 of 8 21/02326/FUL 

Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the principle of the proposal is acceptable in this location;  
b) the proposal will result in an unreasonable loss of neighbouring amenity and  
c) any comments have been addressed. 

  
 
a) Principle of Development 
  
Policy Ret 8 Entertainment and Leisure Developments - Other Locations of the 
Edinburgh Local Development Plan supports entertainment and leisure proposals 
within the city centre that are accessible by a choice of transport modes and compatible 
with the surrounding uses. 
 
The application site is within the city centre as defined in the LDP. It is within the 
Fountainbridge CC3 proposal in the LDP. Within the city centre an appropriate mix of 
uses that enhance its character, attractiveness and vitality of the city centre are 
supported. The use of the ground floor unit as a gymnasium will maintain an active 
frontage to the street and form part of a package of amenities for future residents of this 
build-to-rent scheme. The proposal is consistent with the requirements of the CC3 
Fountainbridge development principles. Accordingly, the use of the ground floor as a 
Class 11 Gymnasium is acceptable subject to compliance with other relevant policies in 
the LDP. 
 
b) Residential Amenity  
 
Policy Des 5 Development Design - Amenity supports development that will maintain 
acceptable levels of amenity for future occupiers in relation to noise. 
 
Environmental protection has been consulted and advised they object to the application 
based on the impact on noise for future residents from the gymnasium. Gymnasiums 
have the potential to create noise through users, machine noise and vibration using 
free weights. The noises are difficult to mitigate and control using conditions. As there 
are residential properties directly above the gym, the proposal has potential to affect 
their residential amenity.  
 
The applicant has employed an acoustician to advise on measures that will impede 
sound travelling to the apartments above with acoustic treatments to the floors, walls 
and ceilings. The scheme is built-to-rent and the whole building controlled through a 
single owner with 24-hour management on site. Accordingly, they will be able to 
resolve any amenity issues and it is within their interest to maintain a satisfactory 
residential environment for future occupiers. 

Page 77



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 4 of 8 21/02326/FUL 

A condition is recommended to secure acoustic mitigation measures. A further 
condition is recommended to restrict the use to gymnasium and not the wider uses 
possible under Class 11 of the Town and Country Planning Use Classes (Scotland) 
Order 1997. Accordingly, subject to appropriate mitigation and on-site management, a 
satisfactory residential environment will be maintained in accordable with policy Des 5. 
 
c) Public comment 
 
No comments received 
 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Conditions :- 
 
1. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning Use Classes 

(Scotland) Order 1997, the property shall be used solely as a gymnasium and for 
no other purpose. 

 
2. Details of appropriate noise mitigation of the gymnasium are to be submitted and 

approved by the planning authority. The approved mitigation measures are to be 
implemented prior to the operation of the unit as a gymnasium. 

 
Reasons: - 
 
1. In order to safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residents and other occupiers. 
 
2. In order to safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residents and other occupiers. 
 
 
 
Informatives 
 
It should be noted that: 
 
1.  The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the 

expiration of three years from the date of this consent. 
 
2.  No development shall take place on the site until a 'Notice of Initiation of 

Development' has been submitted to the Council stating the intended date on 
which the development is to commence.  Failure to do so constitutes a breach of 
planning control, under Section 123(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
3. As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the site, as 

authorised in the associated grant of permission, a 'Notice of Completion of 
Development' must be given, in writing to the Council. 

 

Page 78



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 5 of 8 21/02326/FUL 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
There are no financial implications to the Council. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
Pre-application discussions took place on this application. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
No representations have been received. 
 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

  

Page 79

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 6 of 8 21/02326/FUL 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Elaine Campbell, Team manager 

E-mail:elaine.campbell@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
 
 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site for development iis within the Fountainbridge 

City Centre Propsal and is in the defined City Centre of 

the Edinburgh Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 29 April 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01 - 02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 80



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 7 of 8 21/02326/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/02326/FUL 
At Land Adjacent To , 194 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh 
Proposed use for the North East commercial unit, lower 
ground floor of Block A.  Current planning consent allows 
for class 1, class 2, class 3, class 4, and/or ancillary 
residential use e.g. storage. Application is seeking 
permission for a class 11 (gym) use for this unit. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection Response 
 
I refer to the above and would advise that Environmental Protection has concerns relating 
the application and does not support the application. 
 
The application proposes a Class 11 gymnasium premises below and adjacent to 
residential properties. The residential properties are directly above, structurally attached 
and immediately adjacent to the proposed gymnasium.  
 
Gymnasiums by their very nature cause significant noise (e.g. from loud, bass heavy, 
music, amplified shouting during fitness classes or the tonal drone of an exercise bike) 
and vibration (e.g. from the use of free weights, weight machines or movement of 
patrons). Such noise and vibration issues are extremely difficult to mitigate when the 
building is so close to or structurally attached to residential properties. Noise can travel 
up through the floor from the gym to the residential property or via the noise escaping 
from the gym to the outside then entering the residential properties through windows or 
facades.  
 
Environmental Protection is concerned that the Council will receive complaints relating 
to the gym activities and indeed have done on a number of occasions in the past from 
other gyms which are not as close as the two parties will be in this situation. 
 
In addition, the application is seeking to site a Class 11 premises directly below 
residential properties. Class 11 can include a discotheque, dance hall and concert hall 
which are all extremely incompatible within residential buildings. Should the gymnasium 
be granted, the premises will not require any further planning permission should it decide 
to change operations into one of these other incompatible uses. 
 
Environmental Protection is concerned that should a Class 11 gymnasium be sited in this 
position it is likely to impact upon the residential amenity of the structurally attached 
residential properties. Environmental Protection therefore recommends that the 
application be refused.   
 
 

Page 81



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 8 of 8 21/02326/FUL 

 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 82



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 1 of 17      20/04495/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 18 August 2021 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 20/04495/FUL 
At Totley Wells Lodge, Westfield, Winchburgh 
Demolition of an existing house and the erection of a 
replacement house on the same site. 

 

 

Summary 

 
Whilst the application does not comply with LDP policy Env 10, the site is brownfield 
land within a cluster of dwellings. There are therefore exceptional planning reasons for 
approving the development. The proposal complies with all other relevant policies of 
the adopted LDP as well as the Guidance for Development in the Countryside and 
Greenbelt. It will provide a suitable residential environment for future occupiers and will 
not materially harm the amenity of any neighbouring dwellings.  
 
There are no material considerations that would justify the refusal of the application. 
 
 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application  

LDPP, LDEL01, LDES01, LDES03, LDES04, LDES05, 

LEN09, LEN10, LEN12, LEN16, LEN21, LHOU01, 

LHOU02, LHOU03, LHOU04, LTRA02, LTRA03, 

LTRA04, NSG, NSGD02, NSGCGB,  

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B01 - Almond 

Page 83

Agenda Item 4.5

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021   Page 2 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 20/04495/FUL 
At Totley Wells Lodge, Westfield, Winchburgh 
Demolition of an existing house and the erection of a 
replacement house on the same site. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The application site relates to Totley Wells Lodge, Westfield, Winchburgh.  It is a large 
plot of 1006 square metres. However, currently around a third of the site is taken up by 
a large car parking area which is covered in hardstanding. 
 
Historical mapping shows that the plot was part of an industrial hostel site in the 1930s. 
It is around this time that the current building on the site was likely constructed. During 
the war, the wider site was utilised as a military depot and World War 2, AA battery. A 
large number of substantial buildings were constructed all around the site around this 
time. The maps show that the plot and wider site was then utilised as a large depot 
after the war until at least the 1960s.  
 
As a result there is a large number of substantial buildings of various scales, form and 
designs which surround the site. Some of these appear to be from when the site was 
utilised as a depot whilst some are more modern.  
 
The site is currently surrounded by the Totley Wells lodge, Grange and riding school. 
 
The site and the surrounding cluster of buildings are still fenced off from the road, likely 
as a legacy of its previous depot use. There is an access road right next to the site, 
which leads round to the various buildings and car parking areas. The access has a 
gate and fence with brick pillars. The road also has street lighting and other large signs 
that would be more fitting for an industrial setting than the rural countryside.  
 
Directly to the east of the site is a relatively modern, two storey dwelling house, finished 
in render and tiles which has a substantial floor plan. To the west/south west of the site 
is a selection of large agricultural buildings, portacabins and caravans. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
There is no relevant planning history for this site. 

 

Page 84



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 3 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

Main report 

3.1 Description Of The Proposal 
 
The application is for planning permission for the demolition of an existing bungalow 
property and the erection of a replacement 5 bedroom house on the same site. The 
proposed building will comprise two, two storey elements adjoined by a single storey 
link. It will have an overall internal floor area of approximately 250 square metres. The 
site area is, however, 1006 square metres. The external walls of the proposal will be 
finished in a mixture of stone and timber. The roofs will be pitched and will be clad in 
slate.  
 
The existing large car parking area to the rear of the site will be removed and will be 
largely reinstated as green space. The proposal will only have a small driveway and 
single garage.  
 
Part of the existing hedgerow shall be removed at the front of the site. However, a new 
hedgerow will be planted. The majority of trees within the site will be retained. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) The principle of the development is acceptable; 
 

b) The proposed scale, form and design are acceptable; 
 

c) The proposal will provide a suitable residential environment;  
 

d) The proposal will have a detrimental impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
residents;  

 
e) The proposal will have any impact in terms of trees or protected species; 

 
f) The proposal raises any concerns in respect of sustainability, parking or road 

safety;  
 

Page 85



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 4 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

g) The proposal raises any concerns in respect of flood prevention; 
 

h) There are any other material matters;  
 

i) All public comments received have been addressed. 
 
 
a) Principle of Development 
 
The site is designated as being within the Countryside in the adopted Edinburgh Local 
Development Plan (LDP).  
 
LDP Policy Env 10 (Development in the Greenbelt and Countryside), states that within 
the Greenbelt and Countryside shown in the proposals map, development will only be 
permitted where it meets one of certain stated criteria and would not detract from the 
landscape quality and/or rural character of the area.   
 
Criterion (d) states For the replacement of an existing building with a new building in 
the same use provided  
 

1) the existing building is not listed or of architectural merit; 
2) the existing building is of poor quality design and structural condition; 
3) the existing building is of domestic scale, has a lawful use and is not a temporary 

structure; and 
4) the new building is of a similar of smaller size to the existing one, lies within the 

curtilage of the existing building and is of high quality design.  
 
The existing building on the site is not listed or of architectural merit. It is of poor quality 
design and structural condition. It is of domestic scale, has a lawful use and is not a 
temporary building.  
 
It is acknowledged that whilst the proposed building will lie within the curtilage of the 
existing building, it shall be larger than the existing building and therefore it does not 
fully comply with criterion (d) of LDP policy Env 10.  However, it is noted that there are 
other large residential properties nearby and the proposed development is of high 
quality design. The scale of the proposal is acceptable in these circumstance and the 
development will not detract from the landscape quality and rural character of the area.   
 
The Edinburgh Guidance for Development in the Countryside and Greenbelt states that 
New houses not associated with countryside  use will not be acceptable unless there 
are exceptional planning reasons for approving them.  These reasons include the reuse 
of brownfield land within existing clusters of dwellings.  
 
The application site not only has the existing house present within it but also a large car 
parking area. The site is therefore clearly brownfield land and the new dwelling will be 
located within an existing cluster of dwellings. The proposal will enhance the rural 
character and landscape quality of the countryside by removing a poor quality building 
and large area of hardstanding. There are therefore exceptional planning reasons for 
approving the development contrary to policy Env 10.  The proposal complies with the 
Edinburgh Guidance for Development in the Countryside and Greenbelt.   
 

Page 86



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 5 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

 
(b) Scale, Form and Design 
 
LDP policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) states that planning permission will be 
granted for development where it is demonstrated that the proposal will create or 
contribute towards a sense of place. Design should be based on an overall design 
concept that draws upon positive characteristics of the surrounding area. Planning 
permission will not be granted for poor quality or inappropriate design or for proposals 
that would be damaging to the character or appearance of the area around it, 
particularly where this has special importance.  
 
LDP policy Des 3 (Development Design- Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and 
Potential Features) states that planning permission will be granted for development 
where it is demonstrated that existing characteristics and features worthy of retention 
on the site and in the surrounding area, have been identified, incorporated and 
enhanced through its design.  
 
Policy Des 4 (Development Design- Impact on Setting) states that planning permission 
will be granted for development where it is demonstrated that it will have a positive 
impact on its surroundings, including the character of the wider townscape and 
landscape, and impact upon views having regard to  
 

a) height and form,  
 

b) scale and proportions, including the spaces between buildings 
 

c) positioning of buildings and other features on the site 
 

d) materials and detailing 
 
Policy Hou 4 (Housing Density) states that the Council will seek an appropriate density 
of development on each site having regard to its characteristics and those of the 
surrounding area. 
 
Paragraph 183 of the LDP states The key test for all proposals in the green belt and 
countryside areas will be to ensure that the development does not detract from the 
landscape quality and/or rural character of the area.  
 
The Edinburgh Guidance for Development in the Countryside and Greenbelt states that 
proposed dwellings will not detract from the open, rural character of the green belt or 
countryside and will not increase activity to a level that would detract from the rural 
character of the green belt or countryside in terms of traffic or amenity 
 
It is clear that the area directly surrounding the site is not representative of a traditional 
open rural setting and overall the existing landscape character is currently quite poor 
and does not contribute to an overall sense of place.   
 
The rural setting and landscape character of the area is not improved by the current 
building which is a single storey bungalow, the walls of which are finished in render and 
its roof with concrete tiles. It is clearly in a very poor state of repair and is of no 

Page 87



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 6 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

architectural merit. It lies within very large grounds much of which is currently utilised as 
a car parking area which is covered in hardstanding.    
 
It is noted that the existing building is relatively low lying. However, it is not well 
screened and is sited close to the road. The building is therefore a focal point for the 
cluster of buildings when heading south along the road.  
 
The principal elevation of the proposed building will also be prominent when 
approaching the site heading south along the road. However, it is a much more 
attractive design and has been designed to minimise its overall mass and reduce its 
physical impact on the surrounding environment by utilising the depth of the plot.  The 
main element of the building is also only slightly further forward than the existing 
dwelling and is in line with other nearby buildings.  
 
The materials which are proposed are a mixture of modern and traditional and are 
overall far more appropriate for the rural setting than the existing structure. It will have a 
slate clad pitched roof, whilst the walls at the principal elevation will be finished in stone 
and wooden cladding.  
 
Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposed building will be much larger than the 
existing structure on the site, the new dwelling will also be seen in context of the large 
residential dwellings which are a characteristic of the directly surrounding area.  Its 
footprint shall be broadly comparable to the neighbouring residential property directly to 
the east, approximately 35 metres away, which is also of two storey design. In the next 
cluster of buildings to the west, there is a large one and three quarter storey white 
rendered building that is very prominent and is sited close to the road. There is also 
another large narrow property next to this that varies in height from single storey to two 
storey. The cluster of buildings which are directly to the north of the site also has a 
large traditional two storey farm house.    
 
Whilst the floor area of the property is in total approximately 250 square metres, it 
should be noted that the site is in total 1006 square metres. The proposal cannot be 
seen as being overdevelopment of the site. The property will have large garden 
grounds; the garden grounds of the proposal will actually be larger than that which 
currently exists as the large car parking area to the rear will be removed and will be 
grassed over.  
 
When travelling east along the road leading to the site the proposed building will be 
largely obscured by the trees which line the road and by the existing agricultural 
buildings and other structures that are present within the cluster. 
 
The buildings which are located directly around the site are positioned quite close to 
one and other. However, the proposal will be suitably set back off mutual boundaries 
and will respect the positioning of existing structures.  
 
The proposal will also be screened to a degree by the proposed planting of a new 
beech hedge along the front of the site, whilst the majority of trees, again to the front, 
shall also be retained. 
 
Overall, the proposal will help create and contribute towards a sense of place. The area 
directly surrounding the site is already built up and does not provide an open, rural 

Page 88



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 7 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

character. It is a high quality design that would not detract from the rural character of 
the countryside in terms of traffic or visual amenity.  
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Des 1, Des 3, Des 4, Hou 4, the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance and the Edinburgh Guidance for Development in the Countryside and 
Greenbelt.  
 
(c) Residential Environment for future occupants 
 
LDP policy Des 5 (Development Design-Amenity) states that planning permission will 
be granted for development where future occupiers have acceptable levels of amenity 
in relation to noise, daylight, sunlight, privacy or immediate outlook.  
 
The Edinburgh Design Guidance also seeks to address the criteria of an acceptable 
level of amenity for future occupiers of the development.  
 
The proposed dwelling will have large windows to its front, rear and side elevations at 
ground floor and first floor levels. It will provide adequate levels of sunlight/daylight for 
any future occupiers and will also provide adequate internal floor space. It would have 
to comply with the building regulations in terms of adaptability and sustainability and it 
meets the other criteria of Des 5. 
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Des 5 and the Edinburgh Design Guidance.  
 
LDP policy Hou 3 (Private Green Space in Housing Development) states that planning 
permission will be granted for development that makes adequate provision for green 
space to meet the requirements of future residents.  
 
The proposed property will have good sized garden grounds.   
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Hou 3.  
 
d) Neighbouring amenity 
 
LDP policy Des 5 states that planning permission will be granted for development 
where it is demonstrated that the amenity of neighbouring developments will not be 
adversely affected.   
 
The proposed property is positioned a suitable distance away from other dwellings in 
order to ensure that there are no concerns in relation to noise, sunlight, privacy and 
immediate outlook.  
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Des 5.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 89



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 8 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

e) Impact on Protected Species and Trees   
 
Trees   
 
LDP policy Env 12 (Trees) states that development will not be permitted if likely to have 
a damaging impact on a tree protected by a tree preservation order or any other tree or 
woodland worthy of retention.    
 
The majority of the trees present within the site are shown to be retained. None of the 
trees within the site are protected by a Tree Preservation Order, nor is the site within a 
defined conservation area. As such the applicant could remove the trees within their 
site without the consent of the Council.  
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Env 12.  
 
Ecology  
 
LDP policy Env 16 (Species Protection) states that planning permission will not be 
granted for development that would have an adverse impact on species protected 
under European or UK law.  
 
An ecological survey of the site was carried out. It states that the proposal will have no 
impact upon protected species.  The Council's Ecologist raised no concerns.  
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Env 16.  
 
 
f) Parking and Road Safety 
 
LDP Policies Tra 2 - (Private Car Parking) and Tra 3 - (Private Cycle Parking) state 
permission will be granted for development where proposed car parking provision 
complies with and does not exceed the parking levels and cycle parking and storage 
complies with the standards. 
 
The Roads Authority was consulted as part of the assessment of the application. It 
raised no objections to the development.  
 
Secure cycle parking can be adequately provided within either the house or the large 
garden of the site. 
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Tra 2 and Tra 3. 
 
g) Flooding 
 
LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) states that planning permission will not be 
granted for development that would increase a flood risk or be at risk of flooding itself. 
 
The SEPA flood maps do not identify this area as being at risk of flooding. However, 
the applicant has provided a surface water management plan. Flood Planning was 
consulted as part of the assessment of the application and raised no concerns.  
 

Page 90



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 9 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

The proposal complies with LDP policy Env 21.  
 
h) Other material matters  
 
Archaeology 
 
LDP policy Env 9 (Development of sites of Archaeological Significance) is to protect 
and enhance archaeological remains where possible.  
 
The Council's archaeologist has confirmed that the site may contain significant 
archaeological evidence given its previous use.  
 
It is therefore recommended that the consent be conditioned that a programme of 
archaeological works are carried out for the written approval of the Council.  
 
The proposal complies with LDP policy Env 9.  
 
 
Airport Safety 
 
Due to the proximity of the site to the airport, Edinburgh Airport Safeguarding was 
consulted. It confirmed that the proposed development has been fully examined from 
an aerodrome safeguarding perspective and does not conflict with safeguarding 
criteria.   
  
i) Public comments 
 
None.  
 
Conclusion 
 
Whilst the application does not comply with LDP policy Env 10, the site is brownfield 
land within a cluster of dwellings. There are therefore exceptional planning reasons for 
approving the development. The proposal complies with all other relevant policies of 
the adopted LDP as well as the Guidance for Development in the Countryside and 
Greenbelt. It will provide a suitable residential environment for future occupiers and will 
not materially harm the amenity of any neighbouring dwellings.  
 
There are no material considerations that would justify the refusal of the application. 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
 
1. No demolition nor development shall take place on the site until the applicant 

has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work (historic 
building recording, metal detecting survey, excavation, analysis & reporting, 
publication) in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been 
submitted by the applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.'  

Page 91



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 10 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

The work must be carried out by a professional archaeological organisation, 
either working to a brief prepared by CECAS or through a written scheme of 
investigation submitted to and agreed by CECAS for the site. Responsibility for 
the execution and resourcing of the programme of archaeological works and for 
the archiving and appropriate level of publication of the results lies with the 
applicant. 

 
2. A fully detailed landscape plan, including details of all hard and soft surface and 

boundary treatments and all planting, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority before work is commenced on site. 

 
3. The approved landscaping scheme shall be fully implemented within six months 

of the completion of the development. 
 
4. A detailed specification, including trade names where appropriate, of all the 

proposed external materials shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority before work is commenced on site; Note: samples of the 
materials may be required. 

 
Reasons:- 
 

1. To preserve the features of archaeological interest within the site. 
 

2. In the interests of visual amenity. 
 

3. In the interests of visual amenity. 
 

4. In the interests of visual amenity. 
 
 
 
Informatives 
 
It should be noted that: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the 
expiration of three years from the date of this consent. 

 
2. No development shall take place on the site until a 'Notice of Initiation of 

Development' has been submitted to the Council stating the intended date on 
which the development is to commence.  Failure to do so constitutes a breach of 
planning control, under Section 123(1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
3. As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the site, as 

authorised in the associated grant of permission, a 'Notice of Completion of 
Development' must be given, in writing to the Council. 

 
4. The applicant should investigate the installation of renewable technology linked 

to energy storage and a 7kw type 2 (32AMP) electric vehicle charging point. 
 

Page 92



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 11 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

5.  Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be 
required during its construction.  We would, therefore, draw the applicant's 
attention to the requirement within the British  Standard Code of Practice for the 
safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before erecting 
a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome.  This is explained further in Advice 
Note 4, 'Cranes' (available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-
campaigns/operations-safety/)  

  
 
 

6.  In section 6.4 of the report, biodiversity is enhanced by way of the inclusion of 
bat slates/bricks in the roof. The inclusion of such features would be in 
accordance with policy Des 3 Development Design and would support the 
objectives of the Edinburgh Biodiveristy Action Plan 2019-21. We would 
encourage the inclusion of these features in the replacement building design. 

 
7.  The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain 

unrecorded coal mining related hazards.  If any coal mining feature is 
encountered during development, this should be reported immediately to the 
Coal Authority on 0345 762 6848. 

 
Further information is also available on the Coal Authority website at: 
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-coal-authority 
 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
There are no financial implications to the Council. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application meets the sustainability requirements of  the Edinburgh Design 
Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 

Page 93



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 12 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
No representations have been received. 
 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Robert McIntosh, Planning Officer 

E-mail:robert.mcintosh@edinburgh.gov.uk  

 

 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

 

 

 Date registered 23 October 2020 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-08, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 94

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 13 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Del 1 (Developer Contributions and Infrastructure Delivery) identifies the 
circumstances in which developer contributions will be required. 
 
LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing 
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated. 
 
LDP Policy Des 3 (Development Design - Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and 
Potential Features) supports development where it is demonstrated that existing and 
potential features have been incorporated into the design. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Env 9 (Development of Sites of Archaeological Significance) sets out the 
circumstances in which development affecting sites of known or suspected 
archaeological significance will be permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 10 (Development in the Green Belt and Countryside) identifies the 
types of development that will be permitted in the Green Belt and Countryside. 
 
LDP Policy Env 12 (Trees) sets out tree protection requirements for new development. 
 
LDP Policy Env 16 (Species Protection) sets out species protection requirements for 
new development. 
 
LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) sets criteria for assessing the impact of 
development on flood protection.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 1 (Housing Development) sets criteria for assessing the principle of 
housing proposals. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 2 (Housing Mix) requires provision of a mix of house types and sizes in 
new housing developments to meet a range of housing needs. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 3 (Private Green Space in Housing Development) sets out the 
requirements for the provision of private green space in housing development. 
 
LDP Policy Hou 4 (Housing Density) sets out the factors to be taken into account in 
assessing density levels in new development.  
 

Page 95



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 14 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

LDP Policy Tra 2 (Private Car Parking) requires private car parking provision to comply 
with the parking levels set out in Council guidance, and sets criteria for assessing lower 
provision. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 3 (Private Cycle Parking) requires cycle parking provision in 
accordance with standards set out in Council guidance. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off-Street Car and Cycle Parking) sets criteria for 
assessing design of off-street car and cycle parking. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the 
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the 
Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking, 
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh. 
 
Non-statutory guidelines DEVELOPMENT IN THE COUNTRYSIDE AND GREEN 
BELT, provide guidance on development in the Green Belt and Countryside in support 
of relevant local plan policies. 
 

Page 96



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 15 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 20/04495/FUL 
At Totley Wells Lodge, Westfield, Winchburgh 
Demolition of an existing house and the erection of a 
replacement house on the same site. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
The applicant is demolishing an existing residential property and replacing it with a 
larger residential property. Residential use has been established on this site therefore 
we would have no objection to the proposal.  
 
The applicant should provide a minimum of one (7Kw type two) electric vehicle 
charging point located on an external wall.  
 
Environmental Protection would require the applicant to ensure that the development 
obtained all its energy from renewable sources such as ground/air sourced heat pumps 
and solar/photovoltaic panels linked to energy storage. We cannot support the use of 
fuels such as gas or biomass.  
 
Therefore, overall Environmental Protection has no objection but would recommend 
that following informative; 
 
1. The applicant shall investigate the installation of renewable technology linked to 
energy storage and a 7kw type 2 (32AMP) electric vehicle charging point. 
 
 
Roads Authority 
 
No objections to the application.  
 
Note: 
- The proposed 1 car parking space (not including the garage) complies with the 
Councils Parking Standards; 
- Application assessed on the basis there is no change to the existing vehicular access. 
 
 
Archaeology 
 
The proposals will seek to demolish an unlisted mid-20th century house. Historic 
mapping indicated that the house was constructed in the 1930s as part of a NCB 
Industrial Hostel. The hostel was latter taken over by the Army forming part of a Military 
Depot associated in WWII with an AA Battery and which continued in army use into the 
1950s. 

Page 97



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 16 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

 
Given the above, this application must be considered under terms of Scottish 
Government's Our Place in Time (OPIT), Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), PAN 02/2011, 
HES's Historic Environment Policy for Scotland (HEPS) 2019 and CEC's Edinburgh 
Local Development Plan (2016) Policies ENV8 & ENV9.  The aim should be to 
preserve archaeological remains in situ as a first option, but alternatively where this is 
not possible, archaeological excavation or an appropriate level of recording may be an 
acceptable alternative. 
 
The proposals will see the demolition of this unlisted mid-20th century building. 
Although outwardly of no great merit the structure appears on both the 1930's map of 
the NCB Industrial Hotel and on the 1950's OS map of the Military Depot and former 
WWII AA Battery. Accordingly, the building is regarded as having local historic and 
archaeological interest. Although there is no concerns over its demolition given these 
historic associations it is recommended that it a historic building survey [photographic 
and written survey, phased plans and elevations (internal and external)] is undertaken 
prior to its demolition to provide a permanent record. 
 
In addition, given the buildings location within the WWII AA battery and later Army 
Depot, development could uncover evidence for the military occupation of the site 
during WWII (e.g. unit cap badges) and use of the building. It is recommended 
therefore that a programme of archaeological works comprising metal detecting survey 
and watching brief is undertaken to fully record, excavate and analysis all significant 
remains/artifacts that may be disturbed. 
 
Accordingly, it is recommended that the following condition be attached to any 
permission, if granted, to ensure that this programme of archaeological works is 
undertaken;  
 
'No demolition nor development shall take place on the site until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work (historic building 
recording, metal detecting survey, excavation, analysis & reporting, publication) in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the 
applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.'  
The work must be carried out by a professional archaeological organisation, either 
working to a brief prepared by CECAS or through a written scheme of investigation 
submitted to and agreed by CECAS for the site. Responsibility for the execution and 
resourcing of the programme of archaeological works and for the archiving and 
appropriate level of publication of the results lies with the applicant. 
 
Edinburgh Airport 
 
The proposed development has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding 
perspective and does not  conflict with safeguarding criteria. We therefore have no 
objection to this proposal, however have made the  following observation:  
  
Cranes  
  
Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be 
required during its construction.  We would, therefore, draw the applicant's attention to 
the requirement within the British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, 

Page 98



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 17 of 17 20/04495/FUL 

for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before  erecting a crane in close proximity 
to an aerodrome.  This is explained further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes'  (available at 
http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/)  
  
It is important that any conditions requested in this response are applied to a planning 
approval.  Where a Planning Authority proposes to grant permission against the advice 
of Edinburgh Airport, or not to attach conditions which Edinburgh Airport has advised, it 
shall notify Edinburgh Airport, and the Civil Aviation Authority and the Scottish Ministers 
as specified in the Safeguarding of Aerodromes Direction 2003. 
  
Flood Planning 
 
Thank you for sending through the additional information. This application can proceed 
to determination, with no further comments from Flood Prevention. 
 
Health and Safety Executive 
 
No response. 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021 Page 1 of 2 19/02993/AMC 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Report Returning to Committee – Wednesday 18 August 2021 

 

 

Application for Approval of Matters Specified in Conds 
19/02993/AMC 
At Land Adjacent To 194, Fountainbridge, Edinburgh 
Approval of matters specified in conditions 1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 12 & 
13 of 15/02892/PPP for Building E including form + massing; 
design + materials; daylight + sunlight; design + operation of 
private/public open spaces; roads, 
footways/cycleway/access/servicing + parking; venting + 
electric vehicle charging; drainage; waste management; 
operational requirements for commercial uses/ 
sustainability/floor levels/lighting; site investigation/hard + 
soft landscaping details + noise mitigation.(As Amended). 
 

Recommendations  

 

It is recommended that this application be Approved subject to the details below. 
 

Background information 
 

The Development Management Sub-Committee determined to grant this application on 
4 December 2019, subject to the conclusion of a legal agreement within six months of 
this date to secure the necessary delivery of on-site affordable housing. Under the 
Scheme of Delegation, the Chief Planning Officer has delegated powers to extend the 
six-month period for concluding a legal agreement to nine months, provided meaningful 
progress is being achieved. This delegated power was used to extend the period for 
concluding the legal agreement by a further three months. On 16 December 2020 
Committee granted an additional extension of three months until 16 March 2021. On 21 
April 2021 Committee granted an additional extension of three months until 21 July 
2021. However, this additional three month period has now been exceeded and 
therefore, the matter requires to be returned to Committee for a decision. 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B09 - Fountainbridge/Craiglockhart 

Page 101

Agenda Item 5.1



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021  Page 2 of 2 19/02993/AMC 

Main report 
 

There are no new material planning considerations which affect the original Committee 
decision on 4 December 2019 to grant this application subject to a legal agreement first 
being concluded to secure the necessary infrastructure. 
 
The Section 75 legal agreement seeks to secure on-site affordable housing. This is the 
third of the first three Build to Rent S75s in the city to propose the ongoing delivery of 
Affordable Housing on the site via intermediate rental units. This is an entirely new form 
of affordable housing for the city. The developer, being responsible for building and 
delivering the affordable housing as part of their development, has the potential to 
improve sufficient delivery of affordable housing at no expense to the Council. 
However, it is critical adequate safeguards are put in place to ensure that affordable 
housing is in fact being delivered on the site throughout the 25-year affordable period. 
An entirely new bespoke schedule has required to be developed to address this new 
issue, with input from the developers and their agents on each of the three BTR S75s.  
 
The report of 21 April 2021 advised that while the major issues had been mostly 
resolved, there was one substantive issue remaining. Following detailed further 
negotiation, the Section 75 legal agreement terms were finally agreed shortly after the 
signing deadline of 21 July 2021. A further three-month extension would enable the 
legal agreement to be signed and planning permission released.  
 
It is recommended to extend the deadline for concluding the legal agreement by a 
further three months until 21 October 2021 to enable planning permission thereafter to 
be released. 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDEL01, LDEL02, LDES01, LDES02, LDES03, 

LDES04, LDES05, LDES06, LDES07, LDES08, 

LEN03, LEN09, LEN21, LEN22, LHOU01, LHOU02, 

LHOU03, LHOU04, LHOU06, LRET01, LRET05, 

LTRA02, LTRA03, LTRA04, NSGD02, DBFOUN,  

A copy of the original Committee report can be found in the list of documents at  

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-

web/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=PTG6ZZEWK0X00  

Or Council Papers online 

David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
Contact: Emma Fitzgerald, Senior Planning Officer  

E-mail:emma.fitzgerald@edinburgh.gov.uk  

 

Page 102

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;
https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/cpol


Development Management Sub-Committee 

 

10.00am, Wednesday 11 August 2021 

Protocol Note for Virtual Hearing, via Microsoft 

Teams 

Planning Application No 21/00217/FUL 
Main Terminal, 1 Edinburgh Airport, Jubilee Road 

 
 

 

Andrew Kerr 

Chief Executive 

 

Contacts: Jamie Macrae, Committee Services 

Email: jamie.macrae@edinburgh.gov.uk  

 

 Report number 6.1 

 

 

 

Wards 1 - Almond 

Page 103

Agenda Item 6.1

mailto:jamie.macrae@edinburgh.gov.uk


Summary 

Protocol Note for Hearing  

Summary 

The Council is committed to extending public involvement in the planning process.  

Hearings allow members of the public to put their views on planning applications 

direct to the Councillors on the Development Management Sub-Committee. 

The Sub-Committee members have a report on the planning application which 

contains a summary of the comments received from the public.  Copies of the letters 

are available for Councillors to view online.   

Committee Protocol for Hearings  

The Planning Committee on 25 February 2016 agreed a revised general protocol 

within which to conduct hearings of planning applications as follows: 

- Presentation by the Chief Planning 

Officer 

20 minutes 

- Questions by Members of the 

Sub-Committee 

 

- Presentation by Community Council 5 minutes 

- Presentations by Other Parties 5 minutes, each party 

- Questions by Members of the 

Sub-Committee 

 

- Presentation by Ward Councillors 5 minutes each member 

- Questions by Members of the 

Sub-Committee 

 

- Presentation by Applicant 15 minutes 

- Questions by Members of the Sub-

Committee 

 

- Debate and decision by members of 

the Sub-Committee 

 

 

Page 104



Order of Speakers for this Hearing 

 

1 Chief Planning Officer – presentation of report  10.10 - 10.25 

2 Representors or Consultees 

Corstorphine Community Council 

Cramond and Barnton Community Council 

Crosswinds Development 

New Ingliston Limited 

Transform Scotland  

West Craigs Limited 

 
   
10.25 – 10.30 

10.35 – 10.40 

10.45 – 10.50 

10.55 – 11.00 

11.05 – 11.10 

11.15 – 11.20 

 

3 Ward Councillors 

Councillor Norman Work 

 

11.25 – 11.30 

4 Break 11.35 – 11.45 

5 Applicant and Applicant’s Agent  

Gordon Dewar (Chief Executive, Edinburgh Airport) 
and Nicola Woodward (Planning Consultant, 
Lichfields) 

 

11.45 – 12.00 

6 Debate and Decision on Application by Sub-
Committee 

12.10 

Scheduled times are approximate but within this the time limits for speakers will be 

enforced – speakers will be reminded when they have 1 minute remaining.  

Speakers should keep to “material planning matters” that the Sub-Committee can 

take into account.  Any visual material must be submitted to Committee Services at 

least 24 hours before the meeting.  Decisions will generally be to approve or refuse.  

Conditions of approval or reasons for refusal may be considered at a subsequent 

meeting.  If the application is continued for further information, the Hearing will not be 

re-opened at a later stage and contributors will not be invited to speak again.  In 

such cases, the public can view the meeting via the webcast to observe the 

discussion. 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 1 of 66      21/00217/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 18 August 2021 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/00217/FUL 
at Main Terminal, 1 Edinburgh Airport, Jubilee Road. 
Formation of new access road and active travel route from 
east of terminal building to Gogar Roundabout. 

 

 

Summary 

 
The principle of a new access road serving the airport is supported by the LDP.  
 
However, this route is intended to be multi-purpose and support the long-term 
sustainable development of West Edinburgh. The proposed route is not consistent with 
the West Edinburgh Strategic Design Framework (WESDF) and LDP Proposal T9, 
which safeguards the Gogar Link Road, a route which was subject to comprehensive 
analysis as part of WETA (West Edinburgh Transport Appraisal) Refresh Study 2016. 
 
The proposal would not achieve coordinated development, the route alignment would 
be prejudicial to the delivery of the Gogar Link Road and potentially require the delivery 
of a second route to achieve the objectives of the LDP. 
 
The strategic design context of the route has not yet been fully established and it is not 
yet possible to demonstrate how the proposal would successfully integrate with the 
development of adjacent land or potentially contribute to the delivery of green-blue 
networks. Whilst the proposed design would deliver a functional requirement for a road, 
it has not been demonstrated how this would achieve a sense of place. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the LDP. There are no material consideration which 
outweigh this conclusion. It is recommended that this application be refused. 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B01 - Almond 

Page 107

Agenda Item 6.2



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 2 of 66      21/00217/FUL 

 
 
 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDEL01, LDES01, LDES02, LDES03, LDES05, 

LDES06, LDES07, LDES08, LEN03, LEN09, LEN16, 

LEN21, LEN22, LEMP04, LTRA07, LTRA08, LTRA09, 

LTRA10, NSGD02,  

Page 108

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021   Page 3 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/00217/FUL 
at Main Terminal, 1 Edinburgh Airport, Jubilee Road. 
Formation of new access road and active travel route from 
east of terminal building to Gogar Roundabout. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The proposal site is situated in west Edinburgh, approximately 10km from Edinburgh 
City Centre. 
 
The application site extends between the Edinburgh Airport Passenger Terminal lying 
to the north west and the Gogar Roundabout and the A8 dual carriageway situated the 
south east - a distance of 3km. 
    
The site (10.35 hectares) is bounded by Edinburgh Airport to the north west and 
Edinburgh-Fife railway to the north east. The southern edges are defined by the Gogar 
Burn, operational facilities and land related to Edinburgh Airport including the now 
decommissioned 'Crosswind' 12/30 runway and the Edinburgh Tram Depot. The Gogar 
Mains Farm and Castle Gogar Estate including the Category A listed Castle Gogar 
(LB27092, Date of listing:- 14/07/1966)  and the Gogar Burn are situated beyond the 
former Crosswind runway to the south west.  
 
The site extents include Myreton Drive, which provides vehicular access between the 
depot and the Gogar Roundabout via an overbridge crossing the tram line. The 
application red line also includes a square of land to the north of Myreton Drive, this 
lying within the airport perimeter fence. This is to make provision for a looped access to 
the west of the proposed route. Short spurs from the main site extents are also 
indicated to the south of Eastfield Avenue, to the north in the vicinity of the freight 
terminal and to the south west.  
  
In terms of uses in the wider area, the Edinburgh Gateway Intermodal Station, 
providing connections to tram and heavy rail is located immediately to the south east. 
The area to the north west of the site form the operational extents of Edinburgh Airport 
including the air freight terminal which is accessed from Turnhouse Road. LDP Housing 
allocation HSG19 Maybury/West Craigs is situated immediately beyond the railway to 
the north east with site development expected to commence during 2021.  
 
 
 

Page 109



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 4 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

An historic bridge, in the vicinity of the former Meadowfield Farm, currently provides 
limited pedestrian access over the railway. Network Rail have advised of their intention 
to remove this bridge by the end of this year. This is currently served by an access 
track which flanks the north eastern edge of site, also defined by the airport perimeter 
fence. 
   
The LDP allocation for the Edinburgh International Business Gateway lies to the south 
and south west of the application site, the extents broadly defined by the Gogar Burn, 
the Castle Gogar Estate and the Edinburgh Tram Depot.  
   
The western sections of the site are based around existing road alignments of Gogar 
Bridge Road and Eastfield Avenue. These currently link existing airport parking and 
facilities associated with the operation of the airport to Eastfield Road and the main 
airport passenger terminal via a crossing of the tram line.   
 
The existing use of the site mostly comprises operational land for Edinburgh Airport 
with sections of adopted road at the south eastern corner.  
 
The extents of the site located to the east of the former runway are formed of managed 
grassland with areas of hardstanding, access tracks, airport plant and equipment, these 
enclosed by security fencing to the airport's perimeter boundary. 
 
The topography of the site generally falls from south to north, with the southern edges 
of the site rising sharply from the Gogar Roundabout and the Tram Depot to form an 
escarpment. Spoil mounding is situated within the airport land bounded by the site, this 
located to the north of the former Crosswind runway. The northern section of the site 
which forms the main operational area of the airport is predominately flat. 
 
The LDP defines the site as being substantially within the airport boundary, this being 
designated as Special Economic Area and also forming part of the Urban Area. 
 
LDP Transport Proposal T9 outlines the requirements for the Gogar Link Road, this 
supporting long term development in West Edinburgh and connecting Eastfield Road to 
the Gogar roundabout via the International Business Gateway. The LDP identifies an 
indicative alignment which includes Myreton Drive, this intersecting the southern part of 
the site. 
   
The site boundary also relates to LDP Proposal T12 which identifies improvements to 
the Gogar Roundabout, required to support development in West Edinburgh. Measures 
could include an extra lane on the inside of the existing roundabout and may also 
include some widening of approaches. 
 
LDP Greenspace proposal GS7 identifies an enhancement and diversion of the Gogar 
Burn. This proposal seeks to reduce flood risk in west Edinburgh, improve water quality 
and enhance biodiversity. The LDP shows an indicative alignment linking the existing 
course of the Gogar Burn to the south west of the site with the River Almond to the 
north, this crossing the former Crosswind runway. The proposed alignment flanks the 
southern edge of the site for approximately 740 metres before crossing the site is a 
northerly direction towards the air freight terminal. 
 
 

Page 110



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 5 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

2.2 Site History 
 
06 November 2019 - Notice of Planning Application (PAN) agreed for the formation of a 
new airport access road from the east of the terminal building at Edinburgh Airport to 
Gogar Roundabout (Reference:- 19/05434/PAN) 
 
22 January 2020 - Notice of Planning Application (PAN) agreed for mixed use 
development at land to the south west of Meadowfield Farm, Turnhouse Road (the 
'Crosswinds' proposal) (Reference:-19/05303/PAN) 
  
03 March 2021 - Application proposal presented to Committee for mixed use 
development (Crosswinds/Elements Edinburgh) including business and employment, 
residential, flatted development, hotels, ancillary uses and associated works including 
car parking and associated works including car parking, servicing, access and public 
realm at land to the south west of Meadowfield Farm, Turnhouse Road. Appeal for non-
determination previously lodged with the DPEA, 22 February 2021. Application 
proposal overlaps with the north eastern extents of this application. (Application 
reference:- 20/03219/PPP, DPEA Appeal reference:- PPA-230-2333) 
 
15 April 2021 - Notice of Planning Application (PAN) received for mixed use 
development at site 100 metres east of 194 Glasgow Road. This PAN overlaps the 
southern extents of the application site at Myreton Drive, also including the eastern part 
of the IBG allocation to the east of the Gogar Burn, land to the north west of the Tram 
Depot and land to the north west of Edinburgh Gateway (Reference:- 21/01364/PAN) 
 
22 April 2021 - Direction issued that appeal will be determined by Scottish Ministers in 
view of the potential impact of the proposed development on the spatial strategy for 
West Edinburgh (Application reference: 20/03219/PPP, Appeal reference PPA-230-
2333) 
 
28 May 2021 - Application for Planning Permission in Principle lodged for development 
of Gogar Link Road and active travel route. Application proposal overlaps with south 
eastern extents of the application at Myreton Drive and Gogar Roundabout. Decision 
pending. (Reference:- 21/02941/PPP) 
 
Land to the west 
 
11 September 2019 - Application for Edinburgh International Business Gateway (IBG) 
Phase 1, comprising mixed use development including business + employment use, 
hotels, residential and ancillary uses at land to the east of Eastfield Road called in by 
Scottish Ministers. Hearing sessions tool place February 2020, with application 
currently under consideration by Scottish Ministers (Reference:-15/05580/PPP, DPEA 
reference:- NOD-EDB-003) 
 
Land to the north east 
 
20 April 2017 - Application for Planning Permission in Principle was refused for 
'Residential development, up to a maximum of 1400 units, and ancillary commercial 
(Class 1 retail and Class 2 financial and professional) including landscaping, access 
and services and all other ancillary development' at Site 100 Metres North East Of 19 
Turnhouse Road Edinburgh.  

Page 111



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 6 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

In summary the application was refused for reasons including loss of green belt, 
landscape impact, transport infrastructure delivery, drainage and flood risk, insufficient 
environmental assessment information and failure to outline a comprehensive design 
approach (Reference: 16/04738/PPP)  
 
26 September 2019 - Appeal against refusal of application 16/04738/PPP was allowed 
by Scottish Ministers for 'residential development, up to a maximum of 1,400 units, and 
ancillary commercial (class 1 retail and class 2 financial and professional), including 
landscaping, access and services and all other ancillary development' at 100 metres 
north-east of 19 Turnhouse Road, Edinburgh (Appeal reference: PPA-230-2207) 
  
25 May 2020 - An application for Approval of Matters Specified in Conditions of 
planning permission in principle 16/04738/PPP in respect of conditions 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 
for a masterplan for the site was approved (Reference: 19/05599/AMC) 
  
10 November 2020 - Planning permissions granted for pedestrian and cycle bridge 
over the railway with associated landscaping at land to the south west of Meadowfield 
Farm, Turnhouse Road (Reference: - 20/01148/AMC). 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Full Planning Permission is sought for the development of a single carriageway access 
road to link the main passenger terminal at Edinburgh Airport with the Gogar 
Roundabout. The proposed route would extend 3km in length, with 2.4 km comprising 
new road alignment. The proposal would be fully accessible to general traffic and 
designed to a 30-mph standard. 
 
The applicant states that the purpose of the access road is to reduce congestion and 
increase airport resilience, relieving pressure on Eastfield Road, with the requirement 
for a new eastern access road identified in the Airport Masterplan 2025. The proposed 
access road will also provide enhanced access to the air freight and cargo areas at 
Turnhouse, providing additional access from the east both for public transport (buses 
and taxis serving the airport terminal) and private cars (to long/mid stay car parks). 
 
A Planning, Design and Access Statement has been submitted in support of the 
application. This includes an Option Appraisal outlining the preferred route alignment 
selected by the applicant.  
 
The western section of the route (approximately 680 metres length) would be based on 
the existing alignment of Gogar Bridge Road and Eastfield Avenue. This would involve 
the modification and upgrading of existing roads within the airport boundary, these 
currently serving airport parking and ancillary facilities related to the operation of the 
airport. Works will require reconfiguration to adjacent site boundaries with a single 
building proposed for demolition. A dedicated westbound cycle route would partially 
extend along the existing alignment of Eastfield Avenue.  
   
The central section of the route would comprise a 7.3 metre wide single carriageway 
requiring 2060 metres of new construction. Sections of the route would utilise existing 
airport accesses including former taxiways and the former Crosswind runway.  

Page 112



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 7 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

The proposed route would traverse in a north easterly direction towards Turnhouse 
where a now 3-arm roundabout is proposed. The northern arm would provide future 
access to the air freight terminal. The proposed route would then run parallel to the 
railway line in a south easterly direction for 1 km before diverging southwards. 
  
The south eastern section of the route (approximately 260 metres length) would involve 
the modification of the northern arm of the Gogar Roundabout and the realignment 
works to the existing Myreton Drive, which forms vehicular access to the Tram Depot. 
This would include the construction of an access loop (400 metres length) to the 
southern edges of the site, with a 200 metre section of Myreton Drive being 
reconfigured as one way only.  
 
Modifications to the Gogar Roundabout including the requirement for additional lanes 
circulating the roundabout and to the A8 eastbound are identified.  
 
The proposal identifies a range of access points, both existing and proposed, from 
north west to south east:- 

− Existing access to the airport terminal to the northern end of Gogar Bridge Road;  

− Existing accesses (x2) to airport parking situated to the east of Gogar Bridge 
Road;  

− Existing western access and northern access via roundabout at Eastfield 
Avenue/Gogar Bridge Road; 

− Existing northern access points to Eastfield Avenue (x3) these serving existing 
airport car parking;  

− Existing southern access points formalised to Eastfield Avenue (x5) these 
serving existing facilities associated with the operation of the airport. This would 
include reconfiguration of access to an existing fuel depot; 

− New southern access to the parking area occupying the extents of the former 
Crosswinds runway; 

− New northern access via new 3-arm roundabout. This is identified as access for 
future development and relates to existing access routes serving the air freight 
terminal; 

− New western accesses (x2) to the Crosswinds site. These are identified as 
Development Access Roads; 

− New pedestrian access to the east via the existing railway footbridge, providing 
link to the Maybury/West Craigs development site. This would require 
construction of a ramped access formed by concrete retaining wall and gabian 
baskets; 

− New eastern access via new junction to south eastern section of the Crosswinds 
site. This is identified as a Development Access Road; 

− New western access via new junction to the Crosswinds site. This is identified as 
a Development Access Road, also forming a new exit loop from the Edinburgh 
Tram Depot;  

− Existing western access via Myreton Drive to the Edinburgh Tram Depot would 
be converted to exit only; 

− Existing eastern access to West Craigs land; 

− Existing eastern access to Edinburgh Gateway Station. 
 
 

Page 113



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 8 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

The central and south eastern sections of the route would include a shared use 
cycle/footpath. This would be located to the south before crossing to the east via an un-
signalised crossing adjacent to the existing railway footbridge to Maybury/West Craigs. 
A shared cycle/footpath is identified to both sides of the route around the proposed new 
junction to the Crosswinds site, but pedestrian/cycle access to Edinburgh Gateway and 
Gogar Roundabout would be to the eastern side only.    
 
The application is supported by detailed layout and landscape design proposals.  
 
Soft landscape treatments would mainly comprise amenity grassland including areas of 
pictorial meadow and groundcover planting to the verges and site margins. Small 
clusters of avenue tree planting are identified to the north western site edge at the 
boundary with the railway, to the centre of the proposed roundabout and entrance to 
the parking area occupying the extents of the former Crosswinds runway. Species 
would include Silver Birch and Lime. Beech hedging would define much of the southern 
site boundary, with some sections incorporating 2 metre weldmesh fencing with double 
planting on either side. Conventional 2 metre weldmesh fencing, black powder coated, 
would be used to define other boundaries. 
 
Other than new fenced boundaries to define the extents of the road alignment, minimal 
soft landscaping is proposed to the western section of the route. 
 
A Swale feature would be formed to the western edge of the route to provide drainage. 
This would extend along most of the central section of the route from the proposed 
junction to the Crosswinds site to the proposed entrance to the car parking occupying 
the extents of the former runway. 
 
The proposed alignment would mostly utilise existing land levels or require formation of 
a low embankment, although more extensive cutting will be required to the escarpment 
at the southern edge of the Crosswinds runway to accommodate the proposed 
changes to Myreton Drive. Cuttings will also be required to the earth mounding located 
to the north of the former runway.  
 
In terms hard landscaping, the route including carriageway, footway and cycle routes 
would be surfaced using hot-rolled asphalt. Lighting columns are identified along the 
full length of the route. 
 
The application is supported by a number of documents which are available to view on 
the Planning and Building Standards Online Services: - 
 
Planning, Design and Access Statement 
Transport Assessment 
Landscape and Visual Appraisal 
Heritage Impact Assessment 
Ecological Impact Assessment 
Archaeology Statement  
PAC Report 
S1 Sustainability Form 
 
 

Page 114



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 9 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

An Environmental Impact Assessment was submitted to support the application, which 
scoped in the following topic areas: - 
 
Scope and Methodology 
Site and Scheme Description 
Transport  
Noise and Vibration 
Air Quality 
Water Environment 
Ground Conditions 
Cumulative and Residual Effects 
Mitigation, Monitoring and Conclusions 
Non-Technical Summary 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) The principle of development is acceptable; 
b) The proposal would achieve co-ordinated development; 
c) The proposal raises transport issues; 
d) The design would be acceptable; 
e) The proposal would result in strategic landscape impact; 
f) The proposal raises issues relating to surface water management; 
g) The proposal raises issues relating to ecology and biodiversity; 
h) The proposal raises issues relating to archaeology; 
i) The proposal raises issues relating to air quality  
j) The proposal would adversely affect the amenity of neighbours; 
k) The proposal would raise infrastructure contribution; 
l) The proposed EIA is acceptable; 
m) The proposal address issues raised in representations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 10 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

a) Principle of Development 
 
Policy Context 
 
National Planning Framework 3 (NPF) 
 
The NPF identifies various National Developments in Scotland. The purpose of 
National Development Status is to establish the need for these developments. Although 
it does not grant consent for them, development plans are required to take account of 
the NPF. Strategic airport enhancements, including Edinburgh Airport are identified as 
National Developments. 
 
Although the NPF make reference to new walking and cycling routes there is no 
specific reference to vehicle based access roads to the airport. The NPF3 supports the 
expansion of Edinburgh Airport as defined in its current Masterplan that is supported by 
the development plan. The current draft 2016 Airport Masterplan shows an indicative 
route for two access roads, one following the current eastern boundary of the airport 
providing access to the cargo area at Turnhouse to the Gogar roundabout and the 
other largely following the route of the Gogar Burn providing access from Gogar to the 
car parks in front of the terminal building. It should be noted that the Airport Masterplan 
has not been formally approved by the Council nor are these indicative access roads 
identified in the LDP.  
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 
 
SPP states that the NPF is the spatial expression of Government Economic Strategy 
(2011) and sustainable economic growth forms the foundations of its strategy. The NPF 
sits at the top of the development plan hierarchy and must be taken into account in the 
preparation of strategic and local development plans. 
 
Strategic Development Plan (SDP) 
 
The approved Strategic Development Plan identifies Edinburgh Airport within the West 
Edinburgh Strategic Development Area. It notes that the strategic enhancement of 
Edinburgh Airport has been identified as a national development within the National 
Planning Framework. It also notes that the area is an attractive location for inward 
investment as well as airport expansion proposals including the development of a new 
multi-modal station at Gogar, the creation of an International Business Gateway (IBG) 
and the resolution of Gogar Burn flooding issues. 
 
LDP Policy Emp 4 - Edinburgh Airport 
 
LDP Policy Emp 4 outlines specific planning policy requirements in respect of the 
development and enhancement of Edinburgh Airport. The purpose of the policy is to 
guide proposals for airport expansion in accordance with NPF3. 
 
The policy states that development and enhancement will be supported within the 
airport boundary defined on the Proposals Map. It is expected that an approved master 
plan will inform this process. Proposals for ancillary services and facilities will only be 
permitted where it is demonstrated these have strong and functional and location links 
with the airport and are compatible with the operational requirements of the airport. 

Page 116



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 11 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
All development proposals within the airport boundary must accord with the WESDF 
and other relevant local development plan policies. Supporting information will be 
required to demonstrate how proposals will contribute to meeting the mode share 
targets in the WESDF. 
 
West Edinburgh Strategic Design Framework (WESDF) 2010 
 
The WESDF establishes a vision for West Edinburgh, articulating LDP objectives and 
providing strategic design principles for specific development proposals including the 
expansion of Edinburgh Airport and the International Business Gateway. Strategic 
design principles are also established in relation to landscape and public realm, 
buildings, movement and infrastructure. 
 
All development proposals within the airport boundary must accord with the WESDF 
and other relevant local development plan policies. Supporting information will be 
required to demonstrate how proposals will contribute to meeting the mode share 
targets in the WESDF. 
 
As part of the section addressing Movement, the WESDF seeks to ensure that 
movement both to and through West Edinburgh is sustainable as possible with the 
network of routes contributing to a high-quality environment. Development Principle M1 
states that development should be as sustainable as possible, maximising the use of 
public transport and the promotion of walking and cycling through a range of measures 
to make these modes of transport as attractive and convenient as possible. 
Development Principle M2 states that transport infrastructure should contribute to the 
creation of a sense of place with new routes laid out on a grid and the Gogar Link Road 
designed to a 30mph speed or lower.  
 
Summary - Principle of Development  
 
The current National Planning Framework (NPF3) identifies the application site is of 
strategic importance to Edinburgh Airport.  
 
LDP Policy Emp 4 outlines that the development and enhancement of Edinburgh 
Airport will be supported within the airport boundary defined on the Proposals Map. The 
approved master plan will inform this process. Proposals for ancillary services and 
facilities will only be permitted where it is demonstrated these have strong and 
functional and location links with the airport and are compatible with the operational 
requirements of the airport. 
 
The majority of proposed access road is within the defined boundary for Edinburgh 
Airport and the proposal could be argued as having strong, functional and location links 
with the airport and may be compatible with its operations. The general principle of a 
new access road serving the airport would therefore be in accordance with the LDP. 
 
However, this proposal is not supported by an Airport Masterplan which has been 
approved by the Council and agreed with key stakeholders. A draft masterplan dates 
from 2016 but has a not been subject to any formal approval process with the Council. 
A further draft was prepared by the Airport in 2020.  

Page 117



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 12 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

This identifies an eastern access road to the north east of the decommissioned 
Crosswinds runway which would serve an expanded air freight terminal to the north, 
however, this latest draft has not been subject to any formal approval process.  
 
The applicant's case for the development largely rests with a draft masterplan that is 
now 5 years old and a further draft which as yet has not been approved by the Council 
or key stakeholders. These represent a materially different context to the present date 
across a range of competing factors, not least airport growth. These draft masterplans 
should therefore be afforded little or no weight.  
 
LDP Policy Emp 4 states that all development proposals within the airport boundary 
must accord with the WESDF and other relevant local development plan policies. 
Supporting information will be required to demonstrate how proposals will contribute to 
meeting the mode share targets in the WESDF. 
 
WESDF refers to the application site in the operational context of as forming an 
operational part of Edinburgh Airport. Whilst a new access road serving the airport is 
identified, this is articulated as the Gogar Link Road, which is in turn supported by LDP 
Proposal T9. It does not support an access road along the alignment which has been 
proposed as part of this application.   
 
The application proposals have not demonstrated how transport mode share targets 
outlined in WESDF would be achieved, these further articulated in the WETA Refresh 
Study 2016. 
 
The nature of the proposed development is contrary to the existing National Planning 
Policy 3, the Strategic Development Plan and the Local Development Plan (LDP) 
specifically LDP Policy Emp 4. The proposal does fully address requirements of this 
policy as the application proposal is not supported by an approved airport master plan 
nor does it accord with the West Edinburgh Strategic Design Framework (WESDF) 
2010 and other local development policies. The proposal would be prejudicial to the 
implementation of LDP Proposal T9, Gogar Link Road specifically the delivery of 
proposed new roads, network improvements and public transport improvements. It 
would thereby fail to address requirements of LDP Transport Policies Tra 10, Tra 7, Tra 
8 and Des 2, Co-ordinated Development. These are further assessed as part of 
sections related to Co-ordinated Development and Transport below. 
 
 
b) Co-ordinated Development 
 
LDP Policy Des 2 - Co-ordinated Development states that Planning Permission will be 
granted for development which will not compromise:- 
 
a) The effective development of adjacent land or 
b) The comprehensive development of a wider area as provided for in a 

masterplan, strategy or development brief approved by the Council. 
 
 
 
 

Page 118



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 13 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

The Council encourages a comprehensive approach to redevelopment and 
regeneration wherever possible, and the preparation of development frameworks or 
masterplans to identify the full potential for creating successful places, particularly to 
ensure a cohesive network of streets and spaces including green/blue networks are to 
be created. Piecemeal development is less likely to lead to the creation of well-defined 
and cohesive networks of streets and spaces. 
 
In relation to part a) of this policy, there is concern to the relationship between this 
proposal and the current development proposals for the adjacent Crosswinds site, 
which partially overlaps with this application to the south east.   
 
Whilst both represent discrete proposals, there is nevertheless a close interrelationship 
between the Crosswinds development and this application proposal. Detailed 
masterplanning was undertaken in relation to the Crosswinds application, this making 
provision for the access road proposal to the north eastern edge of the site. The road 
would also provide road access for the Crosswinds site. The Crosswinds application 
(Reference:-20/03219/PPP) is now subject to appeal for non-determination with 
subsequent call-in by Scottish Ministers. Until the outcome of this appeal is fully 
understood, the development status for the Crosswinds site remains unresolved.   
 
In the absence of a decision by Scottish Ministers, it is not possible to fully understand 
whether this proposal would compromise the effective development of adjacent land. 
The strategic design context of the route has yet to be fully established and further 
detailed masterplanning would be required to ensure potential opportunities for 
achieving coordinated development, securing effective linkages and connectivity are 
maximised. For a proposal of this nature, it would also be critical to ensure that the 
development of green/blue networks, carbon reduction and exemplary placemaking 
can be achieved.   
 
The applicant maintains that this application proposal would be additional to LDP 
Proposal T9, Gogar Link Road which is required to support development in West 
Edinburgh. This is further discussed in the Transport section below. 
 
However, as proposed, there are concerns that this proposal for an eastern airport 
access road would effectively fix the alignment of the route to the airport, potentially 
resulting in the need for a second access to serve IBG and Eastfield Road.  Although a 
proposal for an eastern airport access road is shown as part of the draft Airport 
Masterplan 2025, this has not been approved by the Council or agreed with key 
stakeholders.  
 
This application proposal is not identified as part the West Edinburgh Strategic Design 
Framework (WESDF), does not align with the objectives for LDP Proposal T9, Gogar 
Link Road, or the outcomes of the WETA Refresh Study. 
 
Given the current planning status of the land, the application proposal is not currently 
supported by an approved masterplan, strategy or development brief approved by the 
Council. The application proposal would therefore fail to address part b) of the policy. 
 
In summary, the proposed development would be contrary to Local Development Plan 
(LDP) Policy Des 2, Co-ordinated Development, parts a) and b) and would fail to deliver 
coordinated development in West Edinburgh. 

Page 119



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 14 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

The strategic design context of the route has not yet been fully established and it is not 
yet possible to demonstrate how the proposal would successfully integrate with the 
development of adjacent land or potentially contribute to the delivery of green-blue 
networks. 
 
The application would be contrary to the current LDP. The application is not supported 
by an Airport Masterplan which has been approved by the Council and agreed with key 
stakeholders and is therefore premature. 
 
 
c) Transport 
 
Proposed Route Alignment  
 
The application proposal is described as an Eastern Access Road, this providing a 
single carriageway route between the Gogar Roundabout and the Airport (eastern 
terminus). The requirement for such a new eastern access road is identified in the draft 
Airport Masterplan 2025. 
 
The applicant states that the purpose of the access road is to reduce congestion and 
increase airport resilience, relieving pressure on Eastfield Road, with one main access 
point to the airport being suboptimal. The proposed access road is to provide enhanced 
access to the air freight and cargo areas at Turnhouse, providing additional access 
from the east both for public transport (buses and taxis serving the airport terminal) and 
private cars (to long/mid stay car parks). 
 
The Planning, Design and Access Statement outlines three alternative routes which 
were explored by the applicant:- 
 
1) A western alignment comprising a New Link Road and New Main Street as per 

the alignment proposed by WETA; 
2) A western alignment based on the LDP Proposal T9; 
3) A route through the middle of the Crosswinds site. 
 
An assessment of alternative route options and potential impacts were also considered 
as part of the EIA Report. It was concluded by the applicant that Alternatives 1 and 2 
would result in adverse impact on traffic compared with the eastern alignment, with an 
eastern alignment removing the requirement for substantial amount of dual carriageway 
as per the WETA proposal. The applicant also states that Alternative 2, based in LDP 
Proposal T9 would not provide an additional route to the airport as this only connects to 
Eastfield Road. 
 
The applicant has prepared a Transport Assessment to support the application.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 120



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 15 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Gogar Link Road and Gogar Roundabout 
 
LDP Table 9, Transport Proposal and Safeguards, Road Access and Capacity, 
identifies Proposal T9, Gogar Link Road as being required to support long term 
development in West Edinburgh. The LDP Proposals Map shows an indicative route 
immediately to the south west of the application site, this linking Gogar Roundabout 
and Eastfield Road via IBG and the Castle Gogar Estate. Although the route shown on 
the proposals map is indicative the principle of the link road is established. 
 
The LDP suggests this route would be largely single carriageway through IBG with 
some widening to allow public transport priority. The link may be bus/cycle/pedestrian 
only.  
 
The Gogar Link Road is envisaged as a street to serve the IBG westwards as well as 
the airport, with the east-west alignment required to ensure effective access and 
permeability through the wider IBG area. 
 
The site boundary also includes LDP Proposal T12 which identifies improvements to 
the Gogar Roundabout, required to support development in West Edinburgh. Measures 
could include an extra lane on the inside of the existing roundabout and may also 
include some widening of approaches. 
 
WETA Refresh Study 
 
The West Edinburgh Transport Appraisal (WETA) Refresh Study was approved by the 
Council in December 2016.  The Study took into account a number of changes in West 
Edinburgh, particularly in relation to a number of planned developments but also in 
specific relation to airport growth. The various transport mitigation measures identified 
as part of the study subsequently informed the interventions identified in the LDP 
Action Programme to support the delivery of LDP site allocations in West Edinburgh. 
One of the key transport actions in WETA is the provision of the Gogar Link Road.  
 
The feasibility and options for the Gogar Link Road were further considered as part of 
the Refresh Study, with this route intended to improve network resilience to Edinburgh 
Airport and to open up development opportunities in west Edinburgh.  
 
The Study considered five separate access strategies with strategy 4c emerging as the 
best performing package of measures to bring forward development. A proposed 
alignment for the link road, skirting the south western edge of the Crosswinds site, 
emerged from the WETA Refresh Study as the best option to address the different 
requirements of development and the airport whilst providing an efficient network with 
flexibility for public transport provision, walking, cycling and general road users.  
The WETA Study advocated a 'Y' shaped network of routes based around the Gogar 
Link Road. A single route would lead from Gogar Roundabout, before splitting to the 
north east of Castle Gogar. A western route would then cross the Gogar Burn to 
provide a link with IBG and Eastfield Road, this potentially providing a further link to 
airport from the south. An eastern route would then provide a link to the air freight 
terminal at Turnhouse. The WETA Study also suggested the possibility of additional 
lanes along the central section of the route to allow for public transport priority.  
 

Page 121



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 16 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

At the time the WETA Study was prepared in 2016, the Crosswinds runway was still 
operational and therefore limited options to where such a route could be placed. The 
findings of the Crosswinds EIA also identified the importance of Castle Gogar and 
Castle Gogar Estate in terms of the cultural heritage, with the Gogar Burn and Castle 
Gogar Estate being of ecological value. These factors would need to be considered in 
the design of any detailed alignment. 
 
Given, the closure of the Crosswinds runway, this now presents an opportunity to 
further consider the detailed alignment of the Gogar Link Road. In view of these factors, 
it was requested as part of pre-application discussions that alternative routes be 
explored including a principal street or boulevard placed more centrally, to the 
Crosswinds site, this providing through access serving both IBG and the Airport. This 
has been explored as part of the Planning, Design and Access Statement but only 
identifies a single preferred option, e.g. the Eastern Access Road, which is proposed as 
part of the application. 
  
This proposal for an eastern access road is a stand-alone proposal and is not aligned 
with the WETA Study findings, nor does it represent the safeguarded route as set out in 
the LDP. As proposed, it represents a completely independent access point to the 
airport and the air freight depot at Turnhouse. 
 
There is concern that options to deliver the Gogar Link Road are being ruled out 
prematurely and this application proposal fixes a road alignment to the east which 
would effectively limit a wider range of options from being further explored.  
 
Assessment 
 
LDP Policy Tra 10 - New and Existing Roads, does not support permission being 
granted for development which would prejudice the proposed new roads and road 
network improvements listed in Table 9 and shown indicatively on the Proposals Map. 
The Council does not generally support new road construction or road improvements 
aimed at increasing capacity on the road network. However, in some cases proposals 
are necessary to mitigate the effects of development on the road network or to improve 
existing congestion levels. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 7 - Public Transport Proposals and Safeguards, states that planning 
permission will not be granted for development which would prejudice the 
implementation of the public transport proposals and safeguards listed in LDP Table 9 
and shown indicatively on the Proposals Map.  
 
LDP Policy Tra 8 - Provision of Transport Infrastructure, states that development 
proposals relating to major housing or other development site, and which would 
generate a significant amount of traffic, shall demonstrate through an appropriate 
transport assessment and proposed mitigation that: 
 
a) Identified local and city wide individual and cumulative transport impacts can be 

timeously addressed in so far as relevant and necessary for the proposal; 
b) Any required transport infrastructure in Table 9 and in general and site specific 

development principles has been addressed as relevant to the proposal. 
 

Page 122



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 17 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

The proposal has been assessed in relation to the West Edinburgh Transport Appraisal 
Refresh Study (WETA).  
 
The proposed access road is not considered to meet the requirements of the Gogar 
Link Road set out in the WETA Refresh Study. Whilst there is some flexibility with the 
proposed alignment, the proposed road configuration aligns the airport link eastwards 
of the set out in WETA and is considered to promote the north/south direction of travel 
over access to IBG and Eastfield Road lying to the west. The proposed alignment is 
considered to focus on access to the airport rather than the main IBG area and is likely 
to be to the detriment of public transport serving the IBG site.  
 
Although the provision of an eastern airport access route could provide enhanced 
access for bus services using the airport, particularly from the east, it has not been 
demonstrated how this proposal relates to wider public transport objectives for west 
Edinburgh including the findings of the WETA Study and the implications for delivery of 
LDP Proposal T9, Gogar Link Road, which identifies dedicated provision for public 
transport.  
 
The Gogar Link Road is intended not only to improve network resilience to Edinburgh 
Airport but also to open up development opportunities in west Edinburgh. The proposed 
Link Road alignment emerged from WETA as the best option to address the different 
requirements of development and the airport whilst providing an efficient network with 
flexibility for public transport provision, walking, cycling and general road users.  
 
The Planning, Access and Design Statement prepared by the applicant suggests that 
the proposal will not prevent the delivery of the Gogar Link Road and will facilitate the 
delivery of the route, providing an important connection that will unlock the delivery of 
the Crosswinds site. 
 
This further suggests that the proposed access road would not be 'instead of' but 'as 
well as' the Gogar Link Road and this point is fundamental to whether the proposal 
meets the requirements of LDP Policy Tra 10, New and Existing Roads. This policy 
makes clear that the Council does not generally support new road construction aimed 
at increasing capacity on the road network which is the clear intention of this proposal. 
 
The WETA Study advocated a multi-purpose route for the Gogar Link Road, which 
avoided the need for multiple routes serving the airport. A single route would be more 
efficient, both serving and being funded through a range of development interests. If a 
further route had to be delivered in addition to that proposed through this application, 
additional resources would need to be secured. It is also not clear if the proposed road 
would actually be needed once the Gogar Link Road was delivered. This could result in 
additional road capacity over and above the existing proposals, inevitably encouraging 
increased car trips to the airport and undermining modal shift. In respect of Public 
Transport Proposals and Safeguards, LDP Policy Tra 7 seeks to ensure that 
development proposals take account of committed and potential public transport 
proposals which are required to reduce reliance on travel by private car and help meet 
climate change targets and sustainable development objectives.  
 
 
 

Page 123



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 18 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

The requirements of LDP Proposal T9 Gogar Link Road have not been properly 
explored as part of the application and critically, how connections beyond the site 
boundaries would be achieved. Although potential access points have been indicated 
to the Crosswinds site, no linkages have been identified to landholdings to the west of 
the Gogar Burn nor has it been indicated how the proposed alignment is intended to 
serve IBG and Eastfield Road to the west.  
 
The proposed access is a stand-alone proposal to deliver enhanced access to the 
airport by providing a secondary access point from the north east. Although the access 
does not pass through the IBG or the safeguarded access route, there is still the 
potential to prejudice the delivery of the Gogar Link Road, because it will form another 
road connecting to the Gogar roundabout. 
 
The proposal does not represent a joined up approached, will not contribute towards 
placemaking, with the possibility of two roads instead of one and the unintended 
consequences on the road network which were not modelled by the WETA Refresh 
Study. 
 
The proposed route is not consistent with the safeguarded LDP Proposal T9, for the 
Gogar Link Road, a route which has been subject to comprehensive analysis in the 
context of a strategic package of transport measure for West Edinburgh. It is critical 
that objectives can be realised, i.e. development of a link between the Gogar 
Roundabout and Eastfield Road via IBG, and this is not prejudiced.  
 
Public Transport 
 
The Transport Appraisal has undertaken an analysis of existing bus routes, tram and 
heavy rail services in the vicinity of the application site. 
 
The provision of an eastern airport access route could provide enhanced access for 
bus services using the airport, particularly from the east. However, it is not clear how 
this proposal relates to wider public transport objectives for west Edinburgh including 
the findings of the WETA Study and the implications for delivery of LDP Proposal T9, 
Gogar Link Road, which identifies dedicated provision for public transport.  
 
Two bus stop facilities are proposed adjacent to the proposed Crosswinds site. These 
facilities would consist of cage markings which would be provided on the general 
carriageway.  
 
Given that the development status for the Crosswinds site, there is concern that these 
locations may not provide optimal public transport provision for the development of this 
site, being placed at its north eastern edge. 
 
Active Travel 
 
The application identifies a new active travel route. A shared use pedestrian/cycle route 
(3.5 metre width) is proposed along the central and south eastern sections of the of the 
route with a dedicated westbound cycle route partially extending along the existing 
alignment of Eastfield Avenue. However, this would not be continuous along the full 
length of the proposed road alignment with no dedicated provision for cyclists along 
parts of the western and central sections.  

Page 124



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 19 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Also, the route would not be continuous along both sides of the road alignment and it 
would be necessary to cross the south eastern section via an un-signalised crossing. 
    
Whilst the proposal has included some of the required elements for active travel 
provision, it is not been demonstrated how the proposed design has been developed in 
accordance with the Edinburgh Street Design Guidance. The proposed layout is not 
considered to be supportive of cycle use due to:-  
 

− The requirement to cross carriageways at a number of locations. This would be 
prejudicial to the continuity of the off-road network; 

− Lack of pedestrian and cycle priority at side road crossings; 

− Lack of crossing opportunities at the proposed north-eastern roundabout 

− Crossing points not being on desire lines; 

− Absence of coherent signalised crossing at Gogar Roundabout to link Quiet 
Route 9 on the north side of the A8 (this connecting Newbridge with South Gyle) 

− The current absence of built form and lack of enclosure along the south eastern 
parts of the route could also result in a feeling of remoteness, particularly for 
pedestrians and cyclists.   

 
Issues relating to the design of the active travel measures were raised extensively as 
part of representations, with particular reference to east-west access to the north of the 
Gogar Roundabout and the impact on Quiet Route 9. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 9 - Cycle and Footpath Networks, states that permission will not be 
granted for development which would: a) prevent the implementation of proposed 
cycle/footpaths shown on the Proposals Map; b) be detrimental to a path which forms 
part of the core paths network or prejudice the continuity of the off-road network 
generally. 
 
As proposed, the layout would be detrimental to the continuity of Quiet Route 9, which 
forms part of the strategic off-road cycle network between Newbridge and the Gyle, this 
extending  along the northern edge of the A8. 
 
The Transport Appraisal has conducted analysis of existing walking and cycling 
provision in the locality and notes the current inaccessibility of the Crosswind site and 
absence of such routes which currently lead to the Airport. This point would be 
accepted given the nature of the Crosswinds site as an operational part of the airport. 
It is not clear how this proposal both relates to and seeks to develop the wider strategic 
active travel network. This proposal would appear primarily focussed on the delivery of 
a general traffic route to airport and it has not been demonstrated how this would seek 
to complement the strategic active travel network, both existing and proposed 
particularly links to adjacent landholdings including IBG. The Edinburgh Street Design 
Guidance also emphasises the importance of prioritising pedestrians, walking and 
public transport in street design and this has not been borne out as part of the 
proposal. 
 
Access to the Tram Depot 
 
Edinburgh Trams have provided comments, these also captured by Transport. These 
have expressed a range of concerns regarding the proposed road layout where this 
interfaces with the Tram Depot and in relation to drainage. 

Page 125



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 20 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
Myreton Drive was purposely designed to provide access to the Tram Depot including 
specialist articulated low loader vehicles used to move tram vehicles to and from the 
depot. The proposed layout, which would significantly alter the existing route of 
Myreton Drive, does not appear adequate for this purpose. 
 
Transport have commented that the proposed route alignment is likely to impact on the 
existing tram crossing at Eastfield Avenue, which lies immediately to the south of the 
Airport tram stop. Although this lies outside the red line boundary, the proposed route 
will result in increased traffic flows using the crossing and this may present issues for 
the operation of the tram.  
 
Given the broader issues affecting this application, these matters have not been 
discussed with the applicant and therefore remain unresolved. 
 
Summary - Transport issues 
 
The WETA Refresh Study 2016 advocated a multi-purpose route for the Gogar Link 
Road, which avoided the need for multiple routes serving the airport. 
 
This proposal for an eastern access road represents a stand-alone proposal and is not 
aligned with the findings of the WETA Study, nor does it represent the safeguarded 
route as set out in the LDP. As proposed, it represents a completely independent 
access point to the airport and the air freight depot at Turnhouse. 
 
There is concern that options to deliver the Gogar Link Road are being ruled out 
prematurely and this application proposal fixes a road alignment to the east which 
would effectively limit a wider range of options from being further explored. The 
proposal does not represent a joined up approach, will not contribute towards 
placemaking, with the possibility of two roads instead of one and the unintended 
consequences on the road network which were not modelled by the WETA Study. 
 
The proposed route is not consistent with the safeguarded LDP Proposal T9, for the 
Gogar Link Road, a route which has been subject to comprehensive analysis in the 
context of a strategic package of transport measures for West Edinburgh. It is critical 
that objectives can be realised, i.e. development of a link between the Gogar 
Roundabout and Eastfield Road via IBG, this also serving the Airport, and this is not 
prejudiced. 
  
The proposed development would be prejudicial to the implementation of Local 
Development Proposal T9, Gogar Link Road, specifically the delivery of proposed new 
roads, network improvements and public transport proposals. The proposed route 
alignment would prejudice the road network improvements and public transport 
improvements as listed in the LDP Table 9. 
 
The proposal has failed to address the objectives of the WETA Refresh Study 2016 in 
that it has not demonstrated how a multi-purpose link required to support long term 
sustainable development in West Edinburgh would be delivered. 
 
 

Page 126



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 21 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

The proposal is thereby contrary to LDP Policies Tra 10 - New and Existing Roads, Tra 
7- Public Transport Proposals and Safeguards and Tra 8 - Provision of Transport 
Infrastructure, part b) in that transport infrastructure identified in LDP Proposal Table 9 
has not been addressed as relevant to the proposal.  
 
 
d) Design 
 
The West Edinburgh Strategic Design Framework, 2010, establishes a vision for West 
Edinburgh providing guidance in relation to specific development sites, landscape and 
public realm, buildings, movement and infrastructure. The guidance also supports key 
LDP policies relating to West Edinburgh including Emp 4. 
 
With regard to street design, detailed guidance is contained in the Council's Edinburgh 
Design Guidance and Edinburgh Street Design Guidance this aligning with the Scottish 
Government's Designing Streets Policy Guidance. The Edinburgh Street Design 
Guidance sets out the Council's expectations for the design of Edinburgh's streets to 
support the Council's wider policies, in particular transport and planning policies. 
 
Early design proposals were presented to the Edinburgh Urban Design Panel (EUDP) 
on 27 November 2019. The Panel identified the following issues:- 
 

− The airports masterplan needs to be revised to address the City's carbon neutral 
and set the context for road access requirements and modal shift. 

− Linkages to adjacent development area and transport infrastructure requires 
further consideration especially with respect to pedestrian and cycle routes. 

− Further traffic modelling is required to assess the impact on the existing road 
network. 

− A full landscape strategy should be prepared to provide a context for the road. 

− Temporary landscape should be considered to create an attractive approach to 
the city in the interim, as future development may take many years to be 
completed. 

 
Further advice in relation to design matters, including landscape and streetscape was 
provided as part of Planning Pre-Application discussions. 
 
LDP Policy Des 1 - Design Quality and Context states that development should 
demonstrate how proposals will create or contribute towards a sense of place. Design 
should be based on an overall design concept that draws upon the positive 
characteristics of the surrounding area. Permission will not be granted for poor quality 
or inappropriate design or for proposals that would damaging to the character or 
appearance of the area around it, particularly where this has special importance. 
 
A Planning, Design and Access Statement has been submitted. Whilst some analysis 
has been undertaken of the site context, this is largely based around planning policy 
and development issues, rather than seeking to provide a comprehensive overview of 
the strategic design context for the proposal. 
 
 
 

Page 127



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 22 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

The application site, particularly the south eastern section of the route is largely 
characterised by open land related to the airport, with Eastfield Avenue occupied by a 
range of ancillary uses and premises associated with the airport, these flanked by large 
areas of surface car parking. 
 
Although the potential for incorporating and enhancing existing and potential features 
as part of the proposal, as per LDP Policy Des 3, is relatively limited, the openness of 
the site allows for views to features within the wider landscape including Castle Gogar, 
the Pentlands, Corstorphine Hill and the Forth Bridges. Whilst views to these features 
would not be diminished by the proposal, it has not been demonstrated how the design 
concept has sought to respond to these features. 
 
The proposed route alignment will establish the placemaking framework for the 
potential redevelopment of the Crosswinds site.  
 
LDP Policy Des 7 - Layout Design, emphasises the need for comprehensive and 
integrated approach to the layout of new buildings, streets, footpaths and cycle paths 
and SUDS features. Furthermore, Edinburgh Street Design Guidance (Section 4.3) 
outlines that when creating new street patterns, designers should seek to create an 
urban form that establishes suitable grid and patterns and creates relationships 
between street widths and building heights. 
 
However, there is concern that the design concept for the proposal has been 
developed in the absence of a full understanding of the emerging context, not least the 
City Plan 2030 and spatial strategy for West Edinburgh. Crosswinds does not yet form 
a committed development proposal supported by the development plan or national 
planning policy. The planning context of the proposal site is not therefore established 
nor can an integrated design approach with the development of adjacent land be 
demonstrated at this stage. 
 
The proposed route alignment would also result in a one-sided street running parallel to 
the railway. This could reinforce the existing 'edge' created by the railway along the 
north eastern extents of the site and limit the potential of providing future connections 
to adjacent landholdings, including Maybury/West Craigs. 
 
The existing character of Eastfield Avenue is utilitarian and functional in nature, this 
forming an existing access through the Airport estate. The proposal will result in this 
becoming a through route, yet minimal steps have been taken to positively enhance the 
environmental quality of this route as a key entrance and arrival point into the city. The 
perception of the south eastern section of the route, currently occupied by land 
associated with the former runway could remain poor until such a time that 
development is forthcoming and/or landscaping is established. 
 
The design concept has not sought to fully draw upon the positive characteristics of the 
locality. The proposed route would not contribute towards a high-quality environment, 
which is a reflection of the fact that it does not form part of an integrated design 
approach to development in west Edinburgh. The strategic design approach for the 
proposal is flawed and may result in placemaking opportunities being missed.  
 
 

Page 128



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 23 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

There are concerns that the proposal has largely been derived from the operational 
needs of the Airport and has not responded fully to committed developments in the 
immediate context of the site including Maybury/West Craigs and International 
Business Gateway.   
 
LDP Policy Des 8 - Public Realm and Landscape Design states that external spaces 
and features, including streets, footpaths, civic spaces, green spaces, boundary 
treatments should be designed as an integral part of the scheme as a whole and it has 
been demonstrated that:- 
 
a) the design and materials to be used are appropriate for their intended purpose, to 
use and character of the area generally, especially this has a special interest or 
importance; 
b) the different elements of paving, landscaping and street furniture are coordinated to 
avoid a sense of clutter, and in larger schemes design and provision will be coordinated 
over several phases of development; 
c) particular consideration has been given, if appropriate, to the planting of trees to 
provide a landscape setting for buildings, boundaries and road sides and create a 
robust landscape structure; 
 
The overall design approach has largely been based conventional roads design 
principles - more typical of a new road passing through an undeveloped area, such as 
a rural by-pass, rather than an urban street. Although hedged boundaries are proposed 
along parts of the route, hard surface treatments and fenced boundaries which would 
be largely functional and utilitarian in nature.  
 
The EUDP suggested that a full landscape strategy be provided to provide a context for 
the road with possible temporary landscape measures to create an attractive approach 
to the city.  
 
Detailed landscape proposals have been prepared by competent consultants, with a 
satisfactory level of detail although these have not been supported by a wider 
landscape strategy to establish a landscape context for the route nor have temporary 
landscape proposals been provided. In the absence of this, there is concern that the 
road could be in existence for many years before development takes place therefore it 
is important the sacrificial landscape is provided so that the road integrates with its 
surroundings. 
 
There are also concerns that in the absence of a robust landscape strategy, 
opportunities to integrate such a route as part of a strategic Green/Blue network are 
potentially being missed. 
 
The extents of soft landscaping are minimal with few trees proposed within the scheme. 
The proposed road alignment sits in a relatively narrow corridor where opportunities to 
create a strong landscape structure will be limited.  
 
The proposed embankments including the slopes to the proposed swale features are 
indicated as 1:3 which is steep and likely to make grass cutting and maintenance 
difficult. In visual terms, a 1:3 slope will also appear engineered rather than a 
shallower, more natural slope that ties into the adjacent landscape. 
 

Page 129



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 24 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Summary 
 
The Edinburgh Street Design Guidance is intended to bring about a shift in emphasis of 
street design across the city from a movement dominated approach, to one which starts 
considering streets as places. The WESDF also seeks to ensure that movement both to 
and through West Edinburgh is as sustainable as possible with the network of routes 
contributing to a high-quality environment. Furthermore, under principle M1 
development is to be as sustainable as possible, maximising the use of public transport 
and promotion of walking and cycling measures. 
 
The application proposal is based on a functional roads design which has prioritised 
movement before place. The overall design concept has not sought to draw up the 
positive characteristics of the surrounding area or demonstrate how it would contribute 
to a sense of place. The design has been primarily driven by the requirements of 
vehicular traffic, not least the private car, with the needs of pedestrians and cyclists 
treated as secondary. The proposals have not been supported by a landscape strategy 
to provide a context for the route nor has a robust landscape structure been proposed, 
with minimal levels of tree planting identified.  
 
The strategic design context of the route has not yet been fully established and it is not 
yet possible to demonstrate how the proposal would successfully integrate with the 
development of adjacent land or potentially contribute to the delivery of green-blue 
networks. The environment along parts of the proposed route would form a poor initial 
impression to the city for passengers arriving at Edinburgh Airport. 
 
The proposal has not addressed requirements of LDP Policy Des 1 or Des 8, part c). 
 
The design proposals have not been developed in line with principles contained in the 
Edinburgh Street Design Guidance, the Scottish Government's Designing Streets policy 
guidance, or the West Edinburgh Strategic Design Framework. 
 
 
e) Strategic Landscape Impact 
 
LDP Policy Des 9 - Urban Edge Development identifies that permission will only be 
granted for development on sites at the green belt boundary where it: a) conserves and 
enhances the landscape setting of the city and c) includes landscape improvement 
proposals that will strengthen the green belt boundary and contribute to multi-functional 
green networks by improving amenity and enhancing biodiversity. 
 
The site lies at the western edge of the city in close proximity to the rural edge and 
green belt, where a number of landscape characters converge. The relatively open 
nature of the site affords expansive views to open countryside and landscape features.  
 
In view of these issues, a Landscape Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) has been 
submitted as part of the application. This has considered 3 viewpoints along the length 
of the proposed route. 
 
Given the linearity and low-level nature of development and the relatively low sensitivity 
of its landscape and visual context, landscape and visual effects are expected to be 
limited. 

Page 130



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 25 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
However, although the site does not form a boundary with the green belt, there are 
concerns that in the absence of a robust landscape strategy, and failing to establish a 
clear relationship with the emerging spatial strategy for west Edinburgh, opportunities 
to integrate such a route as part of a strategic multi-functional green networks are 
potentially being missed. Therefore, the proposal does not fully address the 
requirements of LDP Policy Des 9, part c).  
 
 
f) Surface Water Management 
 
Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
Matters relating to water environment have been considered as part of the EIA Report, 
this including a Flood Risk Assessment. Surface Water Management Plan (SWMP) 
information and detailed drainage design. 
 
Given reporting deadlines, Flood Prevention were unable to provide a finalised 
consultation response to the application and had requested that further confirmation be 
provided in relation to surface water attenuation up to the 1:200-year flooding event + 
40% climate change for all 4 proposed catchments. The SWMP also notes that for 
some sections of the road, no attenuation is proposed. Also, the correct self-
certification certification had not been signed. Due to time constraints this information 
was not been sought from the applicant. 
  
SEPA have commented that the proposal is Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) compliant 
and have no objection on flood risk grounds. However, they have noted that it is for the 
Council as Flooding Authority to comment on the acceptability of propose surface water 
management measures and the provision of safe vehicular/egress routes in event of 
flooding.  
 
In view of these comments, whilst it is considered that the nature of the proposal would 
address requirements of LDP Policy Env 21, part a) in that it would not increase a flood 
risk or be at risk of flooding itself, should the decision be taken to grant planning 
permission, it is recommended that these matters relating to surface water attenuation 
would need to be addressed.   
 
LDP Proposal GS7 - Gogar Burn Diversion 
 
LDP Greenspace Proposal GS7 identifies an enhancement and diversion of the Gogar 
Burn with a potential realignment crossing the north western part of the application site. 
The LDP shows an indicative alignment linking the existing course of the Gogar Burn to 
the south west of the site with the River Almond to the north, this crossing the former 
Crosswind runway. The proposed alignment flanks the southern edge of the site for 
approximately 740 metres before crossing the site in a northerly direction towards the 
air freight terminal. 
 
Such a project would offer benefits of reducing flood risk, improving water quality and 
enhancing biodiversity. The proposal is a long running aspiration originally developed 
by the Gogar Burn Partnership and was incorporated into relevant documents, 
including development plans. 

Page 131



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 26 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
SEPA do not consider that this proposal would compromise the principle of the overall 
long-standing aspiration of the Gogar Burn re-diversion but have remarked there is no 
technical information that accompanies this application to confirm. SEPA had 
previously requested that the EIA should demonstrate how this proposal will contribute 
to the re-diversion of the Gogar Burn. Following discussions between the applicant and 
SEPA in March 2020, the EIA has provided justification in this respect, and it has been 
demonstrated that the proposed development will not prevent a future Gogar Burn re-
diversion.  
 
SEPA are therefore satisfied that the proposal will allow for a preferred future Gogar 
Burn re-alignment but with caveats. The proposal will have a neutral or better effect on 
flood risk to an area which is already developed with existing road and car parking 
infrastructure. 
 
SEPA have commented that the proposed alignment would cross the LDP 
Safeguarded route. The EIA has stated this could be achieved through a culvert 
beneath. However, SEPA would not accept a culverted retrofitted solution and would 
expect a solution which maintains an open water course channel. If the road did require 
to be retrofitted, a bridge solution would likely be needed.  
 
SEPA have reiterated the need for a strategic approach to flood risk management in 
the West of Edinburgh which would be aided by a baseline model that includes an 
extended reach of the Gogar Burn, Murray Burn and their tributaries, They strongly 
advise against a piecemeal approach to flood risk assessment in the this area given the 
complexities and interactions between fluvial, surface water and drainage in this area 
and the potential for significant future development proposals. SEPA also recommend 
that the Council work collaboratively with the applicant and SEPA to develop a design 
that allows the long-standing aspiration to divert the Gogar Burn. 
 
 g) Ecology and Biodiversity 
 
The application site mainly comprises managed grassland, with few trees and is of 
limited ecological interest. The Gogar Burn which is designated as Local Nature 
Conservation Site, although this is largely separated from the proposed route by the 
Crosswinds site and existing airport development. 
 
There are no findings in the EIA Report that would preclude development in relation to 
of the LDP environment policies for designated site or protected species. The proposal 
would result in some limited biodiversity enhancement along the proposed road 
corridor. 
 
The EIA Report recommends mitigation and enhancements and it is proposed that a 
Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) be prepared for the site to 
minimise ecological impact and promote good environmental practice during 
construction. Should the Committee be minded to approve the application, this could be 
secured through condition.  
 
 
 
 

Page 132



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 27 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

h) Archaeology 
 
The City Archaeological Officer has commented that the proposals would require 
significant ground-breaking works for construction, landscaping and installation of 
services. Such works would have significant impacts upon any surviving archaeological 
remains, expected to range from 20th Century remains associated with RAF 
Turnhouse, paleo-channels of the Gogar Burn to possible activity associated with the 
1650's Battle of the Field of Flashes and potentially prehistoric and medieval remains. It 
is recommended that should the application be approved, further archaeological 
investigation should be secured through condition. 
 
i) Setting of Listed Buildings 
 
Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states: "In considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority or the Secretary of 
State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the 
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it 
possesses." 
 
The Category A listed Castle Gogar lies to the south west of the proposed road 
alignment, this separated by the Crosswinds site. 
 
The applicant has submitted a Heritage Impact Statement. This discusses the effect on 
the setting of Castle Gogar and associated listed buildings which form part of the 
Castle Gogar Estate. This concludes that the site makes a limited contribution to the 
landscape context of nearby heritage assets with the proposed alignment of the route 
maintaining an appropriate buffer distance.  
 
Given the level of separation, the nature of the proposal would not adversely affect the 
setting of Castle Gogar and associated listed buildings and would address the 
requirement s of LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Building - Setting. 
 
 j) Air Quality 
 
LDP Policy Env 22 - Pollution and Air, Water and Soil Quality does not support 
development which would result in a significant adverse effect on air quality.  
 
An Air Quality Impact Assessment (AQIA) has been provided as part of the EIA. 
 
Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) are situated at Glasgow Road (Ratho 
Station/Newbridge) and St John's Road, Corstorphine, each located c.2km from the 
application site. The report advises that no change in traffic activity attributable to the 
proposed Eastern Access Road is predicted on roads within either the Glasgow Road 
or St John's Road AQMA's. 
 
The AQIA also states that the proposed Eastern Access Road has a beneficial effect 
on air quality as it would divert airport traffic away from exiting residential properties on 
Eastfield Road, which forms the existing access to the airport, and the section of 
Glasgow Road between Eastfield Road and the Gogar Roundabout. No additional 
mitigation to address air quality is proposed within this report.  

Page 133



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 28 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

  
The outcome of the AQIA advises that the operational impact of the proposed access 
road has a beneficial effect on air quality as it diverts airport traffic away from 
residential properties. Based on the understanding of emissions from traffic that would 
use the Eastern Access Road, it is unlikely that building residential properties on land 
adjacent to the proposed road alignment would create new exposure to poor air quality.  
 
Environmental Protection have remarked that whilst the building of additional roads is 
not conducive to reducing localised air quality impacts, future travel modes point 
towards public transport and electric vehicle use. Roads to a certain extent will still be 
required in the future to incorporate modern sustainable transportation modes. In view 
of this, they do not object to the application. 
 
In summary, based on the findings of the AQIA, the proposed development would not 
adversely impact upon local air quality, designated AQMA's or residential properties, 
both existing and proposed, in the vicinity of the site.    
 
 
k) Amenity of Neighbours 
 
Noise Impact 
 
A Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) has considered the route of the new road and the 
associated noise impacts upon proposed on exiting noise sensitive properties. 
 
The NIA process undertook detailed predictions for a total of 929 residential receptors 
within the study area, together with two other (non-residential) sensitive receptors. All 
noise level and noise changes were presented for both the short-term and long-term. 
Whilst there are some noise sensitive properties which are likely to be affected by 
noise, the NIA concludes that there will also be a reduction in noise affecting other 
properties on existing airport routes. The NIA advises that levels do not necessitate the 
need for noise mitigation (e.g. acoustic barriers or low noise tarmac) and the route will 
be limited to vehicle speeds of 30mph. The properties also do not quality for mitigation 
under the Noise Insulation (Scotland) Regulations. 
 
The EIA Report also considered cumulative and proposed developments within the 
HSG19 Maybury/West Craig housing allocation. This would be situated around 40 
metres from the proposed road alignment to the north east, being separated by the 
railway. However, planning conditions relating to the development of this site will 
require a noise barrier, 1.8-2.0 metres high, to be constructed between the railway line 
and the Maybury/West Craigs development to mitigate railway noise. This barrier has 
been included in the as part of the noise impact assessment process. 
 
The NIA advises that the majority of dwellings are predicted to experience changes of 
Negligible or Minor magnitude in the short and long term, during the day and night. The 
proposed Eastern Access Road is expected to result in a local redistribution of traffic, 
with a reduction in vehicle movements (and a slight increase in traffic speed) along the 
existing access via Eastfield Road and along the A8 between the Eastfield Road 
junction and the Gogar Roundabout. 
 

Page 134



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 29 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

In conclusion, although there will be some properties which will see some increases in 
road traffic noise, some properties which will benefit from a reduction in traffic noise 
due to the redistribution of traffic that is likely to occur from the proposal. 
 
Environmental Protection have commented that although new roads will inherently 
result in increased noise levels due to vehicle movements, they concur with the 
conclusions of the NIA and EIA Report and do not object to the proposal  
 
The proposal would address the requirements of LDP Policy Des 5 - Development 
Design - Amenity, part a) in that the amenity of neighbouring developments would not 
be adversely impacted by noise from the proposed development and that future 
occupiers of proposed development lying adjacent to the proposed route would have 
acceptable levels of amenity. 
 
Land Contamination 
 
A Ground Investigation Report has been prepared as part of the EIA. 
 
This has concluded that potential risks arising to/from development as a result of 
recorded ground conditions to be sufficiently low to not require further investigations or 
mitigation toward future end users of the site or the wider environment. As such, 
Environmental Protection have not requested that additional information is required as 
part of the planning process, to ensure the development is suitable for use in relation to 
potentially contaminated ground conditions. 
 
In view of these findings, the proposed development would address requirements of 
LDP Policy Env 22 Pollution and Air, Water and Soil Quality, in respect of land 
contamination. 
 
However, the Ground Investigation Report does not confirm that contamination will not 
be present. Should the application be approved, it would be recommended that this 
matter be addressed as part of Construction Environmental Management Report 
(CEMP) and this could be secured through condition  
 
 
l) Environmental Impact Report 
 
An EIA Report has been provided alongside the application. This provides an 
assessment of the impact of the application in environmental terms. The scope of the 
EIA Report is acceptable, the content is comprehensive and the methodologies. 
Sufficient information has been submitted in the EIA Report to allow a balanced 
judgement to be made regarding resulting impacts. Therefore, this report not only 
provides an assessment of the proposal in planning terms, it has also considered the 
conclusions of the EIA Report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 30 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

m) Developer Contributions 
 
LDP Policy Del 1 - Developer Contributions and Infrastructure Delivery states that 
proposals will be required to contribute to infrastructure provision where relevant and 
necessary to mitigate any negative impact (either on an individual or cumulative basis) 
and where commensurate to the scale of the proposed development. Detailed 
requirements are established through the Developer Contributions and Infrastructure 
Delivery Guidance and LDP Action Programme. 
 
In the event of the application being approved, the costs of implementing the road 
would contribute to the delivery of the package of transport mitigation measures 
identified in the WETA Refresh Study and the LDP Action Programme. However, 
contributions would likely need to be secured in respect of the proposed junction 
improvements to the Gogar Roundabout (LDP Proposal T12). Further costs are likely to 
be incurred for the integration and tie-in of the route with the existing public road 
network, including active travel routes, the scope of which would need to be 
established with the applicant. The applicant would also need to secure agreement with 
the Council as landowner of the areas to the north of Myreton Drive, including the 
proposed change to the Tram Depot access arrangements. 
 
Therefore, should the Committee be minded to grant permission, it is recommended 
that a suitable legal agreement be entered into with the applicant. 
 
However, given the nature of the proposal, it is unlikely that further contributions would 
be sought in relation to other areas. 
 
 
n) Issues Raised in Representations 
 
Key issues raised:- 
 
Objections 
 
Environmental impacts - addressed in parts a) j) and k) of the assessment 
 

- Encourages carbon emissions; 
- Climate Emergency; contrary to Scottish Government's aims to decarbonise 
      travel; 

− Contrary to net carbon neutral by 2030; 

− New roads create increase demand; building would be a regressive move; 

− NPF4 Position statement sets out ambitious targets for addressing climate 
change allied with the need for significant investment in related infrastructure;  

− AQMA - Air Quality Modelling Report Misleading; 

− EIA Report has not identified potentially significant noise, air quality and visual 
amenity impacts relating to the West Craigs development (HSG19) - this 
represents the largest concentration of receptors potentially affected by the 
proposed development.  

 
 
 
 

Page 136



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 31 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Transport impacts - addressed in 3.3 c) of the assessment 
 

− Proposal is regressive, increasing traffic is retrograde; 

− Traffic projections should be reduced in light of Pandemic; 

− Prioritises private vehicular use over public transport and active travel; 

− Increased traffic Impact on Gogar roundabout and Glasgow Road; 

− Proposal would be prejudicial to the promotion of public transport, active travel 
and road network improvements as envisaged in the LDP and specifically 
safeguarded through proposal T9 Gogar Link Road and policy Tra10; 

− Proposal contradicts the 'transport hierarchy'; 

− City Mobility Plan - Movement 15 and 23; 

− Fails to support Edinburgh Active Travel Plan; 

− Proposal fails to demonstrate how transport infrastructure improvements within  
      West Edinburgh would be delivered; 

− Traffic Analysis models - assumptions from WETA that are not delivered; 

− Transport Assessment (TA) lacks sufficient detail to enable supporting analysis  
      to be fully understood in accordance with TA Guidance; 

− Not demonstrated that the TA scope has been agreed with the Council in 
accordance with TA Guidance. This is a fundamental first step, ensuring that the 
TA is appropriate and fit for purpose. 

 
Proposed route alignment - addressed in 3.3 a) b) and c) of the assessment 
 

− Contrary to Policy Tra 9 of the Edinburgh Local Development Plan; 

− Contrary to the WETA Refresh Study; Proposal does not represent the agreed 
Gogar Link Road alignment, this reflected in the LDP Proposal T9 

− Closure of the Crosswinds runway now presents an opportunity to further 
consider the detailed alignment of the Gogar Link Road;   

− Application states that proposed road will not preclude the delivery of the Gogar 
Link Road in the future. As such, it is clear that it is the applicant's intention that 
both routes are to be delivered    

− Proposal would not form part of a coordinated transport infrastructure proposal 
linking Gogar Roundabout with the IBG site as Eastfield Road as required by the 
LDP 

− The proposed alignment fails to demonstrate unencumbered connectivity for 
development within the West Edinburgh area, including how the Council's 
development plan allocations can be effectively serviced and how connections 
beyond the site boundaries would be secured  

− Given the significance of West Edinburgh, any related decision of planning 
applications must take cognisance of this context and in a way that continues to 
safeguard the successful delivery of the Gogar Link Road in due course 

− Need to consider relationship with the Crosswinds application (reference 
20/03219/PPP) for the adjacent landholding - now appealed to the DPEA for 
non-determination. Respective movement and access parameters are the same 
for both applications 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 137



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 32 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Need for the development - addressed in 3.3 a) b) and c) of the assessment 
 

− Access road to the airport is not a priority given reduction given reduction in 
flying and traffic levels using the airport since the pandemic;  

− Good public transport links already exist to the Airport, project costs could 
subsidise high prices on the Airport tram route or provide additional bus routes; 

− Proposed development is speculative and intended to facilitate other 
development which do not have planning permission. A Trojan horse. 

 
Design and layout - addressed in 3.3 c) and d) 
 

− Active travel provision is poor and measures seem to be an afterthought; 

− Proposal will result in poor continuity and be detrimental to cyclists crossing the 
Myreton Drive junction, this designated as Quiet Route 9; 

− Poor Quality Active Travel Route - outdated designed/ shared use/ not fully 
segregated/ interface with road users; 

− Proposal does not location of bus stops, or whether the alignment is intended to 
facilitate future bus services along its route; 

− Access to Edinburgh Gateway Station would be reduced to a left-in left-out 
operation resulting in a convoluted 650m diversion for vehicles using the station 
including buses; 

− Impact on disabled access to Edinburgh Gateway Station. 
 
Support 
 

− Improves commuting time by the private car;  

− Easier to get to work at the airport by car; 

− Provides much needed contingency airport access; 

− Reduces congestion on Eastfield Road;  

− Number of letters of support (x 17) provided no comments 
 
Cramond and Barnton Community Council 
 

− Object to the proposal unless consent is granted subject to conditions;  

− Support the principle of the new road but notes its ability to operate within the 
capacity of the Gogar Roundabout. Without improvement the operation of the 
new road for additional airport traffic is likely to cause significant congestion to 
the wider strategic road network; 

− Suspensive conditions suggested that route should not be opened until 
enhancements have been undertaken to the Gogar Roundabout and Maybury 
junction, with no access from IBG and Crosswinds developments until such a 
time that various transport improvements have been delivered; 

− Concerns regarding analysis and omissions contained in the Transport 
Assessment including need for enhancement to the Gogar and Maybury 
junctions.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 138



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 33 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Corstorphine Community Council 
 

− Object to the proposal. Concerns expressed in relation to increase air pollution, 
increased traffic congestions and reduced ease of use for local active travel 
links; 

− New access road likely to induce demand for vehicle trips; 

− Contrary to Scottish Governments Climate Change Plan that commits to a 20% 
in car Km's by 2030; 

− Contrary to the Council's City Mobility Plan and commitment to the sustainable 
hierarchy which places private vehicles at the lowest level; 

− Traffic modelling reliant on WETA upgrades to the Gogar Roundabout; 

− Design is contrary to LDP Policy Tra 9 as it detrimentally impacts on Quiet Route 
9 at the Myreton Drive junction; 

− Proposed active travel provision along the route is poor. Disappointing to see 
shared-use paths, multiple non-signalised crossings. No consistent derire lines 
for pedestrians without multiple crossing points. 

 
Ratho and District Community Council 
 

− No objection to the application in principle but object until such a time that 
conditions are met; 

− Appreciate that the Airport require an additional access road to the main terminal 
to increase resilience but difficult to understand impact to the Gogar 
Roundabout; 

− The Gogar Roundabout should be resilient enough to accommodate increased 
traffic flows arising from proposed developments as per the WETA Refresh 
Report 2016; 

− Enhancements to both the Gogar Roundabout must be implemented in advance 
of any approval being granted. 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
The principle of a new access road serving the airport is supported by the LDP.  
 
However, this route is intended to be multi-purpose and support the long-term 
sustainable development of West Edinburgh. The proposed route is not consistent with 
the West Edinburgh Strategic Design Framework (WESDF) and LDP Proposal T9, 
which safeguards the Gogar Link Road, a route which was subject to comprehensive 
analysis as part of WETA (West Edinburgh Transport Appraisal) Refresh Study 2016. 
 
The proposal would not achieve coordinated development, the route alignment would 
be prejudicial to the delivery of the Gogar Link Road and potentially require the delivery 
of a second route to achieve the objectives of the LDP. 
 
The strategic design context of the route has not yet been fully established and it is not 
yet possible to demonstrate how the proposal would successfully integrate with the 
development of adjacent land or potentially contribute to the delivery of green-blue 
networks. Whilst the proposed design would deliver a functional requirement for a road, 
it has not been demonstrated how this would achieve a sense of place. 
 

Page 139



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 34 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons: - 
 
1. The nature of the proposed development is contrary to the existing National 

Planning Policy 3, the Strategic Development Plan and the Local Development 
Plan (LDP) specifically Policy Emp 4 - Edinburgh Airport in that it is not 
supported by an approved airport master plan. The application does not accord 
with the West Edinburgh Strategic Design Framework (WESDF) 2010 and other 
local development policies relating to transport and coordinated development. 

   
 
2. The proposed development would be contrary to Local Development Plan (LDP) 

Policy Des 2, Co-ordinated Development, parts a) and b) and would fail to 
deliver coordinated development in West Edinburgh. The application is 
premature and may compromise the development plan strategy for West 
Edinburgh. The strategic design context of the route has not yet been fully 
established and it is not yet possible to demonstrate how the proposal would 
successfully integrate with the development of adjacent land or potentially 
contribute to the delivery of green-blue networks. 

 
3. The proposed development would be prejudicial to the implementation of Local 

Development Proposal T9, Gogar Link Road specifically the delivery of proposed 
new roads, network improvements and public transport proposals. The proposal 
is thereby contrary to LDP Policies Tra 10 - New and Existing Roads, Tra 7- 
Public Transport Proposals and Safeguards, Tra 8 - Provision of Transport 
Infrastructure, part a) and Tra 9 - Cycle and Footpath Networks.  The proposal 
has failed to address the objectives of the WETA Refresh Study 2016 in that it 
has not demonstrated how a multi-purpose link required to support long term 
development in West Edinburgh would be delivered. 

 
4. The proposed development would be contrary to Local Development Plan (LDP) 

Policies Des 1, Design Quality and Context, Des 8, Public Realm and 
Landscape Design, part c) and has not addressed requirements of the 
Edinburgh Street Design Guidance. The overall design concept has not sought 
to draw up the positive characteristics of the surrounding area or demonstrate 
how it would contribute to a sense of place. The application proposal is based on 
a functional road design which has prioritised movement before place. The 
proposals have not been supported by a landscape strategy to provide a context 
for the route nor has a robust landscape structure been proposed, with minimal 
levels of tree planting identified. 

 
 
 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application is subject to a legal agreement for developer contributions. 

Page 140



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 35 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been considered and has no impact in terms of equalities or 
human rights. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application meets the sustainability requirements of  the Edinburgh Design 
Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
A Proposal of Application Notice was submitted and registered on 23 September 2019. 
Copies of the Notice were also issued to 

− Ratho Community Council 

− Cramond and Barnton Community Council 

− Corstorphine Community Council 

− All ward councillors 
 
Community consultation events were held throughout in November 2019.  Full details 
can be found in the Pre-Application Consultation report, which sets out the findings 
from the community consultation. This is available to view on the Planning and Building 
Standards Online services. 
 
A pre-application report on the proposals was presented to the Committee on 6 
November 2019. 
 
The proposal was presented, at pre-application stage, to the Edinburgh Urban Design 
Panel on 27 November 2019. 
 
Extensive pre-application advice offered to the applicants has not been followed. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
The application was advertised via the Council's Planning Portal on 8 February 2021 
with a 28 day period for comments to take account of the Environmental Impact 
Assessment. 
 
A total of 128 representations were received, these comprising 54 objections and 74 
expressing support.  
 

Page 141



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 36 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Objections were received on behalf of two adjacent landowners, Spokes, Transform 
Scotland and the Gogarburn Bicycle Users Group. 
 
In terms of support, some of these responses are identified as Edinburgh Airport staff 
or parties working of their behalf with 17 responses providing no comments. 50% of 
addresses are identified as being outwith Edinburgh including other parts of the UK.  
 
Comments were received from Ratho and District, Cramond and Barnton and 
Corstorphine Community Councils. All have objected to the application. 
 
 
The application is a hearing due to the level of public interest and range and substance 
of material representations received. The Council, as Roads Authority also has 
operational responsibility for the southern area of the application site including Gogar 
roundabout and Myreton Drive. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 142

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 37 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Francis Newton, Senior Planning Officer 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

National Planning Framework 3 (NPF3) 

Strategic Development Plan (SDP) 

West Edinburgh Strategic Design Framework (WESDF) 

Developer Contributions and Infrastructure Delivery 

Guidance 

LDP Action Programme 

West Edinburgh Transport Appraisal (WETA) Refresh 

Study 2016 

 

LDP Status:-  

 

Special Economic Area - LDP Policy Emp 4 Edinburgh 

Airport, Urban Area 

LDP Greenspace Proposal GS7 - Diversion of the 

Gogar Burn 

LDP Transport Proposals and Safeguards T9 - Gogar 

Link Road 

LDP Transport Proposals and Safeguards T12 - 

Improvements to the Gogar Roundabout 

 

 

 

 Date registered 4 February 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 1-38, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 143



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 38 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

E-mail:francis.newton@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
LDP Policy Del 1 (Developer Contributions and Infrastructure Delivery) identifies the 
circumstances in which developer contributions will be required. 
 
LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing 
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated. 
 
LDP Policy Des 2 (Co-ordinated Development) establishes a presumption against 
proposals which might compromise the effect development of adjacent land or the 
wider area. 
 
LDP Policy Des 3 (Development Design - Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and 
Potential Features) supports development where it is demonstrated that existing and 
potential features have been incorporated into the design. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Des 6 (Sustainable Buildings) sets criteria for assessing the sustainability of 
new development. 
 
LDP Policy Des 7 (Layout design) sets criteria for assessing layout design.  
 
LDP Policy Des 8 (Public Realm and Landscape Design) sets criteria for assessing 
public realm and landscape design.  
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 9 (Development of Sites of Archaeological Significance) sets out the 
circumstances in which development affecting sites of known or suspected 
archaeological significance will be permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 16 (Species Protection) sets out species protection requirements for 
new development. 
 
LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) sets criteria for assessing the impact of 
development on flood protection.  
 
LDP Policy Env 22 (Pollution and Air, Water and Soil Quality) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development on air, water and soil quality. 
 
LDP Policy Emp 4 (Edinburgh Airport) sets out criteria for development proposals at 
Edinburgh Airport and requires they accord with the West Edinburgh Strategic Design 
Framework. 
 

Page 144



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 39 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

LDP Policy Tra 7 (Public Transport Proposals and Safeguards) prevents development 
which would prejudice the implementation of the public transport proposals and 
safeguards listed. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 8 (Provision of Transport Infrastructure) sets out requirements for 
assessment and mitigation of transport impacts of new development. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 9 (Cycle and Footpath Network) prevents development which would 
prevent implementation of, prejudice or obstruct the current or potential cycle and 
footpath network. 
 
LDP Policy Tra 10 (New and Existing Roads) safeguards identified routes for new 
roads and road network improvements listed.  
 
Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the 
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the 
Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking, 
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh. 
 

Page 145



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 40 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/00217/FUL 
At Main Terminal, 1 Edinburgh Airport, Jubilee Road 
Formation of new access road and active travel route from 
east of terminal building to Gogar Roundabout. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Edinburgh Urban Design Panel Report 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Panel welcomes the opportunity to comment on this proposal at an early stage in 
the design process. In taking forward the design, the Panel recommends that the 
following issues should be addressed:  
 
The airports masterplan needs to be revised to address the City's carbon neutral target 
and set the context for road access requirements and modal shift 
 
Linkages to adjacent development areas and transport infrastructure requires further 
consideration especially with respect to pedestrian and cycle routes 
 
Further traffic modelling is required to access the impact on the existing network road 
network  
 
A full landscape strategy should be prepared to provide a context for the road 
 
Temporary landscape should be considered to create an attractive approach to the city 
in the interim, as future development may take many years to be completed  
 
Planning Context 
 
Pre-application discussions commenced August 2019. A Proposal of Application Notice 
(Reference:- 19/04534/PAN) was considered by the DM Sub Committee on 06 
November 2019. 
 
Proposal 
 
Development of a single carriageway road which would link the main passenger 
terminal at Edinburgh Airport with the Gogar Roundabout - a distance of approximately 
3 km. The proposed road would be fully accessible to general traffic. 
 
A proposed alignment has been presented for the road. This would exit the Gogar 
Roundabout and Myreton Drive via a new junction, before following the Edinburgh - 
Fife railway for approximately 1.2 km. A new roundabout is indicated to the south east 
of the existing Airport Freight Terminal. The road would then cross the former 

Page 146



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 41 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Crosswind runway to the south west, proceeding through the extents of the existing 
Airport estate lying to the north of the Gogar Burn. The route would then connect with 
an existing roundabout at Eastfield Avenue, crossing the tram route to the west with a 
northern spur utilising the existing alignment of Gogar Bridge Road - extending to the 
main Airport Terminal building. 
 
Site Description  
 
The PAN proposal site (79 hectares) is defined by Edinburgh Airport to north and north 
west and the Edinburgh - Fife railway to the north east. The southern site edges are 
defined by the Gogar Burn, the Castle Gogar Estate, the Edinburgh Tram Depot, the 
Gogar roundabout and the A8 dual carriageway. 
 
The majority of the site comprises operational land for Edinburgh Airport, this including 
the former 12/30 'Crosswind' runway which was decommissioned in 2018. The western 
part of the proposal site includes airport car parking, industrial units and various access 
roads associated with the operation of the airport. The site also includes the northern 
extents of the Edinburgh Tram Depot, Myreton Drive which provides which provides 
access to the depot and area of uncultivated land to the north west. Edinburgh 
Gateway Intermodal Station lies within the proposal to the south east. 
 
Planning Policy 
 
The proposal site lies substantially within the airport boundary as defined in the LDP 
with land designated as Special Economic Area. 
 
LDP Transport Proposal T9 outlines the requirements for the Gogar Link Road, this is 
required to support long term development in West Edinburgh and connecting Eastfield 
Road via the International Business Gateway. The LDP identifies an indicative 
alignment and safeguard crossing the southern part of the proposal site. 
 
The Gogar Burn which flows to the southern edge of the site is designated as Local 
Nature Conservation Site with Areas of Importance for Flood Management situated in 
the vicinity of the Burn to the south west. 
 
LDP Greenspace proposal GS7 identifies an enhancement and diversion of the Gogar 
Burn with an indicative alignment crossing the site crossing the site from south to north. 
This proposal seeks to reduce flood risk in west Edinburgh, improve water quality and 
enhance biodiversity.  
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
Nicholas Taggert stated that 7N Architects where he currently works, has historically 
been engaged on the IBG project adjacent to this site. He also stated that he was not 
involved directly in this project. 
Charles Strang stated that he had worked on the West Edinburgh Strategic Design 
Framework.   
 
The above was discussed by the Chair and the Panel.  It was agreed to record the 
above statements as part of the Panel's note but that neither constituted a conflict of 
interest.   

Page 147



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 42 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
General 
 
This report should be read in conjunction with the pre-meeting papers. 
 
This report is the view of the Panel and is not attributable to any one individual. The 
report does not prejudice any of the organisations represented at the Panel forming a 
differing view of proposals at a later stage. 
 
Panel Comments 
 
The Panel's detailed comments are as follows: 
 
Principle of Development and Airport Management Plan/Masterplan  
 
It was noted that the City of Edinburgh Council has set a target to deliver a carbon 
neutral Capital by 2030.   
 
Given the airport has permitted development rights for operation development, the 
Panel noted the importance of revising the Airport Management Plan / masterplan, to 
address the City's carbon neutral target and in consultation with the City and other key 
agencies.    
 
The Panel noted there is a balance between economic growth and climate change.  A 
revised masterplan drawing including consented proposals for adjacent sites is 
required to understand the access required and whether a new road to the airport is an 
appropriate approach.  The Panel was concerned that this proposal may increase car 
movements and not encourage modal shift.    
 
Therefore, the Panel advocated a strategic approach to this area which could consider 
enhanced public transport links, at national and regional level, not just connections to 
the city.  
 
In summary the Panel remained to be convinced that this development is compatible 
with the City of Edinburgh Council target to deliver a carbon neutral Capital by 2030 
and actions to address the Climate Emergency.   
 
Coordination of Development 
 
The Panel advocated that the proposed road, if justified, should demonstration fully 
how it will connect to future developments to ensure a coordinated delivery of 
development within west Edinburgh.  
 
The Panel noted that linkages to adjacent development areas and transport 
infrastructure requires further consideration particularly with respect to pedestrian and 
cycle routes.    
 
The edge conditions to the site make these connections particularly challenging for 
example the railway line but should be addressed through this application.  
 
Impact on the existing network   

Page 148



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 43 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
The Panel noted that more work on traffic modelling was required on the impact this 
road would have on the existing network particularly the Gogar Roundabout. 
 
The Panel were supportive of the TRIX methodologies being used to look at this issue.    
 
The Panel suggested that the road network may benefit from new technologies for 
example the installation of variable message signs (VMS). 
 
Design of the road 
 
The Panel advocated that a Whole Life Carbon Assessment should be carried out on 
the road and landscape design to help quantify the impacts of the design on the 
environment.    
 
The Panel recommended that a full landscape strategy should be prepared to provide a 
context for the road.  This is important to assist in establishing an attractive character 
for the route as it could be an important approach to the city from the airport and to 
future developments in west Edinburgh.  With respect to this it was noted that it may 
take many years for development to take place in this area and it was suggested that 
temporary landscape works may assist in providing a suitable context and character for 
the road.   
 
Sectional and level information should be provided as part of the application to show 
how the road sits within the context, particularly its relationship to the site edges.  
Sections and levels will also assist to understand the character of the route.         
 
Setting of Gogar Castle 
 
The Panel noted that the alignment of the road is located on the best side of the site 
with respect to any impact on the setting of Gogar Castle.   
 
Archaeology 
 
The Panel noted that West Edinburgh has several sites of significant archaeological 
value and this will have to be considered as part of the design process with the 
appropriated assessments and field evaluations.      
 
Public Safety and Crime 
 
The Panel noted that this should be a well-lit route particularly the cycle/pedestrian 
routes.  It was also noted that if cycling is encouraged to the airport then adequate and 
secure cycle storage must be provided. 
 
Scottish Water response 
 
Audit of Proposal 
 
Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant 
should be aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can 
currently be serviced and would advise the following: 

Page 149



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 44 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
Waste Water Capacity Assessment 
 
This proposed development will be serviced by Edinburgh Waste Water Treatment 
Works. Unfortunately, Scottish Water is unable to confirm capacity currently so to allow 
us to fully appraise the proposals we suggest that the applicant completes a Pre-
Development Enquiry (PDE) Form and submits it directly to Scottish Water via our 
Customer Portal or contact Development Operations. 
 
Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our 
combined sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a 
connection for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification 
from the customer taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and 
technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined 
sewer system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest 
opportunity with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making 
a connection request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a 
decision that reflects the best option from environmental and customer perspectives. 
 
Please Note 
 
The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission has 
been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise the 
applicant accordingly. 
 
Asset Impact Assessment 
 
According to our records, the development proposals impact on existing Scottish Water 
assets. 
 
There are various large diameter water and sewer mains within the site boundary. 
 
The applicant must identify any potential conflicts with Scottish Water assets and 
contact our 
Asset Impact Team via our Customer Portal to apply for a diversion. 
 
The applicant should be aware that any conflict with assets identified may be subject to 
restrictions on proximity of construction.  
 
Drinking Water Protected Areas 
 

Page 150



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 45 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

A review of our records indicates that there are no Scottish Water drinking water 
catchments or water abstraction sources, which are designated as Drinking Water 
Protected Areas under the Water Framework Directive, in the area that may be affected 
by the proposed activity. 
 
Next Steps: 
 
All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) Form 
to be submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any formal 
Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the proposals. 
 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary to 
support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, which 
Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution 
regulations. 
 
 
Edinburgh Airport response 
 
The proposed development has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding 
perspective and does not conflict with safeguarding criteria. We therefore have no 
objection to this proposal, however have made the following observation:  
 
Cranes  
 
Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be 
required during its construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant's attention to 
the requirement within the British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, 
for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity 
to an aerodrome. This is explained further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes' (available at 
http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/)   
 
Lighting  
 
The development is close to the aerodrome and the approach to the runway. We draw 
attention to the need to carefully design lighting proposals. This is further explained in 
Advice Note 2, 'Lighting' (available at (http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-
campaigns/operations-safety/) Please note that the Air Navigation Order 2005, Article 
135 grants the Civil Aviation Authority power to serve notice to extinguish or screen 
lighting which may endanger aircraft. 
 
It is important that any conditions requested in this response are applied to a planning 
approval. Where a Planning Authority proposes to grant permission against the advice 
of Edinburgh Airport, or not to attach conditions which Edinburgh Airport has advised, it 
shall notify Edinburgh Airport, and the Civil Aviation Authority and the Scottish Ministers 
as specified in the Safeguarding of Aerodromes Direction 2003. 
 
 
Cramond+Barnton Community Council response 

Page 151



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 46 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
The proposed development comprises the construction of a new road between the 
existing access to Edinburgh Airport at Eastfield Road and the Gogar roundabout at the 
confluence of the A8 and A820. The new road lies outwith the geographic boundaries 
of the Cramond and Barnton Community Council, but the use of the new road has the 
potential for serious deleterious impacts on the free and safe access between the 
national strategic road system and the Community Council area. 
 
The Community Council supports the principle of the new road but notes that its ability 
to operate within the capacity of the Gogar Roundabout is dependant on the provision 
of certain public road improvements by the City of Edinburgh Council and that currently 
there are no firm approved plans nor approved and guaranteed financial provision for 
these improvements.  
 
Without these improvements the operation of the new road for airport traffic is likely to 
cause significant and avoidable congestion to the wider strategic road network. The 
Community Council therefor objects to the application unless consent is subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The new road will not be opened to Airport traffic until the capacity of the Gogar 
Roundabout is increased by the construction of an additional traffic lane on the 
Northbound Circulatory section and improvements are made to the Maybury Junction 
and A8 eastbound approaches to the junction, and  
 
2. No access will be allowed to the new road from the IBG or the Crosswinds 
developments until such a time as the new road is further improved and appropriate 
measures are taken to further improve the A8, the Maybury Junction and the Gogar 
Roundabout or constrain access between the Gogar Roundabout and the new road to 
provide sufficient capacity for the predicted traffic demand. 
 
Reason: to ensure the continuing satisfactory traffic performance at the critical strategic 
node in the public road network at and around the confluence of the A8 and A820 
Principal Roads.  
 
Analysis. 
 
The proposed new road will have the effect of transferring traffic to and from Edinburgh 
Airport from the existing sole access with the A8 at Eastfield Road to a new access with 
the A8 at the Gogar roundabout, where the traffic has an origin or destination to the 
east or south east of the airport.  
 
For traffic leaving the airport this will mean that segment of the total traffic traveling to 
the east will no longer use the A8 between Eastfield Road and Gogar, but will join the 
A8 by way of the Gogar Roundabout.  
 
It is accepted that because of the current practice by some drivers at peak traffic period 
to leave the A8 at the Gogar Roundabout, to pass through the circulatory system and 
then re-join the A8, and the ability of traffic to dynamically reassign between the 
through section of the A8 and the circulatory system, this may have little practical 
consequence. Additionally, traffic currently travelling to the south east will leave the A8 

Page 152



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 47 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

and travel to the A820 round the circulatory system. That traffic which would use the 
new road would join the circulatory system later and travel, as before, to the A820.  
 
For traffic traveling to the Airport from the east, use of the new road will involve leaving 
the through section of the A8 under the circulatory system and using the south-
westbound, westbound and northbound sections of the circulatory system. In doing this 
they will be joined on the northbound section by airport traffic from the A820, which 
currently joins the A8 westbound before reaching this section. 
 
Analysis of this is provided by the applicant in the "Mott MacDonald Edinburgh Airport 
Eastern Access Road Transport assessment" which indicates in section7.2.5.1 which 
indicates: 
 
"Overall, the results of the LinSig modelling for the EAR demonstrates that the 
redistribution of traffic due to the proposed infrastructure has limited impact on the 
existing Gogar Roundabout. Our analysis demonstrates that the interchange operates 
within the capacity levels up to and including 2030" 
 
The results of the analysis are set out in tables 7.5 and 7.6 for airport traffic only, and 
with the inclusion of IBG and Crosswinds traffic in tables 7.7 and 7.8. The former show 
some level of que and delay on the circulatory system, while the latter show more 
widespread difficulties with some arms of the circulatory system and Myreton Drive 
being subject to traffic beyond capacity levels. What is important to note is that the 
analyses model the network with the assumption that the WETA improvements 
comprising an additional lane on the Gogar west gyratory and improved signal 
operation/timings will be in place ( see the first para of 7.2.5.1 of the Transport 
assessment).  
 
Accordingly, the reference to existing Gogar Roundabout does not mean the 
roundabout as configured currently, but an improved roundabout. Although not 
specifically reported as having been modelled, it seems clear that without these 
improvements serious congestion appears inevitable once airport traffic uses the new 
road. 
 
Regarding the A8, section 7.4 of the Traffic Assessment predicts: 
 
"the implementation of separate upgrade works being progressed by CEC at the 
Maybury Interchange is also likely to improve current congestion..." 
 
These works are shown in fig 3.23 of the Traffic Assessment. 
 
The Transport Assessment Summary at section 4 within Volume 1 of the EIA Report: 
Non-Technical purports to provide a description of the impact of the new road. In 
paragraphs 42.and 4.3 it refers to the significant benefits the scheme will bring to the 
A8/Eastfield Road Junction and the possible reduction in queueing and improvements 
to the journey times along the western section of the A8. It indicates that up to 54% of 
all airport bound traffic may chose to use the new road, but makes no mention of the 
reliance on future public investment on improvements to Gogar and Maybury to avoid 
significant congestion and disruption to the strategic road network that will arise without 
this new public investment as a result of redistribution of traffic and overloading the 
existing northbound sector of the Gogar circulatory system. This omission seems to be 

Page 153



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 48 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

professionally questionable and should be a determining factor in the consideration of 
this application. 
 
 
Corstorphine Community Council response 
 
Corstorphine Community Council is writing to you with respect to the above planning 
application to note our objection.  
 
While outside of our community council boundary, there are likely to be significant 
detrimental impacts to the Corstorphine area if this application is approved as stands. 
Concerns include increased air pollution, increased traffic congestion, and reduced 
ease of use for local active travel links, specifically Quiet Route 9.  
 
The reasons for our objection are as follows:  
 
o This new access road is likely to induce demand for vehicle trips, as has been 
seen with the Queensferry Crossing. This is contrary to the Scottish Government 
Climate Change Plan Update that commits to a 20% reduction in car kms by 2030. 
 
o It is contrary to the CEC City Mobility Plan's commitment to the sustainable 
transport hierarchy, which places private vehicles at the lowest level.  
 
o It is contrary to the CEC commitment to be net carbon neutral by 2030. As well 
as increased vehicle trips, road building itself is a significant contributor to carbon 
emissions. 
 
o The traffic modelling on the application's transport assessment is reliant on 
WETA upgrades to the Gogar roundabout's capacity via signal improvements and an 
additional lane (see 7.2.5.1 of the assessment). As we understand it, neither of these 
changes have been budgeted and confirmed for implementation by CEC. No traffic 
modelling has been done using the roundabout's existing attributes, so traffic impacts 
are unknown (and likely to be negative). We would expect traffic modelling to be 
provided using current infrastructure. 
 
o The proposed design is contrary to Local Development Plan TRA9, as it 
detrimentally impacts Quiet Route 9 at the Myreton Drive junction. Increased vehicle 
passage at this junction will make crossing much more hazardous for those on foot and 
cycle. We would expect a toucan crossing here as a minimum.  
 
o The current route for active travel is very poor and contrary to the Edinburgh 
Local Transport Strategy PCycle2, City Mobility Plan Movements 15 and 23, and 
Edinburgh Street Design Guidance. We are disappointed to see shared-use paths, 
multiple non-signalised crossings, no pedestrian priority over minor junctions and no 
advanced stop lines. We would expect pedestrians to be separated from cycles, 
protected on-road cycleways, continuous footway/raised tables over minor junctions, 
and consistent desire lines for pedestrians without multiple crossing points. 
 
 
NatureScot response 
 

Page 154



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 49 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Summary  
 
We are content that our EIA scoping comments have been incorporated within this 
application, and as such have only minor comments to make.  
 
SNH Advice  
 
Green Infrastructure and connectivity  
 
It's noted that access links have been made to future development sites, such as 
Crosswinds, as well as links to the existing and to the proposed footbridges across the 
rail-line to West Craig's etc. These links are detailed on the landscape plans which 
allows ease of reference to see how active travel routes, access points and green 
infrastructure will integrate through and across the site.  
 
We recommend that detail over the management and maintenance of all the green-
blue infrastructure is forthcoming, as successful delivery will help integrate the road and 
active travel route within the wider proposed development. 
 
We have guidance on our website for incorporating pollinators within development, 
such as advice on meadow creation, and this may be a useful source of reference: 
https://www.nature.scot/guidance-pollinators-planning-and-construction-guide  
 
Biodiversity and nature conservation  
 
We note and support the Ecological Impact Assessment that has been carried out, in 
particular Section 5 Mitigation and Enhancements and its various recommendations.  
 
We agree with the conclusion that proposed earthworks by the Gogarburn, will have no 
impact on the Firth of Forth SPA/SSSI, due to the small scale nature of the works, 
distance from the designated site and water management measures that will be in 
place.  
 
Should pre-construction surveys identify protected species, we refer you again to our 
standing species advice on our website for mitigation and licensing guidance:  
 
https://www.nature.scot/professional-advice/planning-and-development/advice-
planners-and-developers/planning-and-development-protected-animals 
 
 
Ratho and District Community Council response 
 
The Ratho and District Community Council has appreciates that Edinburgh Airport 
requires an additional access road to the main terminal to increase the resilience of the 
airport as well as relieve congestion on Eastfield Road, the current main access route  
from the A8.  However while accepting the perceived need for this development it is 
difficult to estimate the level of usage and therefore the impact on the Gogar 
Roundabout until the road has been built.  
 

Page 155



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 50 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Taking these points into consideration the Ratho and District Community Council has 
no disagreement with the application in principle but must OBJECT to this application 
until such times that the following conditions are met 
 
- The proposed Airport Road should not be opened until these improvements 
listed below have been implemented 
 
- The Gogar Roundabout should be resilient enough to take into account the 
increased traffic flow arising from future developments  
 
- Traffic modelling should be undertaken by Edinburgh Council to ensure that the 
Gogar Roundabout is radically improved and improvements proposed are sufficient to 
meet current and future needs given that potential developments, including those 
proposed in the new City Plan 2030, arising since the preparation of the Mott 
MacDonald Report 
 
- The junction between Myreton Drive and the Gogar Roundabout should  be 
upgraded to take a substantially heavier traffic load and increased access by 
pedestrians and cyclists as 
 
o This will be the access point for the new Airport Access Road 
o In addition this will also be the access point for the new Crosswinds 
Development, the International Gateway and a possible development by West Craigs 
on land to the west of the Tram Depot 
 
- The capacity of the roundabout should be increased by the addition of an extra 
traffic lane on the north bound Circulatory Section as identified in the WETA Refresh 
(2016) Report 
 
- Provision for pedestrians and cyclists to access the Airport via this new road, as 
detailed in Table3.1 of the Mott MacDonald Report are constructed and fully functional 
before the opening of the new Airport Access Road 
 
- Improvements to the Maybury Junction, which abuts the Gogar Roundabout to 
the east, causing significant delays and backlogs onto the Gogar Roundabout should 
also be undertaken before the Airport Access Road accesses the A8 
 
- The developments at the International Business Gateway, the Crosswinds 
Development and West Craigs should not access the Gogar Roundabout until such 
times as the improvements mentioned above are undertaken 
 
In summary the Ratho and District Community Council OBJECTS on the grounds that 
the improvements to both the Gogar Roundabout and the Maybury Junction arising 
must be implemented before any approval of the application can be granted. 
 
 
Edinburgh Trams response 
 
1. The swept path for the route to and from the depot needs to cater for a 25m long 
articulated rail low loader, which takes a tram (in sections) delivered by road 
approximately 13.55m long, 2.65m wide and 3.39m high weighing 15t. The routes to 

Page 156



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 51 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

and from the depot do not look like they can accommodate that, and it is recommended 
that auto-tracking is undertaken to demonstrate that this is possible. 
 
2. We do have concerns over the drainage proposal, which will increase the 
discharge into the tram drainage from the adjacent roads (which then outfalls into 
Scottish Water sewer within the tram depot). We have been experiencing annual 
flooding at Edinburgh Gateway (which is the lowest point in the area, which also 
outfalls via the depot Scottish Water connection) and increasing the surface area that 
goes into this system should be discouraged to avoid making matters worse. Placing 
this additional burden and risk onto Edinburgh Trams is not acceptable. It is therefore 
suggested that we work with the developer, Scottish Water and the City of Edinburgh 
Council to agree an alternative drainage design, that will also ensure tram safety in 
accordance with The Railways and Other Guided Transport Systems (Safety) 
Regulations 2006 (ROGS). 
 
3. It is not clear in the proposals how pedestrians and cyclist are being 
accommodated at the new traffic signals at Myreton Drive/Gogar roundabout. Given the 
increase in traffic flows it appears that there is no crossing facility, so how do 
pedestrians and cyclist cross safely? 
 
4. The landscaping drawings show new landscaping on the existing road bridge 
over the tram network. It is not clear how this is to be achieved? 
 
5. Access to and from the depot must be maintained 24hrs a day 365 days a year. 
 
6. A tram Authority to Work permit may be required to complete the work that is 
adjacent to the tram infrastructure. 
 
 
Network Rail response 
 
Whilst Network Rail has no objections in principle to the development, due to its close 
proximity to the operational railway, we would request that the following matters are 
taken into account, and if necessary and appropriate included as advisory notes, if 
granting the application: 
 
All construction works must be undertaken in a safe manner which does not disturb the 
operation of the neighbouring railway.  Applicants must be aware of any embankments 
and supporting structures which are in close proximity to their development.  
 
o Details of all changes in ground levels, laying of foundations, and operation of 
mechanical plant in proximity to the rail line must be submitted to Network Rail's Asset 
Protection Engineer for approval prior to works commencing on site.  Where any works 
cannot be carried out in a "fail-safe" manner, it will be necessary to restrict those works 
to periods when the railway is closed to rail traffic i.e. by a "possession" which must be 
booked via Network Rail's Asset Protection Engineer and are subject to a minimum 
prior notice period for booking of 20 weeks. 
 
The developer must contact our Asset Protection Engineers regarding the above 
matters. 
 

Page 157



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 52 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
Archaeology response 
 
The site runs across the southern part of Edinburgh Airport, in particular cutting across 
the former line of the Gogar Burn and the site of RAF Turnhouse. RAF Turnhouse is of 
historic significance, constructed during World War I and which continued in active 
service through the Cold War though in a much-reduced capacity from the 1960/70's. 
Prior to this the area formed part of the medieval Parish of Gogar situated between the 
medieval village to the South of the Burn and Meadowfield Farm adjacent. The Gogar 
Burn, in particular former old river courses relating to it, may contain important 
paleoenvironmental evidence, charting local changes to the environment from the last 
Ice Age. 
 
Excavations in 2008 as part of the Edinburgh Tram project at Gogar (see James & will 
SAIR Vols 72 & 79) along with those just completed in 2020 by AOC at West Craigs 
Farm and CFA Archaeology at Meadowfield Farm, have confirmed that this area 
contains significant evidence for occupation all periods including early medieval 
(Anglian) and Mesolithic occupation. The excavations by CFA at Meadowfield Farm 
(opposite the site) further support the archaeological potential of the area. The results 
providing evidence for its occupation going back to its medieval (14th century) origins. 
In addition, as well as medieval evidence the excavations have significantly produced 
two cannonballs probably relating to the 1650 battle between Cromwell and Leslie 
known as the Field of Flashes and WWII defences. 
 
The Archaeology Statement produced by Golder Associates (UK) Ltd refers also recent 
geophysics of parts of the Crosswinds site undertaken by Headland for Litchfield. The 
results produced a number of results the interpretation of some of which have disputed 
in earlier correspondence as until they are ground truthed some may reflect important 
archaeological remains associated with the sites past use including those of the historic 
important RAF Turnhouse.  
 
As such the site has been identified as containing occurring within and area being of 
archaeological and historic significance in terms of military buried archaeology (17th-
20th century), paleo-environmental evidence (Gogar Burn) and relating to the 
development of the medieval and later parish of Gogar, Meadowfield Farm and 
potentially earlier prehistoric occupation. Accordingly, this application must be 
considered under terms Scottish Government's Our Place in Time (OPIT), Scottish 
Planning Policy (SPP), PAN 02/2011, HES's Historic Environment Policy for Scotland 
(HEPS) 2019 and CEC's Edinburgh Local Development Plan (2016) Policies ENV8 & 
ENV9. The aim should be to preserve archaeological remains in situ as a first option, 
but alternatively where this is not possible, archaeological excavation or an appropriate 
level of recording may be an acceptable alternative. 
 
Buried Archaeology 
 
The proposals would require significant ground-breaking works regarding construction, 
landscaping services etc. Such works will have significant impacts upon any surviving 
archaeological remains, expected to range from 20th century remains associated with 
RAF Turnhouse, paleo-channels of the Gogar Burn to possible activity associated with 
the 1650's Battle of the Field of Flashes and potentially prehistoric and medieval 
remains.  

Page 158



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 53 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
Although I concur with Golder Associates (Uk) Ltd general conclusions that the scheme 
is likely overall, to have a low, impact I disagree with their conclusions in Section 6 of 
their Archaeological Statement that no mitigation is required.  
 
Although it safe to say that the development of the current Airport will have had a 
significant adverse impact over large sections of the site especially the section closest 
to the current Terminal and carparks. They have also dismissed the archaeological 
significance of potential remains associated with the Gogar Burn and RAF Turnhouse 
which are likely to survive across the eastern half of the site. Indeed, remains 
associated with the latter may be reflected in some of the Headland's Geophysics 
results for the Crosswinds development.   
 
Accordingly, it is recommended that if permission is granted that an archaeological 
programme of work is undertaken prior/during development, to fully excavate, record 
and analyse any surviving archaeological remains.  
 
This will require the undertaking of phased programme of archaeological investigation, 
the first phase being the undertaking of an archaeological evaluation (max 10%) across 
the eastern side of the site. The results of this evaluation work will inform the scope of 
secondary phases of investigation and analysis. Based upon the results from the 
adjacent sites at Gogar and Meadowfield/West Craigs, this is likely to include both set 
piece excavations and a wider programme of strip, map record and excavate during 
topsoil removal/landscaping works and paleoenvironmental sampling of former river 
and associated deposits. 
 
Given the recent discovery of 17th century cannonballs and the its use as a former 
military airfield metal detecting surveys will also be required to be undertaken during 
the evaluation to both recover artefacts and assess scope for potential more detailed 
battlefield survey's depending on results. 
 
Public Engagement 
 
As stated, it is likely that archaeological investigations will reveal to important remains 
associated with RAF Turnhouse and possibly dating back to early prehistory. It is 
therefore considered important that a programme of public/community engagement is 
undertaken. The full scope of which will be agreed with CECAS but could include press 
calls, social media, temporary exhibitions. 
 
It is recommended therefore, that a condition be applied to any permission granted to 
secure this programme of archaeological works based upon the following CEC 
condition; 
 
'No development shall take place on the site until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work (excavation, metal detecting 
survey, paleo-environmental sampling, analysis, reporting, publication and public 
engagement) in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been 
submitted by the applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.'  
 
The work must be carried out by a professional archaeological organisation, either 
working to a brief prepared by CECAS or through a written scheme of investigation 

Page 159



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 54 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

submitted to and agreed by CECAS for the site. Responsibility for the execution and 
resourcing of the programme of archaeological works and for the archiving and 
appropriate level of publication of the results lies with the applicant. 
 
 
Roads Authority Issues 
 
The application should be refused.  
 
Reasons: The application is considered not to comply with a number of Local 
Development Plan policies:  
 
a. TRA 7 Public Transport Proposals and Safeguards;  
b. TRA 8 Provision of Transport Infrastructure;  
c. TRA 9 Cycle and Footpath Network;  
d. TRA 10 New and Existing Roads; and  
e. DES 2 Co-ordinated Development. as set out below.  
 
1. The proposal has been assessed in relation to the West Edinburgh Transport 
Appraisal Refresh (WETA). The WETA Refresh was completed in 2016 and took into 
account a number of changes in west Edinburgh, particularly in relation to a number of 
planned developments but also in specific relation to the airport;  
 
2. The proposed access road is not considered to meet the requirements of the Gogar 
Link Road set out in the West Edinburgh Transport Appraisal Refresh (WETA Refresh). 
The Gogar Link Road is intended not only to improve network resilience to Edinburgh 
Airport but also to open up development opportunities in west Edinburgh. The proposed 
Link Road alignment emerged from WETA as the best option to address the different 
requirements of development and the airport whilst providing an efficient network with 
flexibility for public transport provision, walking, cycling and general road users. Whilst 
there is some flexibility with proposed alignment, the proposed road configuration 
aligns the airport link eastwards of that set out in WETA and is considered to promote 
the north / south direction of travel over access to the IBG area to the west. The 
proposed alignment is considered to focus on access to the airport rather than to the 
main IBG area and is likely to be to the detriment of public transport serving the IBG 
site (ref. LDP Policy 7, TRA 8, TRA 10, DES 2);  
 
3. The proposed alignment and extension to the airport will lead to the creation of a 
new link to the airport freight area to the east of the airport. Whilst there are some 
potential benefits of such an alignment, for example to remove some goods vehicles 
from the West Craigs development, it will lead to a potential new route for motor traffic 
between Maybury Road at Craigs Road and Gogar Roundabout. The WETA alignment, 
whilst still potentially creating such a link, is less likely to lead to significant additional 
traffic on that route;  
 
4. The proposed alignment is likely to impact on the existing tram crossing at Eastfield 
Avenue immediately south of the airport tram stop. ;  
 
5. The proposed layout includes cycle and pedestrian provision. Whilst some of the 
required elements have been included, the proposed layout is not considered to be 
supportive of cycle use due to:  

Page 160



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 55 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
o the requirement to cross carriageways at a number of locations. This is considered to 
be prejudicial to the continuity of the off-road network;  
o lack of pedestrian and cycle priority at side road crossings;  
o lack of crossing opportunities at the proposed north-eastern roundabout;  
o crossing points not being on desire lines;  
o absence of coherent signalised crossing at Gogar Roundabout to link Quiet Route 9 
on north side of A8;  
 
6. The proposed layout will also impact on access to the tram depot and to the related 
drainage:  
o The proposed layout serving the tram depot does not appear adequate for access by 
the required vehicles. The required swept path will be required to cater for a 25m long 
articulated rail low loader, which takes a tram (in sections) delivered by road 
approximately 13.55m long, 2.65m wide and 3.39m high weighing 15t;  
 
o The proposed drainage is likely to increase discharge into the tram drainage from the 
adjacent roads which then outfalls into a Scottish Water sewer within the tram depot. 
There are existing issues with flooding at Edinburgh Gateway, the lowest point in the 
area, which also outfalls via the depot Scottish Water connection sewer. Any increase 
in hard standing etc. which enters this system will place additional burden and risk onto 
Edinburgh Trams. This is not considered acceptable. Further discussion with Scottish 
Water and the City of Edinburgh Council will be required to agree an alternative 
drainage design to ensure tram safety in accordance with The Railways and Other 
Guided Transport Systems (Safety) Regulations 2006 (ROGS);  
 
o It is unclear how the proposed landscaping on the existing road bridge over the tram 
line adjacent to Gogar Roundabout can be accommodated;  
 
o It should be noted that access to and from the depot must be maintained at all times 
and that a tram Authority to Work permit may be required to complete any work 
adjacent to tram infrastructure.  
 
7. The applicant should note that any road will require to be constructed under separate 
application for road construction consent and will form a public right of passage. 
 
 
Environmental Assessment response 
 
Environmental Protection does not object to the proposed development. 
 
The application proposes the formation of a new airport access road and active travel 
route from the east of the existing terminal building at Edinburgh Airport to the Gogar 
Roundabout via Myreton Drive. A noise impact assessment (NIA) and air quality impact 
assessment (AQIA) have been provided by the applicant in support of the application.  
 
The proposed Eastern Access Road (EAR) follows an easterly alignment, running 
northwards from the Gogar roundabout towards the airport, before turning to the west 
to join the existing Eastfield Avenue. This alignment maximises the separation distance 
between the proposed EAR and the nearest dwellings to the west (Castle Gogar, 
Castle Gogar Rigg and Castle Mains Farm). 

Page 161



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 56 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

 
The proposal includes additional access to the airport from the east including 
sustainable modes (pedestrians, cyclists, public transport - buses and taxis) and private 
cars (to long/mid stay carparks). 
 
The proposed development will provide a two-directional single carriageway road with a 
verge separating the carriageway from a shared-use active travel route (for pedestrians 
and cyclists) towards the eastern section. 
 
Edinburgh Airport has previously published an Airport Surface Access Strategy (ASAS) 
(2012) and will be updating this to support a new Masterplan. This strategy emphasises 
the importance of improving public transport access but notes that road capacity is of 
increasing long-term concern and that increasing road capacity is likely to be required 
to support both airport development and that of West Edinburgh. 
 
The Masterplan sets out potential future land uses within the airport. By 2025 it 
identifies the requirement for the new eastern access road (which is the subject of this 
planning application) with its purpose being to reduce congestion and increase access 
resilience.  
 
During scoping CEC advised that consideration of other future developments in the 
area including HSG19 (Maybury / West Craigs) should be undertaken. These 
developments have also been given due consideration in the EIA. 
 
Noise 
 
The Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) has considered the route of the new road and the 
associated noise impacts upon proposed and existing noise sensitive properties. 
 
The NIA advises that the majority of dwellings are predicted to experience changes of 
Negligible or Minor magnitude in the short and long-term, during the day and night. 
 
The proposed EAR is expected to result in a local redistribution of traffic, with a 
reduction in vehicle movements (and a slight increase in traffic speed) along the 
existing airport access road (Eastfield Road) and along the A8 between the Eastfield 
Road junction and the Gogar roundabout. 
 
The NIA advises that all dwellings and other sensitive receptors are predicted to 
experience an impact of Negligible magnitude (Not Significant) by 2036 during the day 
and night 
 
Detailed predictions have been carried out for a total of 929 residential receptors within 
the study area, together with two other (non-residential) sensitive receptors, comprising 
a nursery, and fitness and wellbeing centre. All noise levels and noise changes are 
presented for both the short-term and the long-term. 
 
The NIA advises that there is a single dwelling predicted to experience an increase of 
Moderate Adverse magnitude in the short-term during the daytime. It can also be seen 
that the short-term impacts during the night are greater with a single dwelling predicted 
to have an increase of Substantial Adverse magnitude and 13 dwellings predicted to 
have an increase of Moderate Adverse magnitude. There are also a number of 

Page 162



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 57 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

dwellings, during the day and night, with an increase of Minor Adverse magnitude, 
which might be significant if overall noise levels are particularly high. 
 
This leaves 14 dwellings with a short-term increase of Moderate or Substantial Adverse 
magnitude at night. These increases are considered potentially Significant.  All these 
dwellings are to be found in broadly the same location to the north of the A8 and west 
of the Gogar Burn and remote from road traffic sources. 
 
The report also advises that whilst there are no dwellings predicted to experience an 
increase of Moderate Adverse magnitude in the long-term during the daytime, there are 
seven at night. 
 
Therefore, notwithstanding the predicted increases of Moderate and (in one case) 
Substantial Adverse magnitude at these dwellings, the report advises that it is 
considered that the residents potentially adversely affected by the proposed EAR would 
be unlikely to perceive the increases as Significant and that their behaviour or response 
to noise would be unlikely to change. Therefore, the overall report conclusion is that the 
predicted noise increases are likely to be Not Significant in the short and long-term. 
 
The road will also operate to a 30mph speed limit which in itself limits the level of road 
traffic noise which can impact upon nearby noise sensitive properties.  
 
In addition to the traffic noise impacting upon amenity, the NIA also considers if the 
Noise Insulation (Scotland) Regulations should apply. The key aspects of the Noise 
Insulation (Scotland) Regulations (NISR) advise that existing properties should be 
offered noise mitigation measures e.g. upgraded or secondary glazing if the noise 
levels from a new road meet certain criteria. Whilst there are receptors with levels 
above the Noise Insulation Scotland Regulations threshold of 68 dB LA10,18h and 
receptors with an increase of 1.0 dB or more, there are no receptors which have both 
(which is required within the Regulations to be deemed suitable for compensation). 
Therefore, it is considered unlikely that any dwellings would qualify for sound insulation 
treatment in line with the requirements of the NISR. 
 
Noise Summary for Existing Properties 
 
Although there are 14 dwellings with a predicted short-term increase at night of 
Moderate or Substantial Adverse magnitude, consideration of all contextual factors 
leads to the conclusion that these effects would be Not Significant in the short and 
long-term. These dwellings (Castle Gogar, Gogar Mains Farm and Castle Gogar Rigg) 
are to be found in broadly the same location to the north of the A8 and west of the 
Gogar Burn and remote from road traffic sources.  
 
The proposed EAR will result in a redistribution of traffic on the local road network. 
 
Dwellings close to roads with reduced flows will experience noise decreases of Minor, 
Moderate or Substantial Beneficial magnitude. Consideration of all contextual factors 
leads to the conclusion that there would be 52 dwellings where these effects would be 
Significant in the short-term. These receptors are to be found in three broad areas:  
 
o Fairview Road and Eastfield Road (close to the current access into the Airport)  

Page 163



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 58 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

o Glasgow Road and Gogarstone Road (close to the A8 between the Eastfield 
Road and Gogar junctions)  
o Turnhouse Road, Turnhouse Farm Road, West Craigs Avenue and Lennymuir 
(to the east of the Airport). 
 
The short-term, daytime noise level decreases of Minor Beneficial magnitude at the two 
other sensitive receptors (the Nursery and Fitness and Wellbeing Centre at RBS) would 
be considered Not Significant.  
It is considered unlikely that any dwellings would qualify for sound insulation treatment 
in line with the requirements of the NISR. 
 
In conclusion, there will be some properties which will likely see some increases in road 
traffic noise but also some properties which will benefit from a reduction in traffic noise 
due to the redistribution of traffic that is likely to occur from the proposal. 
 
Proposed Maybury/West Craigs Development - Road Traffic Noise 
 
The EIA also considers cumulative and proposed developments with HSG 19 
(Maybury/West Craigs housing allocation (1750 units with Planning Permission in 
Principle) which lies to the north east). This sizeable development is located either side 
of Turnhouse Road and to the southwest extends as far as the railway line running 
between South Gyle and Dalmeny. Consequently, only the railway corridor separates 
the Maybury development from the proposed EAR. 
 
At the time of the NIA being drawn up, there is no detailed masterplan for the whole 
Maybury development and individual plot site plans are now coming forward through 
AMSC applications. However, based on the illustrative masterplan available from the 
CEC's planning portal (planning application reference 19/05514/AMC), the dwellings 
are estimated be to around 40m from the proposed EAR. 
 
A railway Noise Impact Assessment Report prepared by Jacobs in June 2019 to 
support that application (and discharge planning condition 14 relating to an earlier 
associated planning application reference 16/04738/PPP) advises that a noise barrier, 
1.8-2.0m high, would be constructed between the railway line and Maybury 
development to mitigate railway noise. This barrier has been included in the 
assessments described in this section. This noise barrier is identified on the 'proposed 
site plan in context (tenure mix) plot 5' drawing that was submitted as part of planning 
application 20/03942/AMC, drg reference 1726-A(00)058 revA. 
 
A noise model has been used to estimate the likely worst-case road traffic noise levels 
from the proposed EAR (and including traffic associated with committed developments 
in the area) at ground floor and first floor locations. The predictions include the railway 
barrier and relate to a point around 40m from the proposed EAR but with no buildings 
within the Maybury development. 
 
Noise - West Craigs Maybury 
 
External Areas 
 
Providing the principles and features included within the illustrative masterplan are 
adopted within the actual layout of the Maybury development then the external amenity 

Page 164



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 59 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

of future residents should not be significantly affected by the proposed EAR and traffic 
associated with committed developments in the area. However, the EIA advises that 
suitable external amenity levels are still likely to be achieved in most gardens providing 
a suitable layout is employed. 
 
Internal Areas 
 
Providing the principles and features included within the illustrative masterplan are 
adopted within the actual layout of the Maybury/West Craigs development and that the 
mitigation measures identified by the consultant acting for the promoters of the 
Maybury/West Craigs development are incorporated in to the eventual design, then 
internal amenity of future residents should not be significantly affected by the proposed 
EAR and traffic associated with committed developments in the area. 
 
Operational Road Traffic Noise Predictions - Cumulative Considerations 
 
Detailed road traffic noise predictions have been carried out for a total of 929 
residential receptors within the study area; together with two other (non-residential) 
sensitive receptors, comprising a nursery, and fitness and wellbeing centre at the 
Gogar Headquarters of RBS. All noise levels and noise changes are presented for both 
the short-term (comparing DM2022 and DC2022) and the long-term (comparing 
DM2022 and DC2036). The noise predictions relating to cumulative scenarios include 
the influence of the railway noise barrier. 
 
As impacts relating to the cumulative scenario are very similar to the impacts relating to 
the do something scenario, the same conclusions can be drawn in respect of likely 
significance. Based on consideration of all contextual factors, the following conclusions 
are reached: 
 
o It is considered that the residents of the 14 dwellings potentially adversely 
affected would be unlikely to perceive the increases as Significant and that their 
behaviour or response to noise would be unlikely to change. Therefore, the overall 
conclusion is that the predicted noise increases are likely to be Not Significant.  
o It is considered that the residents of 56 dwellings potentially benefitting from the 
redistribution of traffic as a result of the proposed EAR would be likely to perceive the 
changes as Significant and that their behaviour or response to noise would be likely to 
change. Even discarding four dwellings which lie beyond 50m from a dominant road 
traffic source, the overall conclusion is that there would be 52 dwellings where the 
effect is likely to be considered Significant. 
 
Cumulatively, the report advises that the overall development, once all of the proposals 
are considered in combination, is advised as considered to be Not Significant 
 
Cumulative Summary & Conclusions  
 
The EIA has considered the inter-relationships between impacts identified within this 
EIAR and whether there is a need for further mitigation (synergistic effects). It also 
considers the potential for cumulative impacts when the development is considered 
with other developments in the surrounding area (cumulative effects).  
 

Page 165



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 60 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

It has been identified that no synergistic effects exist for the identified sensitive 
receptors surrounding the site, and therefore no additional mitigation and monitoring 
during the construction period or once operational is deemed necessary.  
 
Consideration has also been given to the potential for cumulative effects when the 
proposed development is considered alongside 19 other identified emerging and 
schemes under construction in the surrounding area. The assessment has shown that 
in relation to most topics there are non-significant, Negligible or no cumulative effects.  
 
It has been shown, in relation to Transport, that the proposed EAR incorporates a 
degree of resilience within the design and landscaping proposals to accommodate any 
associated increases in traffic from other committed schemes. In particular, the 
potential to include of a four-lane wide section at the eastern end of the EAR between 
Gogar Roundabout and the point at which IBG and airport related traffic separate, 
consistent with WETA, plus appropriate junctions (traffic signal format to support a 
higher priority for pedestrians and cyclists) to accommodate the increase in traffic 
demands. These additional future embedded mitigation measures will mitigate the risk 
of cumulative impacts of the nearby developments, and any effects should be 
considered Not Significant.  
 
In relation to potential cumulative noise impacts, there is potential for cumulative 
impacts in relation to Crosswind to the south and west and Maybury/West Craigs to the 
east, which are closer to the identified sensitive receptors that the proposed EAR. 
However, it is considered that cumulative effects will be non-significant for the following 
reasons:  
 
o The results for the cumulative assessment scenario reveal that exactly the same 
dwellings have potentially significant impacts in the cumulative scenario as in the do 
something scenario, therefore the same conclusions can be drawn in respect of likely 
significance;  
o Providing the principles and features included within the illustrative masterplan 
of the nearby committed development (Maybury/West Craigs) are adopted within the 
actual layout of the development and that the mitigation measures identified by the 
consultant acting for the promoters of the development are incorporated in to the 
eventual design, then cumulative effects on amenity of future residents of the proposed 
EAR and committed developments in the area should be Not Significant.  
 
Air Quality 
 
An air quality impact assessment (AQIA) has been provided in support of the 
application. 
 
Air quality management areas (AQMAs) are situated at Glasgow Road (Ratho end) and 
St John's Road at Corstorphine, some 2km away from the closest points of the site. 
The report advises that no change in traffic activity attributable to the proposed Eastern 
Access Road is predicted on the roads within either the Glasgow Road or St John's 
Road AQMA's 
 
The AQIA also states that the proposed EAR has a beneficial effect on air quality as it 
diverts airport traffic away from existing residential properties on Eastfield Road and the 

Page 166



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 61 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

section of Glasgow Road between Eastfield Road and the Gogar Roundabout. No 
additional mitigation is therefore proposed within the report. 
 
During operation, annual mean NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations at existing 
residential properties within the study area are expected to reduce when the proposed 
Eastern Access Road becomes operational. This represents an overall beneficial 
impact on local air quality in the areas where traffic is being redistributed from. At 
locations where residential properties may be present in future years on the land 
adjacent to the proposed route of the Eastern Access Road; the dispersion modelling 
results indicates that annual mean NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations will be less 
than each respective health-based air quality objective. 
 
Cumulative Impacts from Introduction of New Developments 
 
The conclusion in the Air Quality Chapter is therefore still applicable to the '2036 with 
cumulative impacts' scenario i.e. annual mean NO2 concentrations are likely to be 
much less than the 40 ug.m-3 annual mean objective at locations where residential 
properties may be constructed on the land adjacent to the EAR. 
 
For PM10 and PM2.5, vehicles emission rates are also expected to decline from 2022 
to 2036, however, not sufficiently to outweigh the additional emissions from road traffic 
growth and traffic generated by other planned developments in the local area. The 
predicted PM10 and PM2.5 annual mean concentrations are '2036 with cumulative 
impacts' scenario are less than the respective objectives for each pollutant at the 
Elements Edinburgh Development receptors near the proposed Eastern Access Road. 
 
Summary of Air Quality Impacts When Cumulative Effects are Included  
 
When the cumulative effects of other planned developments are included in the air 
quality assessment, annual mean NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations at existing 
residential properties within the study area are expected to be less than each 
respective annual mean objective. When compared with the future baseline, pollutant 
concentrations are predicted to reduce when the proposed Eastern Access Road 
becomes operational. The EIA advises that this represents an overall beneficial impact 
on local air quality. At locations where residential properties may be present in future 
years on the land adjacent to the proposed route of the Eastern Access Road; the 
assessment results indicate that annual mean NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations 
will be less than each respective health-based air quality objective. 
 
Air Quality Conclusions  
 
The summarised outcome of the air quality assessment advises that the operational 
impact of the proposed Eastern Access Road has a beneficial effect on air quality as it 
diverts airport traffic away from existing residential properties. When the Eastern 
Access Road becomes operational it will have a beneficial effect on annual mean NO2, 
PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations at residential properties on Eastfield Road and the 
section of Glasgow Road between Eastfield Road and the Gogar Roundabout. In 
addition, no annual mean concentrations in excess of each respective NO2, PM10 or 
PM2.5 air quality objective are predicted at any of the receptor locations in the 2022 or 
2036 assessment scenarios. In the event that Euro 6 LDV NOx emissions do not 
decline as projected, the model results indicate that compliance with the 40 µg.m-3 

Page 167



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 62 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

NO2 annual mean objective will still be achieved at all receptor locations in 2022. No 
change in pollutant concentrations is predicted within the Glasgow Road AQMA as no 
change in traffic activity attributable to the proposed road is expected at this location. 
Based on current understanding of emissions from traffic that will use the EAR, it is 
unlikely that building residential properties on the land adjacent to the EAR would 
create new exposure to poor air quality. The EIA also concludes that the cumulative 
impacts associated with the development should ensure that health-based air quality 
objectives are met. 
 
Site Contamination 
 
Environmental Protection has assessed the East Access Road, Ground Investigation 
Report, dated 12 December 2019 produced by Curtin's Consultants in Chapter H: 
Ground Conditions of the Appendices of the Environmental Impact Assessment, and 
accepts  the conclusions and recommendations in section 8.0 of the report which have 
determined potential risks arising to/from development as a result of the recorded 
ground conditions to be sufficiently low to not require further investigation or mitigation 
actions toward future end users of the site or the wider environment. As such, 
additional information is not requested in relation to Chapter H of the Environmental 
Impact Assessment or with respect toward the planning application process to ensure 
the development is suitable for use in relation to potentially contaminated ground 
conditions.  
 
It should nevertheless be noted that this interpretation is based upon the information 
supplied and thus dependent on the investigation coverage indicated by the Ground 
Investigation Report and does not confirm contamination will not be present. As such, 
in line with the conclusions/recommendations of the report, vigilance should be 
maintained around groundworks by the contactor for unexpected ground conditions at 
variance to those recorded by the Ground Investigation Report and specifically any 
observations of obvious potential for contamination should be immediately reported to 
the Environmental Consultant/Engineer for advice. The Planning Authority should then 
be notified of any additional investigation being progressed and to ensure any potential 
risks to/from development are understood and remediated where necessary with the 
agreement of the Local Authority.  
 
Conclusions 
 
Environmental Protection would be of the opinion that building more roads is not 
conducive to reducing localised air quality impacts. Roads also inherently bring more 
noise due to vehicles travelling on the roads. However, as future travel modes point 
towards public transport use and electric vehicle use, roads to a certain extent will still 
be required in the future to incorporate modern sustainable transportation modes.  The 
proposed development also incorporates a cycle and pedestrian route and reduces the 
use of the existing congested A8 airport route which incorporates an existing air quality 
management area (AQMA). Therefore, any reduction in traffic on this route is 
welcomed. West Edinburgh is though becoming a well-developed area now and will be 
in the future, so these surrounding routes are likely to become more congested as the 
developments are realised. It is therefore very important that a corridor akin to the one 
proposed is built which allows unfettered access for public transport, cycling and 
pedestrians to and from the airport. This route could be considered in the future as one 
which specifically allows quicker access only for environmentally friendly modes of 

Page 168



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 63 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

transport to utilise access to the airport. It is recommended that this issue be 
considered in the future by transport planners considering west Edinburgh and airport 
access. 
 
Whilst there are some noise sensitive properties which are likely to be affected by 
noise, the NIA concludes that there will also be a reduction in noise affecting other 
properties on existing airport routes. The NIA advises that the levels do not necessitate 
the need for noise mitigation (e.g. acoustic barriers or low noise tarmac) and the route 
will be limited to vehicle speeds of 30mph. The properties also do not qualify for 
mitigation under the Noise Insulation (Scotland) Regulations.  
 
Therefore, as stated above, Environmental Protection is of the opinion that additional 
roads are not the route that should be taken when attempting to mitigate localised air 
quality impacts. However, it is understood that the application road may be required to 
assist with the reduction of congestion in other areas of west Edinburgh and so this 
team does not object to the application. Therefore Environmental Protection offers no 
objection to the development. 
 
 
SEPA response 
 
We offer no objection to the proposal, however we request that the comments below 
are used by CEC when considering this proposal. Please also note that whilst we have 
reviewed the flood information provided, this is not an endorsement of said information 
as we have purely commented on the site's flood risk impacts.  
  
Advice for the planning authority 
  
As highlighted in our Scoping Response dated PCS/168242, SEPA have a key interest 
in this site in terms of how it contributes to the delivery the shared and long standing 
aspirations of the re-diversion - or restoration - of the Gogar Burn which would help 
alleviate critical pressures, as mentioned in the applicant's own Scoping Report, that 
are currently on this waterbody under the Water Framework Directive (WFD). 
Discussions have taken place between multiple parties to explore these opportunities 
over a long period of time and it is critical that new developments at the very least do 
no hinder any future proposals for the re-diversion of the Gogar Burn. Moreover, to 
make Edinburgh resilient to the consequences of climate change, as well as the city 
playing its part to limit its contribution to the causes of climate change, another key 
factor in the City Development Plan is to reduce flood risk overall, and not simply to 
avoid flood risk in or from new developments. This will involve a strategic, city-wide 
approach to flood risk reduction and water management which will inform the City Plan. 
In our responses to 'Choices for the City Plan 2030' and its Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA) (and in the suite of accompanying plans and initiatives and their 
SEA), SEPA fully endorsed these objectives, and we are working with CEC and 
partners such as SW to deliver this plan for Edinburgh's future. 
  
Subsequent delivery of the currently protected re-diversion may require a degree of 
retrofitting which would add cost to any re-diversion, which would not be desirable, nor 
best use of limited private or public finance,  given the long-standing discussions 
between SEPA, the applicant and the City of Edinburgh Council. It is unlikely that this 
proposal itself compromises the principle of the overall long-standing aspirations of the 

Page 169



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 64 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

re-diversion, however there is no technical information that accompanies the 
application to confirm this. CEC must acknowledge that if this proposal were to go 
ahead it would likely be another potential barrier to the proposed aspirations of the re-
diversion of the Gogar Burn. 
  
In addition, it should be noted that SEPA would not accept a culverted retrofitted 
solution as highlighted in Chapter G, paragraph G3.7. If the road did need retrofitted to 
accommodate any re-diversion a bridge solution would likely be needed.  
  
We advise CEC to work with the applicant to produce detailed designs for the road 
which will allow a re-diversion of the Gogar which will allow the aspirations for it which 
are established in the current LDP and the City Plan which is information. To do this the 
baseline, e.g. ground conditions and flow paths and necessary additional capacity for 
increased levels of surface water will have to be established, a route agreed and a 
suitable water crossing built into the design. SEPA are happy to be involved in these 
discussions if viewed appropriate. It is important to re-iterate the reasons that the 
diversion was first mooted and the protected route agreed - this solution would deliver 
gains for fish access, water quality, flood and drought resilience and reduce physical 
condition constraints which exist on the existing channel, allowing sediment transport 
and ecological function. 
  
Please note further detailed comments below. 
 
Drainage  
  
We note that there are a mixture of surface water discharges proposed including 
discharge to the existing Gogar Burn and the adopted Edinburgh Airport drainage 
network. It should be noted that if discharges to the existing burn can not be accepted 
under the Controlled Activities Regulations then this is at the commercial risk of the 
applicant if new proposals need to be submitted through Planning.  
  
Flood Risk  
 
1. We commented on this proposal at the EIA scoping stage (29th November 2019, 
ref: PCS/168242). We advised that flood risk information should be submitted to 
address key issues in the EIA process and therefore recommended that the 'water 
environment' should be scoped into the EIA report. 
 
2. We previously highlighted that there are long standing aspirations for the re-
diversion of the Gogar Burn to help achieve multiple environmental benefits and to 
address critical Water Framework Directive (WFD) pressures. The Gogar Burn re-
alignment is also identified in a current, up-to-date Local Development Plan (reference: 
GS7, Realign Gogar Burn - Greenspace, City of Edinburgh Council). We have 
highlighted concerns to this and neighbouring proposals which, in the absence of a 
holistic approach to flood risk management, could 'lock in' the existing Gogar Burn 
alignment and therefore eliminate future environmental and flood risk benefits in 
perpetuity.  
 
3. We re-iterate the need for a strategic approach to flood risk management in the 
West of Edinburgh area which would be aided by a baseline model that includes an 
extended reach of the Gogar Burn, Murray Burn and their tributaries. We strongly 

Page 170



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 65 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

advise against a piecemeal approach to flood risk assessment in this area given the 
complexities and interactions between fluvial, surface water and drainage in this area 
and potential for significant future development proposals.  
 
4. Our advice is based solely on the supporting documents supplied in this 
consultation and SEPA held data. We have reviewed the EIAR Water Environment 
Chapter (G), related appendices and proposed layout plans and can make the following 
comments.  
 
5. We requested that details are provided in the EIAR to demonstrate how this 
proposal will contribute to the re-diversion of the Gogar Burn. Paragraphs G3.7 and 
G3.8 of the EIAR provide 'justification' on how the proposed development will not 
prevent a future Gogar Burn re-diversion through discussions with SEPA held on 9th 
March 2020. We expect a solution which maintains an open watercourse channel. 
Please refer to the opening paragraphs of this response for further comment. 
 
6. We note that the proposal comprises an extension to established road and 
hardstanding infrastructure (Section D to E, Figure G4.1, EIAR) and therefore does not 
represent an increase in land use vulnerability. The area that has already been 
developed is located within the fluvial and surface water medium to low likelihood flood 
extents based on the indicative SEPA Flood Hazard Maps. The proposed extension to 
the road (Section D to A, Figure G4.1, EIAR) is outwith the indicative fluvial flood extent 
but within a surface water flood risk area.  
 
7. Based on SPP, it may be acceptable to locate essential infrastructure within a 
built up area at medium to high flood risk, provided the development is designed and 
constructed to remain operational during floods and not impede water flow. Based on 
the supplied topographic maps and development plans, there is no evidence that the 
proposed road extension or car parking area involves landraising within the functional 
floodplain. We are satisfied the proposal can be designed to have a neutral or better 
effect on flood risk with the adoption of appropriate surface water management 
measures.  
 
8. Proposed Layout Sheet 2 of 3 (drawing ref: 59007-00-EC-736-000003(PO2), 
Curtins, 20th January 2020) shows 'swale provided to west to facilitate connection to 
Gogar Burn'. We advise that the proposed location of surface water discharges into the 
Gogar Burn should take due cognisance of any future watercourse re-alignment 
proposals. We are pleased that an appropriate climate change uplift has been 
considered in the attached FRA and SWMP.  
 
9. It is for the City of Edinburgh Council as Flood Risk Management Authority to 
comment on the acceptability of the proposed surface water management measures 
and provision of safe vehicular access/egress routes in the event of flooding. 
  
10. In summary, based on the information supplied, SEPA view this proposal as 
SPP compliant and have no objection on flood risk grounds. We are satisfied that the 
proposal will allow for a preferred future Gogar Burn re-alignment, but with caveats, 
and will have a neutral or better effect on flood risk to an area which is already 
developed with existing road and car parking infrastructure. 
 
 

Page 171



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 18 August 2021    Page 66 of 66 21/00217/FUL 

Flood Planning response 
 
We acknowledge SEPA's consultation response and support the recommendation for 
CEC to work collaboratively with the applicant and SEPA to develop a design that 
allows the long-standing aspiration to divert the Gogar Burn. Perhaps a meeting would 
be useful to discuss this further. 
 
I have made some additional comments below, for the applicant to address.  
 
1. The self-certification declaration certificate A1 has not been signed. Please 
provide a signed copy of the certificate.  
2. Please confirm whether it is possible to provide attenuation up to the 1:200-
year+40%CC storm event for all 4 catchments. The SWMP notes that for some 
sections of the road, no attenuation is proposed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 172


	Agenda
	3.1 Minutes
	1. Chair
	2. Minutes
	3. General Applications and Miscellaneous Business
	4. 82 Newbattle Terrace, Edinburgh

	4.1 11 Abercorn Terrace (Abercorn Nursing Home), Portobello, East - Change of use, extension and alteration of existing nursing care home to form 8 residential dwellings (as amended) - application no. 21/03148/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.2 84N Barnton Park View, Edinburgh. Conversion of existing lock-up garage (formerly a railway bridge) into a three bedroom dwelling - application no. 18/02021/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.3 13 Edinburgh Road, Edinburgh - Erect new standalone workshop / studio building with separate access - application no. 20/05222/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.4 194 Fountainbridge (At Land Adjacent To), Edinburgh - Proposed use for the North East commercial unit, lower ground floor of Block A. Current planning consent allows for class 1, class 2, class 3, class 4, and/or ancillary residential use e.g., storage. Application is seeking permission for a class 11 (gym) use for this unit - application no. 21/02326/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.5 Totley Wells Lodge, Westfield, Winchburgh - Demolition of an existing house and the erection of a replacement house on the same site - application no. 20/04495/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	5.1 194 Fountainbridge (At Land Adjacent To), Edinburgh - Approval of matters specified in conditions 1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 12 & 13 of 15/02892/PPP for Building E including form + massing; design + materials; daylight + sunlight; design + operation of private/public open spaces; roads, footways/cycleway/access/servicing + parking; venting + electric vehicle charging; drainage; waste management; operational requirements for commercial uses/ sustainability/floor levels/lighting; site investigation/hard + soft landscaping details + noise mitigation. (As Amended) - application no. 19/02993/AMC - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	6.1 1 Edinburgh Airport (Main Terminal), Jubilee Road, Edinburgh - application no. 21/00217/FUL - Protocol Note by the Chief Executive
	6.2 1 Edinburgh Airport (Main Terminal), Jubilee Road, Edinburgh - Formation of new access road and active travel route from east of terminal building to Gogar Roundabout - application no. 21/00217/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer

